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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT

TTHAERRES

Dear Shareholders and Partners:

This was a significant year for the growth and development of
Branding China Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).

Throughout our history, we have actively seized opportunities for
business transformation and constantly adapted to changes in
technologies and market conditions to stay at the forefront of our
industry. Looking back these past few years, we have expanded our
services scope from brand communication services to business park
area management services and corporate value-added services.

In 2018, we witnessed a sustained increase of digital assets usage
and more recently a trend towards tokenization of assets. Key
institutions in the financial services industry have, to varying degrees,
made significant investments into technologies and capabilities to
adopt new digital asset classes as a critical part of their future
business growth.

Recent attention is squarely focused on the development of a token
economy with institutional Wall Street heavyweights formalizing their
pivot into various parts of the blockchain space. Regulators and
governments around the world have been racing to keep pace with
the new technology adoption to regulate and support these
innovations.

Moreover, there have been billions of dollars invested across the
industry in building an ecosystem in anticipation of potentially
widespread adoption across the globe, with Asia as a potential
epicentre. Many see this as a moment where the next version of the
Internet revolution may transform how technology can facilitate
transactions over traditional asset classes — including stocks, bonds,
derivatives and private assets.

We've been preparing and getting ready.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT
TSRS E

2018 PERFORMANCE AND ACHIEVEMENTS

In 2018, the advertising and business park area management
services segments continued to lay a solid foundation for the Group
despite macro uncertainties in the Mainland China economy arising
from factors such as the ongoing trade disputes with the United
States. We were able to improve on our financial performance and
improve profitability by offering customized and professional one-
stop integrated marketing services to our customers.

Moreover, we maintained a stable revenue stream from the business
park area management services and retained a high occupancy rate
in our properties.

In addition to growing and maintaining our core businesses, the
Group is making a strategic entry into the digital asset and blockchain
related technology space by stepping up investments in blockchain
technology infrastructure and capabilities. We firmly believe the
diversification of our business lines may create opportunities to
complement and leverage our existing businesses, better positioning
us for long term growth.

We have assembled an experienced executive team with expertise
and track records of building successful businesses in the digital
asset industry, supported by veterans from diversified backgrounds
in technology, financial services, regulatory and compliance, and
law.

Our Group has successfully consolidated our technology capabilities
into a single offering for our customers under the brand ANXONE
Solutions (“Solutions”). Our Solutions encompass a range of
services, including white label digital asset facilitation software as a
service (SaaS) technology platform, an insured custody service
solution for storing digital assets securely, and wrapped with our
white glove client services operations and support. Our Solutions
offerings targets financial institutions and operators who want to
facilitate digital asset trading and leverage blockchain technology.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT

With the Solutions, the Group is able to offer a unigue one-stop
solutions platform for all aspects of digital assets businesses:

o Led by a team of seasoned experts from the financial services
and technology sectors with years of experience in blockchain
development and operation.

o World class trading engine combined with a suite of operator
tools.

o An insured digital asset custody option, one of the first
available in Asia.

o Know Your Customers (“KYC") compliance toolkits, integrated
with established industry providers, to deliver market operators
an integrated option to speed onboarding whilst meeting
regulatory requirements.

o Gateway to facilitate trading in digital assets, with relationships
with multiple liquidity providers.

o Market surveillance capabilities to detect and mitigate risk of
abusive trading.

Under the OSL brand, the Group began offering over-the-counter
digital asset trade facilitation services to professional counterparties
in late 2018 generating RMB8,560,749 income for the Group. OSL is a
full-service facilitation service provider, providing a high touch
experience for our professional counterparties.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT
TSRS E

FORGING AHEAD AND MAKING BREAKTHROUGHS
Despite the climate of economic uncertainties, we remain optimistic
on the medium and long term prospects for the advertising and
business park area management services businesses. We will
continue to seek opportunities in strengthening our advertising
business by exploring and identifying new customers and broaden
our industry exposure. We will also look to expand our service scope
of advertising business as well as expanding our advertising and
business park area management services businesses geographically
in and outside of the Mainland China. We will also explore the
application of blockchain technology in the advertising and
marketing-related business.

With the rise of the token economy, we believe the digital assets
industry will move towards regulation and adoption by institutions in
the foreseeable future.

In early 2019, we launched ANXONE MarketPlace (“MarketPlace”),
a marketplace to facilitate trading in non-securities digital assets, as
a showcase for our new capabilities. The Marketplace sets a new
industry standard and positioned to be the gateway to the token
economy, allowing customers to seamlessly open accounts and to
efficiently trade digital assets in a secure and frictionless manner.
The MarketPlace is targeted at professional and institutional
counterparts.

Our Solutions and MarketPlace, together combine our digital assets
technology solutions with digital assets custody services, servicing
institutional clients who seek to become facilitators of digital asset
trading, including licensed institutions where it will be mandatory.

With the significant investments made in 2018 now firmly behind us,
we enter 2019 poised to achieve improvements in operating leverage
and strengthen our financial position. The commitment to dedicating
resources early to build a market leading digital asset infrastructure
and technology platform has provided us the foundation to enable
execution of our strategic business plans and aggressively pursue
opportunities.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT

Our full breadth of institutional ready solutions now in place, we look
to capitalize on market opportunities presented by the confluence of
technology, financial markets and regulations that is driving demand
growth for digital assets. Having established an unmatched position
globally, seasoned industry experience, superior solutions and ability
to execute, the Group is set to be one of leading service providers in
the rapidly growing token economy.

Looking ahead we will continue to explore and widen the application
of our financial technology and support services, as well as establish
strategic and commercial relationships with other technology
providers and financial services operators who can further accelerate
the Group's growth and expansion strategy.

While the past few years have been challenging on many fronts, we
are extremely excited about the future and want to thank our
shareholders for their support and confidence. | would also like to
thank the remainder of our stakeholders — our board, our senior
management team, and our dedicated staff — for their individual
and collective contributions to the Group. We have created a culture
and environment that will ensure the Group's future prosperity and
deliver increases to shareholder value.

Lo Ken Bon
Chief Executive Officer
Branding China Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R wm M AT

MATERIAL EVENT

On 24 January 2018, the Company was informed by Lapta
International Limited, Peace C&D Limited, Always Bright Enterprises
Limited, Whales Capital Holdings Limited and Jolly Win Management
Limited (collectively the “Vendors”) that East Harvest Global Limited
("East Harvest”), the Vendors, and their beneficial owners (the
“Guarantor(s)”) entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement for
187,510,194 shares (representing approximately 74.48% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the joint
announcement dated 30 January 2018) for a total consideration of
HKD595,811,702.42 (equivalent to approximately HKD3.18 per share).
Completion took place on 25 January 2018.

On 12 April 2018, the Company and East Harvest issued an offer
document related to the above-mentioned transaction and East
Harvest made a mandatory unconditional cash offer for all the issued
shares held by other shareholders of the Company. The offer was
closed on 3 May 2018 and the details are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 3 May 2018. There was a
change in the board composition since then as all the then directors
(except Mr. Fang Bin) had resigned and certain new directors have
been appointed.

REVIEW OF RESULTS
Overall Performance
The Group recorded a total revenue and income of RMB 144,960,209
for the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 10.53% or
RMB17,054,947, from RMB162,015,156 for the year ended 31
December 2017 ("FY2017").

The operating loss of the Group was RMB128,263,265 for the Year,
representing an increase of approximately 130% or RMB72,496,243,
from net operating loss of RMB55,767,022 for FY2017.

The net loss of the Group increased from RMB57,223,723 recorded
for FY2017 to RMB160,696,958 recorded for the Year.

Loss per share of the Group for the Year was RMB64 cents (FY2017:
RMB22 cents).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue and Income

The revenue and income of the Group was RMB144,960,209 for the
Year (FY2017: RMB162,015,156), representing a decrease of
approximately RMB17,054,947 or 10.53% as compared with FY2017.

Revenue of advertising business was RMB100,431,065, a decrease
by RMB23,891,373 as compared with last year. During the year, the
group was affected by a slowdown in the automotive industry that
caused some clients reduced their budget on advertising, which
resulted in the decline in advertising revenue.

Revenue from business park area management services was
RMB35,968,395 as compared with RMB37,692,718 in FY2017.
Generally, the business park area management services business
remained steady during the year.

Revenue from digital assets and blockchain related technology
business of RMB8,560,749 were mainly attributable from the income
generated from the facilitation of trading of digital assets since
August 2018.

Cost of Revenue from Advertising and Business
Park Area Management Services

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cost of revenue from
advertising and business park area management services mainly
comprised expenses and costs for procuring advertising space, staff
remuneration, event organising lease expense and production costs.
The Group’s cost of revenue for the Year was RMB92,069,201,
representing a decrease of approximately 35.26% or RMB50,153,615
as compared with RMB142,222,816 for FY2017. The cost of revenue
decreased correspondingly with the declined revenue in
advertisement business.

The gross profit of advertising and business park area management
services was RMB44,330,259, representing an increase of
RMB24,537,919 as compared to RMB19,792,340 for FY2017. For the
Year, the Group's gross profit margin of advertising and business
park area management services was 32.50% (gross profit margin for
FY2017: 12.22%). The increase in overall gross profit and gross profit
margin was mainly attributable to the decrease in the proportion of
revenue of event marketing service income and public relation
service income with relatively lower gross profit margin.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREHHRA

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by RMB4,636,629 from
RMB10,573,430 for FY2017 to RMB5,936,801 for the Year, which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the event production cost in
respect of marketing events.

Administrative and Other Operating Expenses
Administrative and other operating expenses for the Year increased
by RMB107,754,445 to approximately RMB168,711,319 as compared
to that for FY2017. Such increase was mainly due to (i) the
expenditures relating to implementation of operational infrastructure,
including IT, legal, rental costs and set up of its Hong Kong office
facilities; (i) the expenditures relating to the expansion of business
initiatives, including business development and marketing programs
for the digital assets and blockchain related technology business and
(iii) the increase in staff cost resulting from recruiting of high caliber
personnel during the year, which a substantial portion of that
headcount are comprised of engineers, programmers and
developers with expertise in technology and software development
of blockchain and financial technologies as well as dedicated legal,
regulatory, risk and compliance staff to establish, maintain and
monitor the Company’s risk, compliance and regulatory programs
and initiatives.

Human Resources Cost

In connection with the strategic expansion of the Group’s business
activities relating to blockchain and financial technologies, the Group
has actively acquired talents in the Hong Kong office during the year.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 260 employees in
both Hong Kong and China offices (FY2017: 73 employees). The total
staff cost during the year was RMB85,849,069 (for FY2017:
RMB26,280,963).

The Group has developed its human resources policies and
procedures based on performance and merit. The Group ensures
that the pay levels of its employees are competitive and employees
are rewarded on a performance related basis within the general
framework of the Group’s salary and bonus systems.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives to, retaining, recognising and motivating eligible
Directors and employees who make contribution to the Group. At 31
December 2018, 17,148,889 share options were granted under the
share option scheme, while the remaining 2,851,111 share options
were subsequently granted on 18 January 2019 (FY2017: Nil). Up to
the date of this report, a total of 20,000,000 share options had been
granted, representing about 7.65% of the shares in issue while no
share options had been exercised, cancelled or lapsed or were
outstanding.

The Company has also adopted a new share award scheme during
the year to recognise and reward the contributions of certain
employees and persons to the growth and development of the Group
and to provide them with incentives in order to retain them for the
continual operation of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group. The Company has issued
9,836,474 shares under its share award scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2018 (FY2017: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

Business Review

Advertising business and business park area
management services business

Our advertising businesses mainly focuses on professional, targeted
and customised one-stop integrated marketing services for
sophisticated clients, including advertising communication, PR
communication and event marketing service providers. In 2018,
revenue from this business segment recorded a 19.22% decrease
against 2017. More cost conscious clients were seen to have
tightened their spending on public relations and event marketing
services in 2018.

Revenue generated from the Group’s business park area
management services in 2018 was approximately was
RMB35,968,395 which was comparable to that in 2017. The Group’s
business park area management services offer a variety of office
space service solutions to start-up, growth-phase and mature
businesses. The Group’s business park delivers an environment of
cultural creativity and design, flexible business zones, and public
areas for exchanges, which not only supports commercial and
residential facilities but also integrates work with life and industries
with communities. During the year, the existing parks of the Group
maintained an occupancy rate of 80%, with lease terms of not less
than five years.
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Digital asset and blockchain related technology
business

In view of the economic slowdown of the Mainland economy that
will affect our core businesses in the foreseeable future, the Group
has sought to expand and diversify our business by investing into
new business opportunities relating to provision of blockchain
technology and software solutions and facilitation of trading in digital
assets, and has positioned ourselves to be a leader in technology
and services to the digital asset and blockchain related technology
industry.

In 2018, the Group made investments in building the technology,
infrastructure, and services that enable potential operators of digital
asset trading platforms to quickly deploy and go to market. Our
blockchain technology and software solutions encompass end-to-
end technology, best-in-class risk management, market surveillance
and compliance systems. The target customers of the Group include
financial institutions who seek to leverage blockchain technology on
operating existing products and services, and who seek to operate
digital asset trading. We offer our technology and software solutions
and managed services based on a combination of implementation
fee, monthly service fee and optional revenue share agreement
model.

To showcase the Group's technology and operational capabilities,
the Group began providing digital asset trade facilitation services to
professional investors under the OSL brand in late 2018 generating
RMB8,560,749 income for the Group.

The Group's total assets has experienced a significant rise this year,
from RMB296,474,568 in 2017 to RMB1,002,579,170 in 2018, which is
mainly attributable to the digital asset inventories of RMB188,739,099
million and cash and cash equivalents of RMB294,838,046 in
connection with the Group's digital asset trade facilitation services.
The price risk of digital asset inventories arising from digital assets
business is party offset by remeasurement of digital asset liabilities
of RMB180,513,792. As a result, the net exposure of digital assets for
the Group during the year was not significant and price movements
in the digital assets are not expected to have a material impact on
our financial performance. Details can be referred to section headed
“Price risk of digital asset inventories” on page 16 of this annual
report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Risk Disclosures

The Group operates in three business segments, including traditional
advertising, business park area management and digital assets
trading, each of which carries distinct risks related to their business
model and correlation with the macroeconomic environment.

(@

(b)

Business development and the associated risks in
2018

During the year, the Group has strategically expanded into new
business areas including digital assets and blockchain related
technology, particularly as a service provider of technology and
software solutions and as a facilitator in trading of digital
assets.

Management considers that the risks and uncertainties
associated with the digital assets trading business are largely
related to information technology, safekeeping of digital assets,
fluctuation of asset prices, compliance and the unregulated
and immature nature of the markets. As the industry is in the
early stages of development, the Group has been
implementing necessary operational infrastructure to support
the development and the initiatives include identifying facilities,
expanding IT infrastructure, and hiring additional management
and personnel with an emphasis on experience in legal,
regulatory, compliance, financial reporting, operations and
technology development. All of these were considered
necessary before any revenue was generated for our
blockchain and financial technology related businesses.

Risk management of digital asset and blockchain

related business

()  Regulatory risk in relevant jurisdictions
The Group’s digital asset and blockchain related
technology business currently operates in Hong Kong
where regulators are considering imposing more
stringent regulatory frameworks, this is likely to impact
the Group's operations. As the regulatory landscape
around blockchain and distributed ledger technology in
Hong Kong becomes clearer, it is anticipated that more
of the Group’s business is likely to fall within regulations,
and may require licenses or approvals to operate, and
may be subject to financial and capital covenants.
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(ii)

To manage the risks associated, the Group has expended
substantial resources building up a strong team of
experienced Risk & Compliance professionals, who are
responsible for oversight of all business activities with
respect to prevailing and potential regulatory frameworks
applicable to the Group.

Price risk of digital asset inventories

The Group holds digital asset inventories in order to
facilitate and support the settlement process of the
digital asset trading business. The volatility and
unpredictability of the price of digital assets relative to
fiat currencies could cause significant impact to the
Group’s performance.

To manage the risk, the level of digital asset holdings is
controlled by limits based on volatility, position size and
liquidity, as approved by the Risk Committee and as
overseen by the Group’s Risk Department. During times
of heightened price volatility, the Group may choose to
reduce its digital asset inventory exposure either by
selling down or entering into hedge transactions such as
exchange traded Futures contracts.

The Group also holds digital assets in designated
customers’ accounts under its contracts with the
customers. These digital assets are held in the Group’s
wallets which support rapid settlement of traded
transactions, thereby eliminating settlement risk for the
Group. As this inventory held in customers’ accounts
corresponds to a liability due to the customers with both
the inventory and liability to customers recorded at fair
value, the Group has no price volatility exposure from
these holdings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(iii) Risks related to safekeeping of assets

(iv)

The Group maintains digital assets in both “hot”
(connected to the Internet) and “cold” (not connected to
the Internet) wallets. “Hot” wallets are more susceptible
to cyber-attacks or potential theft due to the fact they are
connected to the public internet.

To mitigate such risks, the Group has implemented
guidelines and risk control protocols to dynamically
adjust the level of digital assets maintained in “hot”
wallets required to facilitate trading of digital assets.
Given the lack of established third-party services for the
safekeeping of digital assets, the Group has developed a
proprietary digital asset wallet solution for their cold
wallets with comprehensive security controls and risk
mitigation processes in place. These include control
procedures starting from wallet generation to day-to-day
wallet management and security to monitor and
safeguard the Group's “hot” and “cold” wallets and public
and private keys. In 2019, the Group has also obtained
insurance from third-party insurance providers to insure
both its “hot” and “cold” wallets.

Risks related to source of funds and anti-money
laundering

Digital assets are exchangeable directly between parties
through decentralized networks that allow anonymous
transactions, which create complex technical challenges
with respect to issues such as identification of parties
involved and ownership.

To mitigate such risks, the Group has implemented Anti-
Money Laundering, Know Your Customer (KYC), and
Know Your Business (KYB) policies and procedures during
the client onboarding process and continuous reporting.
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(v) Technology leakage risk

The Group's key competitive advantage lies in its
blockchain-related technology IP and trade secrets.
Should its IP and trade secrets be compromised, the
Group could face risks in its ability to remain competitive

and execute its strategy.

Technology leakage risks are mitigated by controls of
information and being able to defend against intrusion
into the Group’'s technology infrastructure and IP
protection and prevention of leakage of sensitive data.

(vi) Information security risks

The Group's and client information are maintained on
proprietary data infrastructure in conjunction with
services by cloud service providers. Such infrastructure
is connected to the public internet and therefore subject
to potential cyber-attacks. To mitigate such risks, the
Group has a dedicated security team that have
implemented security controls including but not limited
to multi-factor authentication, data and network
segregation, system redundancy and encrypted backups,
segregation of duties, least privilege principal, event

monitoring and incident response.

(vii) New product risk

Prior to the deployment and release of new products and
businesses to the Group's clients, every such new activity
is reviewed by the Risk Department. The Risk Department
reviews each proposal against business capability,
impact on balance sheet as well as the suite of risks that
are typically inherent in such activities such as
operational risk, legal risk, regulatory risk, market, credit
and liquidity risk. Approval to proceed with the proposed
business or product will only be forthcoming once the
committee is satisfied that all necessary controls and

support functions are fully implemented.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(viii) Business continuity

(ix)

The Group operates its technology stack with remote
data centre sites and is implementing a business
continuity and disaster recovery plan, and is shortly
building capability to ensure resilience against external
and internal threats, allowing business activities to
continue during catastrophes and crises, such as
disruption of utilities or denial of physical access to
business offices.

Currently, the Group is analysing Business Continuity
Plan (“BCP") requirements for each business and support
function and will shortly move to implementing a
comprehensive physical disaster recover capability.

Operational risk

Operational risk covers a spectrum of potential incidents
and actions that may cause safety or health impairment
of staff, financial loss, reputational damage, regulatory
sanctions or loss of business capability. Such losses may
arise from process weaknesses, lack of staff training,
technology failures, honest errors or malicious actions by
internal or external agents.

The Group’s Operational Risk Committee has been
formed as the central oversight and management
function for all operational risk actions and related
control activities. The Group’s Risk Department
specifically employs Operational Risk Managers who are
empowered to test and challenge businesses and
support functions so as to improve and enhance controls
and process flows. In addition, regular reviews of all
departments are performed by way of Risk Control Self
Assessment tools and reviews; such analyses form a
component of business risk management as well as to
support independent oversight of operational risks within
the Group.

Discussion in relation to other risks are disclosed in Note
3.3 t0 3.5 to the Financial Statements.
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PROSPECTS

Looking into the future, the Group will continue to seek opportunities
to strengthen and expand our advertising business. The sales and
marketing department will actively pursue opportunities in exploring
and identifying new customers and broaden our industry exposure in
Mainland China. They will also expand our marketing efforts in Hong
Kong and seek opportunities to diversify our customer base into
technology and blockchain industries. Moreover, the Group will also
strive to geographically expand our advertising and business park area
management services businesses in and outside Mainland China.

In 2018, we witnessed a sustained increase of digital assets usage
and more recently a trend towards tokenization of assets. Key
figures in the financial services industry have to varying degrees
made significant investments into technologies and capabilities to
adapt to new digital asset classes as a critical part of their future
business growth.

The Group intends to increase resources as the Group believes the
provision of technology and software solutions and services may
become an important revenue stream for the Group in long run. The
Group believes as blockchain and digital assets become mainstream,
there will be significant demand from institutions who seek to
become facilitators of digital asset trading. Over the past year, the
Group has assembled a high-caliber team with specialisation in
building technology, security, risk, and compliance systems and
procedures required by institutions who seek to operate digital asset
trading platforms.

In 2018, the Group has invested resources into building turnkey
software and service solutions required by institutional operators of
digital asset platforms, and has seen strong market interest globally.
We believe our software and services solutions will significantly
lower the barriers to entry and remove inefficiencies to the adoption
of digital assets and help to accelerate institutional adoption. The
Group considered the significant expenditure incurred in 2018 is
mainly due to building up the whole technology infrastructure and
recruiting human capital to kickstart the business. In the next few
years, our Groups expects to reduce recurring expenses for
operating the business and expects the revenue generated from
digital assets to increase, with the potential to become one of the
main revenue streams of the Group in the long run.

In 2019 we continue to invest in strengthening our technology
offering and market effort. As part of this development, we have
launched operation of our own digital asset trading platform the
MarketPlace to facilitate trading in non-securities digital assets in
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

early 2019. This is a showcase of our technology, risk management,
compliance and capabilities in the context of our own trade
facilitation platform. We seek to leverage our relationships globally to
make our services available world-wide, and to help market
participants better understand the potential of blockchain
technology. The Group will also explore opportunities to strengthen
the business by widening the application of the technology business.

To support our expansion plans, the Group is actively seeking
funding through debt and equity in order to strengthen our working
capital base.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 December 2018, the Group recorded total assets of
RMB1,002,579,170 (FY2017: RMB296,474,568) which were financed
by liabilities of RMB967,951,879 (FY2017. RMB115,621,213) and total
shareholders’ equity of RMB34,627,291 (FY2017: RMB180,853,355).

The Group mainly used internal cash flows from operating activities
with short term financing to satisfy its working capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2018, total borrowings amounted to
RMB236,962,651 (FY2017: RMB9,565,000). Additional other
borrowings of RMB236,962,651 were borrowed and bank borrowings
which fell due amounting to RMB9,565,000 was fully repaid. The
Group's borrowings, which comprise of other loans are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars ("HKD") and Renminbi (“RMB”), will mature in 1
to 2 years (FY2017: 1 year) as at 31 December 2018. The borrowings
of HKD100,000,000 (or equivalent to approximately RMB87,867,000)
and HKD22,800,000 (or equivalent to approximately RMB20,034,000),
which were interest bearing at 8% and 6% per annum, respectively.
The borrowing of RMB15,500,000 which was interest bearing at 12%
per annum. Other borrowings were non-interest bearing. As at 31
December 2018, the Group was in a net cash position (2017: same
position).

At 31 December 2018, 17,148,889 share options were granted under
the share option scheme, while the remaining 2,851,111 share
options were subsequently granted on 18 January 2019. If all of the
remaining outstanding share options were exercised, gross proceeds
of approximately HKD172,936,334 in aggregate would be raised
before deducting any issuance expenses. Subsequent to the financial
position date, no share options were exercised and lapsed.
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Treasury Policy

It is the Group's treasury management policy not to engage in any
investment or speculative derivative instrument with high risks.
During the Year, the Group continued to adopt a conservative
approach in financial risk management and did not employ any
material financial instrument for hedging purposes. Most of the
assets, receipts and payments of the Group was denominated in
RMB, HKD and United States dollars (“USD").

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group currently operates mainly in Hong Kong and mainland
China.

For operations in Hong Kong, most of the transactions are
denominated in HKD and USD. The exchange rate of USD against
HKD is relatively stable, and the related currency exchange risk is
considered minimal. For operations in mainland China, most of the
transactions are settled in RMB, the impact of foreign exchange
exposure to the Group was minimal.

No financial instrument was used for hedging purposes for the
period. However, the Group is closely monitoring the currency
exchange risk of RMB and is looking for any opportunities to mitigate
the currency exchange risk of RMB.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of
Subsidiaries and Associates

Save as disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and associates during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Charge on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had deposits amounting to
RMB94,110,237 pledged for other borrowings granted to the Group.
(FY2017: Bank deposit of RMB10,000,000 was pledged for bank
borrowings).

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets and Capital Expenditure Commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital expenditure
commitments for property, plant and equipment amounting to
RMB8,137,660 (FY2017: Nil). Apart from the aforesaid, the Group did
not have any concrete future plans for material investments or
capital assets and material capital expenditure commitments as at
31 December 2018.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lo Ken Bon (“Mr. L0"), aged 42, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 16 April 2018. He was also appointed as
the chairman of Nomination Committee, Risk Management
Committee and a committee member of Remuneration Committee
of the Company. On 3 May 2018, he has become the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the
company.

Mr. Lo graduated from the University of Calgary with a Bachelor
degree of Commerce, Management Information Systems. Mr. Lo held
senior management positions at various companies, including BT
Global Services, Verizon Business, Accenture and ANX International.

Mr. Lo is a frequent speaker at major industry events, including
“Hong Kong's Belt and Road Conference” and “Hong Kong Fintech
Week 2018". He has also been interviewed with top-tier media,
including Bloomberg, CNBC and CNN. Mr. Lo is a member of the
Hong Kong Securities Institute and also a committee member of the
Corporate Membership Outreach Committee and the Corporate
Advisory Council. He was presented the Fintech Development Award
in the IFTA Fintech Achievement Award 2018.

Mr. Lo has not held any position in other listed companies in the last
three years.

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson (“Mr. Ko"”), aged 67, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 16 April 2018. Mr. Ko is
also currently the deputy chairman and an executive director of
Frontier Services Group Limited (stock code: 500) which is listed on
the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Over the past three years, Mr. Ko has held directorships in the following
listed companies: Concord New Energy Group Limited (stock code: 182)
as an executive director from December 2006 to June 2015; Yunfeng
Financial Group Limited (stock code: 376) as an executive director from
August 2011 to March 2016 and as a non-executive director from April
2016 to November 2018; KuangChi Science Limited (stock code: 439) as
an executive director from August 2014 to May 2017 and as a non-
executive director from May 2017 to November 2018; Varitronix
International Limited (stock code: 710) as an executive director from
June 2005 to April 2016 and Meitu, Inc (stock code: 1357) as an
independent non-executive director from December 2016 to December
2018.
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Mr. Madden Hugh Douglas (“Mr. Madden”), aged 41, was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 22 August
2018 and is also the Chief Technology Officer of the Company.

Mr. Madden holds a Bachelor degree in Computer Science from the
University of Newcastle in Australia. He is a blockchain, financial
markets, and security expert with nearly two decades of experience
in developing and managing professional trading operations.

Mr. Madden co-founded ANX International which is a private
blockchain solutions provider. He also co-chairs the Blockchain
Committee of the Hong Kong Fintech Association. With over 18 years
of experience under his belt, Mr. Madden has been internationally
recognised as a blockchain thought leader with speaking
engagements and media appearances globally.

Mr. Madden has not held any position in other listed companies in
the last three years.

Mr. Chapman David James (“Mr. Chapman”), aged 38, was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 22 August
2018. He is also the Chief Executive Officer of one of our subsidiaries,
BC MarketPlace (HK) Limited.

Mr. Chapman holds a Bachelor degree in Business Information
Systems from Australian Catholic University in Australia. He is an
Australian serial entrepreneur with over a decade of experience in
banking and financial technology, specializing in the analysis of low-
latency pre-trade risk and order management systems.

Throughout his investment banking career, Mr. Chapman was
responsible for the design and implementation of a wide-ranging
suite of trading platforms. Mr. Chapman served in HSBC, Credit
Suisse, Barclays Capital, ABN AMRO and Bear Stearns, among other
financial firms. In June 2013, he co-founded ANX International, a
private blockchain solutions provider.

Mr. Chapman has frequently been invited to address the industry
ecosystem on global media including Bloomberg TV and radio, CNBC,
CNN, CoinTelegraph, Citywire Asia, Bulletin, and Hong Kong
Economic Journal. He is also a frequent speaker at industry
conferences and roundtables, participating in events organized by JP
Morgan, HSBC, Morgan Stanley, Allianz, Nomura, the Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers and others.

Mr. Chapman has not held any position in other listed companies in
the last three years.
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Mr. Fang Bin (“Mr. Fang"”), aged 47, is currently an executive
director of the Company. He is also a director of subsidiaries of the
Company.

With over 24 years of managerial experience in the media and
advertising industries, Mr. Fang has extensive experience in business
management and operation, in particular, in relation to the
development of marketing and communications strategies and
integration of media resources.

Mr. Fang has not held any position in other listed companies in the
last three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David (“Mr. Chau”), aged 56, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 16 April 2018. He was also appointed as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and is a member of
Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee of the
Company.

He has over 20 years of experience in corporate finance and was
formerly a partner of one of the big four accounting firms in Greater
China, holding the position as the Head of Merger and Acquisition
and Corporate Advisory. Mr. Chau is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of England and Wales (“ICAEW"), and was
granted the Corporate Finance Qualification of ICAEW. He is also a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and was an ex-committee member of the Disciplinary
Panel of HKICPA. Mr. Chau is a member as well as director of the
Hong Kong Securities Institute and the Chairman of Corporate
Membership Outreach Committee. Mr. Chau is a member of Hospital
Governing Committee of Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
(“PYNEH") and the Trustee of the PYNEH Charitable Trust. He is also
a member of Jinan Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultation Conference.

Mr. Chau is also currently an independent non-executive director of
China Evergrande Group (stock code: 3333), Evergrande Health
Industry Group Limited (stock code: 708), HengTen Networks Group
Limited (stock code: 136), IDG Energy Investment Group Limited
(stock code: 650), Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited (stock
code: 2314) and Man Wah Holdings Limited (stock code: 1999). All
the aforesaid companies are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chau was also an independent non-executive director of Richly
Field China Development Limited (stock code: 313) from February
2012 to September 2018, Asia Grocery Distribution Limited (stock
code: 8413) from March 2017 to August 2018 and Varitronix
International Limited (stock code: 710) from July 2009 to June 2016.
All the aforesaid companies are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Chia Kee Loong, Lawrence (“Mr. Chia"”), aged 65, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 16 April
2018. He is also a member of Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Chia is currently the Chief Executive Officer of Samling Group of
Companies (the “Samling”), which is a conglomerate with global
businesses in a number of sectors notably automotive, timber, palm oll,
properties and infrastructure. Before joining Samling, Mr. Chia was the
Chief Executive Officer of Deloitte China until September 2016. Mr. Chia
is a Chartered Accountant of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
England and Wales and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Mr. Chia has not held any position in other listed companies in the last
three years.

Mr. Tai Benedict (“Mr. Tai”), aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 29 June 2018. He
is also a member of Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee
of the Company.

Mr. Tai graduated from Columbia University School of Law with a J.D.
degree and is currently a retired partner of Jones Day, one of the
largest law firms in the US. Mr. Tai has many years of experience
working in corporate, banking, and cross border mergers and
acquisitions. In recent years, his practice has focused on
representing numerous Chinese IT, technology, communications,
media, and Internet companies seeking to raise funds in the public
and private markets as well as multinational clients seeking platform
acquisitions in China. Mr. Tai had previously worked in Lehman
Brothers as an investment banker in the Technology, Media and
Telecom group and had helped founding Latitude Capital Group, a
boutiqgue merchant bank with offices in Hong Kong, Beijing and
Shanghai. Mr. Tai is admitted to the New York Bar.

Mr. Tai has not held any position in other listed companies in the last
three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lo Ken Bon (“Mr. Lo") is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. For biographical details of Mr. Lo, please refer to the
paragraphs under the section headed “Executive Directors” in this
annual report.

Mr. Steve Zhang (“Mr. Zhang"), aged 36, has been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since December 2018. Mr. Zhang
has over 15 years of experience in leading technology and financial
services firms including iTutorGroup, Kingdee International Software
Group, HSBC, Macquarie, Deutsche Bank, and Lehman Brothers,
where Mr. Zhang has held roles in financial planning and reporting,
capital markets, fundraising, and investor relations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of the Board in
ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company,
transparency and accountability of all aspects of operations and that
its business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board considers that good corporate governance provides a
framework that is crucial for effective management, successful
business growth and a healthy corporate culture which in return
benefits the Group’s stakeholders as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining sound corporate
governance standards and procedures to ensure the timeliness,
transparency and completeness of its information disclosure, and
strives to achieve more standardised operations and effective
management, so as to safeguard investors’ interests as a whole to
the greatest extent.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties, which includes formulation and review of the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, review and monitor
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, formulation, review and monitor the code of conduct
and Compliance Manual applicable to employees and Directors, as
well as review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
role of both the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same individual. On 3
May 2018, after the Company announced the resignation of Mr. Fang
Bin as Chairman of the Company, no individual was appointed as
Chairman of the Company. The various responsibilities of the post of
Chairman have from time to time during the year been performed by
the other Directors of the Company. On 3 May 2018, Mr. Lo Ken Bon
was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and has also assumed his
responsibilities as Chairman. He is also the Chairman of the
nomination committee.
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The Board will continue to use its best endeavour to determine and
appoint a suitable candidate to assume as the post of Chairman as
sSoon as possible.

In respect of the code provision A6.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code, Independent non-executive Directors should attend the
general meeting of the Company. Mr. Zhou Ruijin was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20 June
2018.

Save as disclosed above, throughout the year ended 31 December
2018 up to the date of this report, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Group has complied with the code provision of the Corporate
Governance Code.

The Corporate Governance Structure of the Company for the Year is
as follows:

General Meeting Audit Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Board of Directors

Nomination
Committee

Risk Management

Senior Management 2
Committee

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS' SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors, each of the
Directors confirmed that he has complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At the date of this annual report, the Board of the Company
comprises eight Directors, five of whom are executive Directors
(hamely, Mr. Lo Ken Bon, Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson, Mr. Chapman
David James, Mr. Madden Hugh Douglas and Mr. Fang Bin) and three
of whom are independent non-executive Directors (namely, Mr.
Chau Shing Yim, David, Mr. Chia Kee Loong, Lawrence and Mr. Tai
Benedict). The Board has a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group.

The current Directors and their brief biographical details are set out
in the section headed "Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Overall Accountability

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board is accountable to the
Shareholders and in discharging its corporate accountability. The
Directors, individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and the Shareholders and fulfill his
fiduciary duties by applying the required level of skills, care and
diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory
requirements.

Board Responsibilities

The key responsibilities of the Board include, among other things,
setting the general strategy of the Group, supervising the
performance of the Group, and approving operating plans and
investment proposals. The Board has authorised the management or
senior management who are responsible for various business
functions to handle the daily operation and day-to-day management
affairs of the Group and report to the Board from time to time.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board papers
and relevant information, as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

Upon request to the Board, each Director may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances to assist with the
discharge of his/her duties as a director at the Company's expense.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions
as to the powers, scope of delegation and relevant arrangements
were given to the senior management and subject to periodic review
to ensure that they remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.
Reporting to the Board and prior approval of the Board are necessary
before the senior management entering into any material
transactions and assuming significant commitments on behalf of the
Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Memorandum of Association and
Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”), the Directors
shall have power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of members after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting; and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, at least one-third of the Directors for the time being, shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Lo Ken Ben, Mr. Fang Bin, Mr. Chapman David
James, Mr. Madden Hugh Douglas and Mr. Tai Benedict shall retire at
the annual general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.
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The Company has been maintaining the number of independent non-
executive Directors at not less than one-third of the number of the
Board members and has ensured that at least one of the
independent non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by the Listing Rules. The participation of
independent non-executive Directors in the Board brings
independent judgement to ensure the interests of all Shareholders
have been duly considered.

Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles. Each independent non-executive Director is
required to inform the Group as soon as practicable if there is any
change that may affect his/her independence. The Company has
received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independency pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers these independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
THE DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction so as to
ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the Group'’s
business and his/her duties and responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. The
Directors may request the Company to provide independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense to discharge his/her
duties to the Company. Directors’ training is an ongoing process.

During the year, the Company had provided to the Directors regular
updates and presentations on changes and developments to the
Group’s business and the legislative regulatory environments in
which the Group operates.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This
is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, all current Directors have
participated in continuous professional development as shown
below:

BE-_Z-\F+-_A=+—"BILLFE 28R
BESHC2HEBEEXHRRNT ¢

Reading
relevant
matters in
relation to
listing

rules update
and corporate

Name of Directors EEHA governance
FMEEBLN
RAEHRLE
ERNEESEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lo Ken Bon Lo Ken Bon 5t 4 v
Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson =IRIESE A v
Mr. Hugh Douglas Madden Hugh Douglas Madden 7t 4 v
Mr. David James Chapman David James Chapman 5t 4 v
Mr. Fang Bin It E v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIKHITES
Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David AR SE A v
Mr. Chia Kee Loong, Lawrence HHEHBELA v
Mr. Tai Benedict B ESE v
DIRECTORS' LIABILITY INSURANCE EEETRE

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to cover
the Directors’ risk exposure arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an important component of sound corporate governance practices
and to oversee the general affairs of the Company in each aspect as
well as to assist the Board to perform its duties, the Board had set up
four board committees, which are Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee.
A half or more than a half of the members of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Management Committee are independent non-executive Directors to
ensure that independent and objective opinions could be sufficiently
expressed and that the committees can serve the role of inspection
and supervision.
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The list of members and terms of reference of each of the board
committees are disclosed on the websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises 3 independent non-
executive Directors namely, Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David (Chairman),
Mr. Chia Kee Loong, Lawrence and Mr. Tai Benedlict.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required among
others things, (i) to monitor, review the financial reports and give
advice on matters in respect of financial reporting; (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditors; and (iii) to oversee internal control
procedures of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
among other matters, reviewed report from the independent auditor
regarding the audit on annual consolidated financial statements, and
met with the independent auditor. The Audit Committee also
reviewed the report from another independent internal control
consultant on the internal control of the Company.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee currently comprises of 4 members,
comprising Mr. Lo Ken Bon (Chairman), Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David,
Mr. Tai Benedict and the Chief Risk Officer of the Company.

Under its terms of reference, the responsibilities of the Risk
Management Committee are, among others, (i) to advise the Board
on the overall risk preference/tolerance and risk management
strategies of the Group; (i) to monitor the implementation of those
strategies by the senior management that are established and
approved by the Board, and to review whether such strategies are
aligned with the Company’s overall business objectives; and (iii)
review the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Risk Management
Committee reviewed the potential risks in overall business, risk
management strategies of the Group and the effectiveness of the
internal audit function of the Company.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 3 Directors,
namely Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David (Chairman), Mr. Lo Ken Bon and
Mr. Chia Kee Loong, Lawrence.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been
determined with reference to the Corporate Governance Code. Under
the terms of reference, the responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include, inter alia, (i) assisting the Company to the
administration of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policies; (i) to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration package of executive Directors and senior
management of the Company; and (iii) to ensure that none of the
Directors determined his own remuneration.

The goal of developing staff remuneration packages is to enable the
Company to motivate the executive Directors and senior management
by linking their remuneration to the Company’s operating results,
individual performances and comparable market rates.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Ccommittee (i) reviewed the overall remuneration policy and structure
relating to the Directors and senior management of the Company;
and (i) fixed the Directors’ and senior management remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 3 Directors, namely
Mr. Lo Ken Bon (Chairman), Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David and Mr. Chia
Kee Loong, Lawrence.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Corporate Governance Code.
Under the terms of reference, the responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee is to make recommendations to the Board regarding the
appointment or reappointment of Directors of the Company.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for the review of the
nomination policy, considering selection criteria of potential new
Directors that will make a positive contribution to the performance of
the Board and Board's diversity policy, considering factors including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service of board members, and review the measurable objectives
that the Board has set for implementing the Board's diversity policy,
and monitor the progress on achieving the measurable objectives.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the
selection criteria in assessing the suitability of the proposed
candidate for directorship and the nomination procedures for
Directors.

The Board will make recommendation regarding the appointment of
any proposed candidates through considering a number of factors,
including reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experiences
in the relevant industry, commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest, and board diversity elements.

Regarding the nomination procedures, the company secretary shall
call for a meeting and invite the nominations of candidates from the
Board for consideration. The Board will review the nomination policy
on a regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board in order
to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Company recognises the benefits of a Board that possesses an
appropriate balance and levels of skills, gender, experience,
expertise and diversity of perspectives essential to support the
execution of its corporate and business strategies and to enhance
the quality and effectiveness of its performance. Board diversity will
strengthen the Company’s strategic objectives in driving business
results, enhancing good corporate governance and reputation, and
attracting and retaining talent for the Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through considering
of a number of factors, including professional qualifications and
experience, cultural and educational background, race and ethnicity,
gender, age and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration factors based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time in determining the optimum composition of
the Board.

The Board considers that the current board composition is diverse
and meets the criteria (except that there is no female director in the
Board) of the board diversity policy. The Board will review the
composition from time to time to ensure that the board diversity
policy is complied.
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BOARD MEETINGS, COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND
GENERAL MEETING
The Company convenes meetings for the Board and board
committees in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
and the articles of association of the Company. The attendance
records of each Director at the various meetings of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out as below:

EEEEE

ZEEERNKRERARE

RIBELETRARARRZARERNRE AR

AEHEEENETZEE  BEC

T-N\F

TZA=Z+T—BLFE  SEFHELARANE
TEZNHELCHEHINNAT

Attended/Eligible to Attend

BEE/AERHRE
Risk  Independent
The Audit Remuneration  Nomination ~ Management Board
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee  Committee General
Meeting® Meeting® Meeting® Meeting® Meeting Meeting Meeting®
ENZES HHzES R%ZE8 BREE BUEE
EE-E 1 g3 g3 g3 ZEgEE ZEgER eV
Number of meetings EENE 16 4 5 2 1 1 1
Executive Directors #Es
Lo Ken Bon (note 3 LoKen Bon (##3) 121 - 33 10 10 - 10
Ko Chun Shun, Johnson BiRIEHZS) 1212 - - - - - 1N
(note 3)
Madden Hugh Douglas Madden Hugh Douglas bl6 - - - - . .
(note 5) (hi#5)
Chapman David James Chapman David James 6/6 - - - - - -
(note ) (it5)
FangBin bil4 16/16 - - - - - 1N
Fan Youyuan (note 1) EATE) 44 - - - - - -
Zheng Patrick note 1) Theng Patrick (A1) 44 - - - - - -
Huang Wei (note 1) (21 A4 - - - - - -
Song Yiun (note 1) REfk(HE1) 0/ - - - - - -
Independent BuksTEs
non-executive
Directors
Chau Shing Yim, David FEX(H#3) 1212 33 33 n n - n
(note 3)
Chia Kee Loong, Lawrence HEE(HZS) 1212 33 33 10 - - 10
(note 3)
Tai Benedict (note 4) g (i) 88 33 - - 10 - -
Zhou Ruijin (note 2) Fas (i) 47 1N 22 n - il 01
Lin Zhiming (note 1) WA (W) 44 10 20 10 - 10 -
HsLI Wal Man, Helen wEq 1) 44 10 22 10 - 10 -

(note 1)
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Notes:.

1. Mr. Fan Youyuan, Mr. Zheng Patrick, Mr. Huang Wei, Mr. Song Yijun,
Mr. Lin Zhiming and Ms. Hsu Wai Man, Helen have resigned with effect
from 3 May 2018.

2. Mr. Zhou Ruijin has resigned with effect from 29 June 2018.

3. Mr. Lo Ken Bon, Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson, Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David
and Mr. Chia Kee Loong, Lawrence have been appointed with effect
from 16 April 2018.

4. Mr. Tai Benedict has been appointed with effect from 29 June 2018.

5. Mr. Madden Hugh Douglas and Mr. Chapman David James have been
appointed with effect from 22 August 2018.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

On 28 December 2018, BDO Limited has resigned as the auditor of
the Company and PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the
auditor of the Company.

The remuneration in respect of services provided by the external
auditors to the Group in 2018 is summarised as follows:
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1. SBANTUSE A - Patrick ZhengsE 4 ~ BHESEAL K
EEEE MEREERBEHFLIER =T
—N\EFERA=HEHE

2. AmE AN T N\FANA-THLAEIT-

3. Lo Ken Bon L4 « &IRIBSL & » &K STAE KH
HEA4EDR T \FENA+BEST -

4. HUELEEER T~ \EXNA-TIAERT -

5. Madden Hugh Douglas %z 4 % Chapman David
JamesEEBERZT—N\FNAZ+ZAEZF -

BB &

RZB-N\F+ZA=Z+N\B BBLEEE
FHENEBPI AR AR EBEARRZEE - RE
REGE ST BV B PTER T RA R BAZEED

BRINEZBEIT N — T — \F Rk E R HRE
BBt an T

Fees paid/
Services rendered payable
BR A5 12 it e ERER
RMB
N
PricewaterhouseCoopers B KESTHEMERAT
Audit service RS 6,829,484
Non-audit service FEF AT AR TS
Fee for accounting advisory service EASHHARENER 682,948
BDO Limited ERLEEREMERAT
Non-audit service TR AR
Fee for agreed-upon procedures on the interim BTV BERGBERFNEA 60,516

financial information
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, Mr. Tam Tak Kei, Raymond had been the Company
secretary of the Company for the period from 1 January 2018 to 15
April 2018. Mr. Chan Shi Pong, Bon was appointed as the Company
secretary of the Company with effect from 16 April 2018. He was
then resigned on 28 February 2019 and Ms. Chau Wing Kei was
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company since then.
Both Mr. Chan Shi Pong, Bon and Ms. Chau Wing Kei have satisfied
the requirements in respect of receiving professional trainings under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements and ensuring that the financial statements are
prepared as to give a true and fair view and on a going concern basis
in accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable
financial reporting standards.

Auditor’'s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 71 to page 84
of this Annual Report.

Senior Management

The senior management has provided the Board with sufficient
explanation and necessary information enabling the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

Senior management has provided regular update to all members of
the Board to enable proper discharge of duties by the Board as a
whole or each member individually by giving them balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board of the Company has an overall responsibility for setting
forth proper risk culture and risk appetite for the Group. The Board
through the Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee
are also devoted to maintaining sound and effective internal controls
and risk management of the Group on an ongoing basis so as to
safeguard the assets of the Group against unauthorised use or
disposal, keep appropriate accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information to be used or published within the
scope of business, and ensure compliance with applicable laws and
requirements.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
comprise, among others, the relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management procedures, a well-
established organizational structure with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and authority. Each department is accountable for its
daily operations and is required to implement the business strategies
and policies adopted by the Board from time to time.

During the Review Period, the Group has engaged an external
independent professional (the “internal auditor”) to carry out the
Group's internal audit function with a view to reviewing its risk
management and internal control systems and further enhance its
risk management and internal control systems as appropriate.

The internal auditor assisted the Board, the Audit Committee and the
Risk Management Committee in reviewing the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems and performing its
functions during the Review Period following an annual audit plan
and submitting the internal audit report to the Board, the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. The Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee provide
independent review on effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group, respectively, and give their
recommendation to the Board. The Board is responsible for
reviewing the internal audit report and approving policies and
procedures designed by the management.

The Group has been maintaining procedures in handling and
dissemination of inside information in an accurate and secure
manner and to avoid possible mishandling of inside information
within the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREAMES

R e B R e A R BE 4R
ARREEE2EEBEREASENEE R R b
ERRBEE EFSEERREERZEERE
RZEERNBEEFASER2MERNAR
ZH RREBRER  IMREAEEEERIRER
BOEMRHHE SR Z SNSRI CHAREMHRA
SN BERHERBHREANERRTIZZA - A
K MR 8 ST AR MR E ©

AEERREERAFEZE RS H (EHETE) A
R BERAREEURRREEREFAE
B B AR EEH 80 B E RN AR -
EMPABEEAREE  UATRATEEFSR
AN ZE TS SRS N UK

REBEHA  AEEEBIMNSELIEXAL(A
AR BIEN ) T AR B R R AR E AR R - A B
HEREENAIEEE RS WiEEtE— 200
SRERMRERE R AR RS o

NEZBEMBSESEE - EXEZES
ZEgRIRREENANEZENERE  RE
BHANEREERATINNTEaBELRE
=22 ERZESLERERZESEIANIE
ZHE - ERZEERRRERZESNHIBA
SENE R L AR EIRN A R ETE L AR
A TREFERIFSNEEEZ EFER
BEEMANR ST RE RIEEBERETHBER
TR e

A5 — AR DR 2 5 M0 IR A
PORB AR IR « Rl A B YRR AR BT
T -

mEFEEEARAR 2018FFH 41



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREAMES

The Board had reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2018 through the Audit
Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the management of
the Company and the internal auditor, and considers the systems
are effective and adequate. Such review covers (i) all material
controls, including but not limited to financial, operational and
compliance controls; (ii) risk management functions; and (iii) the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in
connection with the accounting and financial reporting function of
the Group and their training programmes and relevant budget.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in
operational system and to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The systems are
designed to further safeguard the Group's assets, maintain
appropriate accounting records and financial reporting, achieve
efficiency of operations and ensure compliance with the Listing Rules
and all other applicable laws and regulations.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR THE
HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ") and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside
information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless
the information falls within any of the Safe Harbours as provided in
the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot
be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Group would immediately disclose the information to the public. The
Group is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or
false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board endeavors to develop and maintains continuing
relationships and effective communications with the shareholders
and investors of the Company. The Company communicates with
the shareholders and investors through various channels including
press releases and publication of interim and annual reports,
announcements, circulars and other corporate communications and
publications available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and the Company.
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The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
direct communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company encourages the participation of the shareholders through
annual general meetings and other general meetings where the
shareholders meet and exchange views with the Board, and to
exercise their right to vote at meetings. The Company shall arrange
notices of meetings and circulars containing details on proposed
resolutions to be sent to the shareholders. At general meetings,
separate resolutions are proposed on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors. All proposed ordinary
resolutions were passed by way of poll at the meeting.

The Board always ensures that shareholders’ and investors’ views
are heard and understood, and welcomes their questions and
concerns relating to the Group’s management and governance. The
Company's website provides email address and telephone number
to enable the shareholders to make any enquiries and concerns to
the Board. Shareholders may also at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board by addressing to the Company by post or
by email. There were no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2018.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening extraordinary general meetings

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
any shareholders, at the date of deposit of the requisition, holding
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board to convene such meeting shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings by shareholders

Pursuant to article 113 of the articles of association of the Company,
no person (other than a retiring Director) shall, unless recommended
by the Board for election, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting unless a notice in writing of the
intention to propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office of the
Company no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least 7 days. The procedures for
shareholders of the Company to propose a person for election as a
Director are posted on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders could direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited. The investment community may at any time make
a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available and we would provide designated
contact person, email addresses and hotline of the Company to
enable them to make any query in respect of the Company.

Shareholders and potential investors are welcome to communicate
with the Company by email to IR@bc.group or telephone at +852
3965 6069. Shareholders may also put forward their written enquiries
to the Board at 32/F, Lee Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong to the attention of the Board.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is committed to improving our Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") performance by upholding good corporate
governance standards, protecting our environment, engaging the
community and promoting social integration.

This is the third ESG report of the Group, which has been prepared in
compliance with the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and based on actual conditions of the Company.
Adhering to the reporting principles of materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency, this report aims at sharing our
performance in aspect of sustainable development and summarizing
our efforts made on sustainability during the year ended 31
December 2018. Our reporting boundary is limited to, Hong Kong and
China unless otherwise specified.

The board of directors has approved the content of the report. We
value your feedback regarding the review and our overall
sustainability practices. Please provide your comments by email to
IR@bc.group.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
A1 EMISSIONS

We are committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which we operate. To
our best knowledge, we have complied with all relevant
laws and regulations regarding environmental issues in
which we operate during the reporting year. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, we measured and
managed our environmental performance in several
aspects throughout our operations.
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AIR EMISSIONS

Air pollution has become one of the major critical
problems in cities. We reckon that every company should
take its responsibility to tackle this problem. The Group
has never been engaged in industrial or agricultural
production and is a service enterprise. The source of
emissions was daily office work in general office
environment, and the emissions could be categorized as
greenhouse gas and poison-free wastes (domestic
waste). The Group had no other harmful waste emission
to the atmosphere.

Our air emissions generated mainly from gasoline
consumption of our vehicles in China in 2018 (with 2017
comparative data) are as follows:

[B& SR Bk Bk
BERBFMZERISRO AW ES —
HEXZRMRIENEE - HARSEM
REGAEEFREERE - AEE
VELETERRERLEE MRS
B - I RRR—RPAER
ETHEENA  BERAAERER
|mEREY (AR - YERMPIR
EARNWEEED °

—E-N\F AEETERERET
R fik P vt 7 2 A A B SR BRI (B —
T LFHOBIEHL) T

Air Emissions Unit 2018 2017
BESR B B —E-N\F —E-tF
Total NO, Emissions tonnes 1.39 x 107 9x1073
RACMBHNE M8
Total SO, Emissions tonnes 3.65x10* 7.2x10°
e LB EEnE W
Total PM Emissions tonnes 1.33x102 6.75x10*
R RN E 7

The Group continued to strengthen its existing business
and also aimed at identifying areas of potential
improvements focusing on business development and
accompanying growth, more frequent business travels
and customer visits had caused increment on the usage
of vehicles, and subsequently increased the air emissions
during the reporting year.
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GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND ENERGY
CONSERVATION

The impact of global climate change is a challenge that
businesses and organizations around the world must
face and address. Our greenhouse gas emissions are
mainly from direct emissions from gasoline consumption
of our vehicles and indirect emissions generated by using
outsourced electricity. The following table shows the
figures of our greenhouse gas emissions during the
reporting year (with 2017 comparative data):
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions Unit 2018 2017
BERBEBEN B —E-N\F —E—+tF
Total Scope 1 direct Emissions tCOe 58.62 22.54
HENVEEH B E WE —E(LIRE

Total Scope 2 indirect Emissions tCOe 51.65 9.68
HE2MER e E M iR E &

Total Scope 3 Other Indirect Emissions tCOe 31.99 0
HEIEMBEE RS WE—S(LIRE 2

Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions tCOe 142.26 32.22

BRERBHNEE

The overall increment on greenhouse gas emissions
during the reporting year was mainly due to that the
emission factors adopted for calculations were different
from that used in 2017. The Group strategically expanded
its digital assets and block chain-related technology
business and actively planned and implemented the
necessary operational infrastructure such as expansion
of offices spaces, which leads to more consumption on
electricity. In addition, the higher emissions under the
Scope 3 were resulting from more business air travel by
employees.
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A2 USE OF RESOURCES

The Group strives to maximize resource efficiency and is
gradually transforming itself into a low-carbon business
model. In 2018, total direct energy consumption from use
of gasoline was 24,839 liters. In addition, total indirect
energy consumption from the use of electricity was
65,472 kWh. The Group's total water consumption was
55,93 me.

A2 BRFER

AEBEBNIRSERRE - BLBR
BEIREERN - RZZT—\F - A"
HERELNERERAEAER
24,8397 - A BELRIRELIRER
AER5ANZTRE  #BRAKERE
55,9337 75K ©

Types of Resources Unit 2018 2017
&RER By —E-N\F —E—tF
Gasoline liter 24,839 10,000
VUH F+

Purchased Electricity kwWh 65,472 31,025
SNBE N F R B

Tap Water m? 55.93 296
B 2RK SR

The increment on gasoline and electricity consumptions
were explained in section A1 above. During the reporting
year, a major subsidiary of the Group in the Mainland
China had relocated its office, the data of water usage
was unable to be collected by the subsidiary after office
relocation, which mainly caused to the reduction on
numbers of the water usage.

To reduce our carbon footprint, we have implemented
the following measures:

We use energy-efficient equipment and lighting devices
in our offices and turn on and off only when use and
after. We set a higher temperature for air conditioners in
summer time and a lower temperature in winter time.
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WASTE MANAGEMENT AND REDUCTION

We work diligently in reducing our waste produced from
operations by sorting of waste, and to reuse materials
wherever possible. We recognize the importance of
waste reduction and waste separation at source for
recycling. We have put continuous efforts to implement
various waste management initiatives in our office
operations. We have implemented various waste
reduction measures as follows:

We reduce paper consumption by using electronic
means (e.g. email) for communication, sourcing our
office paper with recycled content and printing only
when necessary and reusing single-sided printed paper
and stationeries.

Apart from above resources management, no significant
amount of hazardous waste was produced and emitted
to water and land. Therefore, the Group does not collect
the data of hazardous waste. The following table shows
the figures of material consumption in our business
operations:

RIR - g lERRE
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Material Consumption Unit 2018 2017
FTEHE By —E-NF —E—+tF
Paper Consumption tonnes 0.89 0.4
A4 M8
Toner Consumption pieces 32 18
i EfEE &l

As the result of the Group’s business expansion, the
paper and toner consumption had been increased.
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A3 THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES
Due to the features of the service industry, business
activities of the Group had no significant impact on
environment and natural resources. Meanwhile, we
recognize that businesses must take responsibility for
their industry’s impacts on the environment and we
should bear the responsibilities and fulfil the obligations
of protecting them and making appropriate use.

We are committed to applying industry best practices
and comply with legislation, establish and review safety,
security and environment objectives and targets, use
energy and materials efficiently and reduce waste and
emissions and communicate our environmental
protection policy to all staff.

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

We recognize the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and risk of non-compliance with the laws and
regulations regarding social issues. We have complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the business and operation of the Group during this reporting
year.

B1 EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES

The achievements made by the Group were inseparable
from the joint efforts of all staff members, whilst the
Group needed to join hands with them for its future
development. Therefore, employee benefits were
regarded as one of the primary objectives with a view to
rewarding all employees who had contributed to the
Group.

The Group has adopted comprehensive human resources
manual which includes policies and procedures
applicable to staffs. All employees are treated fairly in
regards to recruitment, training and development,
appraisal of work performance, promotions,
remuneration and benefits. Staff dismissals are based on
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance or relevant local
laws and regulations, as well as the requirements
stipulated in the employment contracts.
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The Group is committed to providing equal opportunity
for all employees and applicants without regard to race,
color, religion, national origin, sex, age, marital status,
sexual orientation, disability, political affiliation, personal
appearance, family responsibilities, matriculation or any
other characteristic protected under local law.

The Group provides a competitive package of benefits to
all eligible employees according to their job requirement
and individual performance. The work of each employee
is reviewed on an ongoing basis to provide a systematic
means of evaluating performance.

The Group was committed to creating an excellent
working environment. Comfortable offices were located
in convenient locations with pleasing landscape. Based
on the features of the principal business, the Group set
appropriate working hours and rest breaks for all staff
members. Working hours could also be flexibly adjusted
according to job positions for adapting to different
functions. We also provided paid marriage leave, causal
leave and compassionate leave in addition to statutory
holidays and distributed welfare items to employees on
traditional holidays.

As at 31 December 2018 (with 2017 comparative data),
the Group employs 260 staff in total.
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Workforce statistic by gender, age group, employment
type and employment category:

RIUER - FiRER  XEREBERLEE
AR DB B R BT

Staff Number
BIHAH
2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—t5F
Breakdown by Gender &M R85
Employees — Female BE — 111 52
Employees — Male BE — 5% 149 21
Break down by Age Group EFiRARE 5
Employees Aged <30 B B F#k <30 85 34
Employees Aged 30-50 & 8 F#° 30-50 163 36
Employees Aged >50 & 8 F#>50 12 3
Breakdown by Employment Type RS EERES
Employees — Full-time BE — 28 256 73
Employees — Non Full-time B8 — 32 4 0
Break down by Employment BZEMARE D

Category

Employees — Management EE — &R 16 5
Employees — Manager BE —KIBAE 143 17
Employees — General EE —— 101 51
HEALTH AND SAFETY B2 BERZE

Ensuring health and safety of our employees is one of
our prime responsibilities.

The Group endeavors to provide a safe and healthy work
environment for employees to protect them from work-
related accidents or injuries. In addition, the Group
provides annual health checks for employees.

During the reporting period, the Group ensures full
compliance with relevant occupational health and safety
legislations of Hong Kong, the PRC, and other relevant
legislations. The Group has maintained a healthy and safe
working environment with no occurrence of work-related
fatalities. As the Group is principally engaged in providing
brand communication services, park area services and
digital asset and blockchain-related technology service,
the Group believes that the occupational hazards are
relatively low.

52 BRANDING CHINA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

BREEREILZEERMNEEE
Tz—-

AEEH N HEERAZ 2 REZFEN
THERE  BRREFBRLETHEREN
BINKBE - N ARBR/ETER
HEERBERSE -

RBERA - AEEERRZ2ETE
B PEEREBEER R Z2ED
REAMARED] - NEBGRIEEL
ENTFRR UEZRERTIFERH
HISLTEH - IRASEEEENEER
Hon AR - BRREEBFE
B (& SR AR R R AR TS - MR
RRBEEZTHYRE -



B3

B4

B5

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group provided employees with training and
development opportunities, with the aim of making
progress with them. In the course of the daily business,
the Group purchased books and other materials related
to its business for learning in accordance with the needs
of its employees. Sharing and exchanges as well as
training and examinations of industry related
certifications for employees were arranged accordingly.

LABOR STANDARDS

The Group prohibits the use of child labor and forced or
compulsory labor at all its units and suppliers. No
employee is made to work against his/her will or work as
forced labor, or subject to corporal punishment or
coercion of any type related to work.

The Group has zero-tolerance to employment of child
labor and forced labor by our suppliers. The Group is not
aware of any non-compliance with relevant rules and
regulations on preventing child or forced labor.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group conducted comprehensive inspection on its
suppliers in the areas of production and management to
ensure they were capable of sustainable development in
terms of operation, society and environment.

Regular reviews on existing suppliers were also
conducted to ensure they were in comply with codes of
conduct related to anticorruption, bribery, etc., with all
conflicts of interests (including potential conflicts)
declared. Products provided by the Group were
categorized as services. Only accurate description for
services was used in our marketing activities so that
customers were able to make informed decisions.
Relevant laws and regulations as well as customer
confidentiality obligations were strictly complied to
provide quality year-round services.
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Bé6

B7

B8

COMMITMENT TO SERVICE
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to honesty, integrity and fairness
in its business operations. It supports fair trade and
operation practices and ensure all marketing and
communication materials are updated and in compliance
with government regulations in the regions where it
operates. The Group adheres to the principles set out in
the industry best practices, which outlines high standards
of health and safety in workplace to avoid any associated
risks to the Company’s business activities. The Group is
not aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations on health and safety, advertising
and privacy matter related to series provided during the
reporting period.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group is committed to maintaining high standard of
integrity when doing business as we strongly believe that
it is essential to meeting the expectations of our
stakeholders.

The Group promotes integrity and prevents unethical
pursuits. The Group has implemented an effective
whistle-blowing policy for reporting fraud, corruption,
bribery, extortion and money laundering. We encourage
the reporting of suspected business irregularities and
provide clear channels specifically for this purpose. When
suspected wrongdoings are identified, such as breach of
duty, abuse of power, receiving bribes, staff should
report to the Board of Directors for investigation and
verification, and report to the regulator and/or to law
enforcement authority when necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there are no
concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees during the
reporting period.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group encourages staff to take part in community
welfare and voluntary work and our Directors actively
maintain communication with non-governmental
organizations to understand community needs for the
sake of fulfilling its responsibility and giving back to the
society.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFRREE

The directors of Branding China Group Limited (the “Directors”)
submit their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 20
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 212 to 214 of this
annual report. During the Year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) were principally engaged in the provision for advertising
and business park area management services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), and the digital asset and blockchain
related technology business in Hong Kong.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by
operating segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 85.

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy. The declaration and
payment of dividends shall be determined at the sole discretion of
the Board. Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account, inter alia, the following factors:

o the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

o shareholders’ interests;

o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the other members of the Group;

o the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and financial covenants to which the Group is subject;

o possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness;

o any restrictions on payment of dividends or other convents on
the Group's financial ratios that may be imposed by the
Group's lenders;
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o the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

o liquidity position and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend;

o taxation considerations;

o statutory and regulatory restrictions;

o general business conditions and strategies;

o general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; and

o other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are set out in the Chief
Executive Officer’'s Statement and the Management Discussion and
Analysis of this Annual Report. The review forms part of the Report
of the Directors.

Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis of this
Annual Report. The review forms part of the Report of the Directors.

Detailed discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders, and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
this Annual Report. The discussions form part of the Report of the
Directors.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTION AND SHARE
AWARD

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share award
and share option during the Year are set out in Notes 33, 41 and 42,
respectively to the consolidated financial statements on page 234,
page 247 to page 248 and page 249 to page 251, respectively of this
annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements and the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 92 of this annual report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company did not have any distributable
reserve computed in accordance with the Companies Law of
Cayman Islands.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year, no charitable donations have been made by the
Group (2017: nil).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 255 and page 256 of this
annual report.

This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has not redeemed any of its listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2018. Neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries, has purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2018.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS

As at 16 April 2018, Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson and Mr. Lo Ken Bon
were appointed as executive Directors, and Mr. Chau Shing Yim,
David and Mr. Chia Kee Loong, Lawrence were appointed as
independent non-executive Directors. Details of the changes of
Directors are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 16
April 2018.

As at 3 May 2018, Mr. Fan Youyuan, Mr. Zheng Patrick, Mr. Huang
Wei and Mr. Song Yijun resigned as executive Directors, and Mr. Lin
Zhiming and Ms. Hsu Wai Man, Helen resigned as independent non-
executive Directors. On the same day, Mr. Fang Bin resigned as the
chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”) but remained as an
executive Director. Details of the changes of Directors are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 3 May 2018.

As at 29 June 2018, Mr. Tai Benedict was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Zhou Ruijin resigned as
an independent non-executive Director. Details of the changes of
Directors are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 29
June 2018.

As at 22 August 2018, Mr. Madden Hugh Douglas and Mr. Chapman
David James were appointed as executive Directors. Details of the
changes of Directors are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 22 August 2018.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lo Ken Bon
(appointed with effect from 16 April 2018)
Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson
(appointed with effect from 16 April 2018)
Mr. Madden Hugh Douglas
(appointed with effect from 22 August 2018)
Mr. Chapman David James
(appointed with effect from 22 August 2018)
Mr. Fang Bin
Mr. Fan Youyuan (resigned with effect from 3 May 2018)
Mr. Zheng Patrick (resigned with effect from 3 May 2018)
Mr. Huang Wei (resigned with effect from 3 May 2018)
Mr. Song Yijun (resigned with effect from 3 May 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David
(appointed with effect from 16 April 2018)
Mr. Chia Kee Loong, Lawrence
(appointed with effect from 16 April 2018)
Mr. Tai Benedict
(appointed with effect from 29 June 2018)
Mr. Zhou Ruijin (resigned with effect from 29 June 2018)
Mr. Lin Zhiming (resigned with effect from 3 May 2018)
Ms. Hsu Wai Man, Helen (resigned with effect from 3 May 2018)

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Lo
Ken Bon and Mr. Chia Kee Loong, Lawrence will retire from office as
Directors and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election
as Directors at the AGM, whereas pursuant to Article 112 of the
Articles of Association, each of Mr. Madden Hugh Douglas, Mr.
Chapman David James and Mr. Tai Benedict, will retire from office as
Directors and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election
as Directors at the AGM.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
CONFIRMATIONS OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from all independent non-executive Directors and considers them to
be independent. Under the terms of their appointment, the
independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term and are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Articles of Association.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
The change of Directors’ information as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules is set out below:

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson has resigned as a non-executive Director
of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (stock code: 376) and as a non-
executive Director of KuangChi Science Limited (stock code: 439) on
16 November 2018. He has also resigned as an independent non-
executive Director of Meitu, Inc (stock code: 1357) on 31 December
2018. All companies are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David has resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Richly Field China Development Limited (stock
code: 313) on 3 September 2018. He has also resigned as an
independent non-executive director of Asia Grocery Distribution
Limited (stock code: 8413) on 31 August 2018. All companies are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or about
the execution of their duty in their offices or in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out and maintained insurance against the
liability and costs associated with defending any proceedings which
may be brought against the Directors of the Company. The level of
coverage is renewed annually.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has entered into a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the interests of Directors
of the Company in businesses which might compete with the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 were as follows:

Mr. Lo Ken Bon, Mr. Madden Hugh Douglas and Mr. Chapman David
James, being Directors of the Company, are collectively the
controlling shareholders of a private group engaged in the similar
business of digital asset and blockchain related technology as the
Group. Although some of the business carried out by this private
group is similar to the business carried out by the Group, they have a
different strategy and are targeted towards a different customer
segment. The business of the private group are targeted primarily
towards retail-oriented and non-professional Investors and as well as
early participants of the Digital Assets industry while the Group
business is targeting towards financial institutions, professional
investors and corporates clients.

Save as disclose above, none of the Directors or any of their
respective associates, has engaged in any business that competes
or may compete with the business of the Group, or has any other
conflict of interest with the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantive part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior
management are disclosed in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on page 23 of this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share award scheme and the share option scheme of
the Company as set out in Notes 41 and 42 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively, there were no other equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or
that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 or subsisted as
at 31 December 2018.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 10 April 2012.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
eligible persons, to provide additional incentive to them and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

The Board are authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject to
the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant options to subscribe
the Shares to, inter alia, any employees (full-time or part-time),
Directors, consultants, advisors, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, clients, business partners or service providers of the Group.
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The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of approving the scheme (i.e. a total of 20,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 7.65% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report). The Company may at
any time refresh such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval
and issue of a circular in compliance with the Listing Rules, provided
that the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the then Shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options (including both exercised and outstanding options) by any
participant under the Share Option Scheme, in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the issued shares of
the Company.

An option may be exercised by the grantee in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the
date of grant and subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof. The options gave the holder the rights to subscribe for
ordinary shares in the Company. A nhominal consideration of HKD1.00
was payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an option. Options
were lapsed in three months if the employee leaves the Group.

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period for
which an option must be held and performance targets must be
achieved before an option can be exercised.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option; (i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares on the date of grant of the option.

The Share Option Scheme became unconditional upon the Listing
Date on 27 April 2012 and shall be valid for a period of ten years
commencing on 10 April 2012, subject to the early termination
provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.

On 31 December 2018, 17,148,889 share options were granted under
the Share Option Scheme, while the remaining 2,851,111 share
options were subsequently granted on 18 January 2019.
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Up to the date of this report, 20,000,00 share options had been
granted, representing about 7.65% of the shares in issue while no
share options had been exercised, cancelled or lapsed or were
outstanding.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

2014 Share Award Scheme

On 29 September 2014, the Company adopted an employees’ share
award scheme (the “2014 Share Award Scheme”), which was
terminated after the approval of the Board of the Company on 21
August 2018. As of 31 December 2018, no shares were awarded
under the 2014 Share Award Scheme.

2018 Share Award Plan
The Company has adopted a new share award plan (the “2018
Share Award Plan”) on 21 August 2018.

The purposes of the 2018 Share Award Plan are to recognise and
reward the contribution of certain Eligible Participants to the growth
and development of the Group, to give incentives to Eligible
Participants in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group, and to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

The Company can allot and issue up to 5% of the then issued share
capital of the Company (i.e. 13,080,377 Shares, representing 5% of
total issued shares as at the date of the report). The Plan limit of 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company can be refreshed by the
Board from time to time the subject to the approval of the
Independent Shareholders in general meeting.

Since the date of adoption of 2018 Share Award Plan (i.e. 21 August
2018) and up to the date of this report, 9,836,474 Shares have been
issued, representing about 3.76% of the shares in issue.

Acheson Limited (“Acheson”) has been appointed as the trustee for
the administration of 2018 Share Award Plan. Acheson shall hold the
shares for the benefit of the selected participants who are not
connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company. Acheson shall not be entitled to exercise any voting rights
in respect of any Shares held under the trust.

Details and other principal terms of the 2018 Share Award Plan are

set out in the announcements of the Company dated 21 August 2018
and 7 September 2018.
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THE INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or required to be entered in the register
of the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

of the Company
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EERRSTRAERA D ANIEMAE
BEEZRG  MEROKRES 2ERD
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RIZB-N\FT+_A=+t—H ARFAEEL&
BITBRABRAR A SR EMERNEBER(EE
REm MG RGIZEXVER) KD - FREER D &
BEHEET  BARBESIMEERIIEXVEET
R 8nERAME AN E MR AR KR (B
FRARIRE 55 M B IR 0B BGOSR S E R RK
BREBHEMERZIAR)  RRIEESFLH
BEEPIEI2GEABLNARRELCMANEE
KoR B iRIE E TR AU SR+ P E ey BT 1T
AEFETESFXHNERETRIAMERNRR] R
B PR s FORB AT
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Number of Ordinary Shares Held Number of underlying shares held % of the

FsEERYE FisEBRA#E issued share

Personal Family Corporate Personal Family Grand capital of

Name of Director Interest Interest  Interests Total Interests Interests Total Total the Company

PN

ERTRE

EEpg BB BARER REED HEER @zt B A RS RERR Bzt B&Ac Bk

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, - - 187,536,194 187,536,194 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 188,536,194 74.48%
Johnson (Note (i) (Note (ii))
SRIES A (Bt () (HiE (i)

Mr. Lo Ken Bon - - - - 2,000,000 17,111,1M 311,111 3,111,111 1.19%

Lo Ken Bonst 4 (Note (i) (Note (iii))
(BieE@m) (W i)

Mr. Madden Hugh Douglas - - - - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.76%
Madden Hugh Douglas (Note (ii))
Vit (H (i)

Mr. Chapman David James - - - - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.76%
Chapman David James (Note (ii))
Vit (i (i)

Mr. Chau Shing Yim, - - - - 200,000 - 200,000 200,000 0.08%
David (Note (ii))
BERTE (i (i)

Mr. Chia Kee Loong, - - - - 200,000 - 200,000 200,000 0.08%
Lawrence (Note (ii))
AERERE (i (i)

Mr. Tai Benedict - - - - 200,000 - 200,000 200,000 0.08%
HWELAE (Note (ii))
(Hzt (i)
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Notes:

(i) Mr. Ko is deemed to be interested in the 187,536,194 ordinary shares
of the Company held by East Harvest Global Limited under the SFO by
Virtue of his interests in Colour Day Limited.

(i) These represent the share options of the Company granted to the
respective Directors under the Company’s Share Option Scheme,
details of which are disclosed in Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(i)~ This represents the share options of the Company granted to the
spouse of Mr. Lo under the Company’s Share Option Scheme, details
of which are disclosed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclose above, on 31 December 2018, none of the Directors
had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations which
had been recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section titled “THE INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS” above and in the share option
disclosed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

On 31 December 2018, other than the interests and short positions
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company as disclosed in
the section titled "THE INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS" above, the following interests of 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of
interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO:
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FERRREMALTARGES 2B

RIZE-NF+-A=+—B BREXEZF
R&EEBITHABRARR B SAEFBEERZ R
0 AR REFZEELRR ] —EAE
ZARREZRGRITHRAB ZERRARIN
AT ARRB S BEITIRAZ 5% A Bz It 8
RARBREE S RBMEEPIEBIHATFEZ
ERERMA

Number of Ordinary Shares Held

g BERER
% of the
Direct Through issued share
Beneficially controlled capital of
Name owned Corporation Total the Company
AARCBIT
HE LB BEEERER EBRZEEE At BAEZBDL
East Harvest Global Limited 187,536,194 - 187,536,194 71.69%
Wise Aloe Limited - 187,536,194 187,536,194 71.69%
(Note (i)
(H1a()
Bell Haven Limited - 187,536,194 187,536,194 71.69%
(Note (if)
(K& (i)
Colour Day Limited - 187,536,194 187,536,194 71.69%
(Note (iif)
(K3 (i)
Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson 1,000,000 187,536,194 188,536,194 74.48%
SIRIEL A (Note () (Note (iv))
(K13t v) (K3 (v)
Notes: Bt -

(i) Wise Aloe Limited is deemed to be interested in the 187,536,194
ordinary shares of the Company held by East Harvest Global Limited
under the SFO by virtue of its interests in East Harvest Global Limited.

(i) Bell Haven Limited is deemed to be interested in the 187,536,194
ordinary shares of the Company held by East Harvest Global Limited
under the SFO by virtue of its interests in Wise Aloe Limited.

Bell Haven Limited is held as to 30.82% by Mr. Lo Ken Bon, and 22.09%
by each of Mr. Madden Hugh Douglas and Mr. Chapman David James.

0]

(if)

Wise Aloe Limited H A East Harvest Global
Limited % & # & m #5158 /% 7 East Harvest Global
Limited BIZFEH R B E KA EFER Z AR A
187,536,194 & & Ak B #E e ©

Bell Haven Limited [F £ 7 Wise Aloe Limited # &
HEZR AR A FA East Harvest Global Limited 18 4%
&5 R ERAIPTRA 2 AR 187,536,194 A%
LB PR A R o

Bell Haven Limited f1 Lo Ken Bon 5t 4 + Madden

Hugh Douglas %t 4 & Chapman David James 5t 4
2B A 30.82% - 22.09% K 22.09% HE2E
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(i) Colour Day Limited is deemed to be interested in the 187,536,194
ordinary shares of the Company held by East Harvest Global Limited
under the SFO by virtue of its interests in East Harvest Global Limited.

(iv)  Mr. Ko is deemed to be interested in the 187,536,194 ordinary shares
of the Company held by East Harvest Global Limited under the SFO by
virtue of its interests in Colour Day Limited.

(v This represents the share options of the Company granted to Mr. Ko
under the Company’s Share Option Scheme details of which are
disclosed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2018, no other person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company whose
interests are set out in the section titled “THE INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS” above) had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CLIENTS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to
the Group’s major clients and suppliers were as follows:

(1)  The aggregate amount of revenue attributable to the Group’s
five largest clients represented approximately 73.4% of the
Group’s total revenue. The amount of revenue from the
Group's largest client represented approximately 30.1% of the
Group's total revenue.

(2)  The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers represented approximately 78.0% of the
Group’s total purchases. The amount of purchases from the
Group's largest supplier represented approximately 29.5% of
the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest clients and/or five
largest suppliers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 238 of this annual report. The related party
transactions in relation to the key management personnel
remuneration as disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements include connected transactions exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.95 of the Listing Rules. Save as
the aforesaid, the Directors consider that all other related party
transactions disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements did not constitute the definition of “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” (as the case
may be) under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are therefore not
required to comply with any of the reporting, annual review,
announcement, or independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with all applicable reporting, annual review, announcement or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for all connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practice of the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with relevant
requirements could lead to adverse impact on business operation
and financial position of the Group. The Board as a whole is
responsible to ensure the Group is in compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company. To
the best knowledge of the Board, the Group was unaware of any
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations during the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the amount of public float as required under the Listing
Rules as at the latest practicable date prior to the issuance of this
annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE FINANCIAL POSITION DATE
The Group did not have any other material events occurred
subsequent to the financial position date.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee together with the management have reviewed
the accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters
in connection with the preparation of the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.

AUDITOR

As at 28 December 2018, BDO Limited has resigned as the auditor of
the Company and PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"”) has been
appointed as the auditor of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 of the Group have been audited by PwC who will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

Branding China Group Limited
Lo Ken Bon

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN AR S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BRANDING CHINA GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Branding China Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
set out on pages 85 to 254, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

We draw attention to Notes 3.1 and 3.2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which describes the risks and uncertainties with respect
to blockchain technology and the evolving nature of the digital asset
markets. The currently unregulated and immature nature of digital
asset markets including custody and trading mechanisms, the
dependency on information technology integrity and security, as well
as valuation and volume volatility all subject the digital asset trading
business of the Group to unigue risks. These conditions in our view
are of such importance that they are fundamental to users’
understanding of the Group’s digital asset trading business and the
consolidated financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Digital asset transactions and balances
o Working capital sufficiency assessment

o Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract
assets with respect to PRC businesses
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
FTEEFBHE
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FEFIBE@®)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNAEEEEEGEE

Digital asset transactions and balances

Refer to Notes 2.15, 2.25, 3.5, 4(a), 7, 21 and 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BREGRAMBHREMNE215225-354@) 721
K29 o

In the second half of 2018, the Group has commenced its
over-the-counter (“OTC") trading business to trade digital
assets with corporate and individual customers.
RZEBE-—N\FTHF  EEBFREBEBSIRS ([1HINZ
FNRGEBNRDPERFEARFPETHTEERS °

Digital assets that the Group deals with are
cryptographically secured assets for which encryption
technigues are used to regulate the generation of units of
currency. Supply and demand determine the value of
digital assets which can be extremely volatile in this
emerging industry.
EEEMEENSTEEBNTAEE - GRNE KT
TDRAREEEEELASEMN - HEAETHFEENEE -
e ET TR P EHBRETRE

Our procedures on the Group's digital asset transactions
and balances mainly included:
BMERESENETEER I REARDITHEFEE
BIE

o Understood, evaluated and tested the key controls,
including automated and manual controls, and
segregation of duties in the execution of these
controls, in the following areas:

o TEE - FTE KA A TSRS - REa
RAFES - RATEHOBRES T :

— information technology general controls, over
the accounting system and key operating
systems and applications that are considered
relevant to the financial statement reporting
process,

— BBt A RENEREE
HIEFEENSHTEERGRNEREERR
KR

— onboarding of counterparties and liquidity

providers;
— XRSGHEHFRRBEREENRERE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

FEFITBHE@®)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

TEFGSBE RANESNAEE T EETEE
Technical complexity — wallet generation, management and security
TR RE 1t (including private keys and recovery seeds) ,

Digital assets are exchangeable directly between two
parties, anywhere in the world, through decentralised
networks that carry anonymous transactions. The
anonymity of transactions creates complex technical
challenges. For example, identifying parties involved in a
digital asset transaction and determining whether access
to a private key demonstrates ownership to the digital
assets held in the associated public address on a
blockchain. To address the challenges, the Group
implemented internal controls over different business
processes including, but not limited to, controls over the
onboarding of customers (such as know-your-client and
anti-money laundering checks) and wallet generation,
management and security (including all its public
addresses and private keys).
HFEEMBAASHAMABATRSEREH R EEM
WEERENRS - XHH DAL R T BRI
e - N BRIZEBEFTEERINBETERFHA
FMARTEERRE FWEEARIEEE - BEE
ARZEUE - EEEUTREKBBEETRBES - &
FBETRNEFEFPHEARE (NRBIRNEP KR
BRERE) BEERENK BEIZZ(BREEME AR
HE R L) °

The Group’s OTC trading business involves large volumes
of daily transactions to exploit natural arbitrage
opportunities. The Group develops and maintains its own
proprietary information systems and implements different
processes and internal controls to record transactions
with customers (or “counterparties”) and liquidity
providers (i.e. other OTC operators and exchanges) and to
reconcile the relevant transactions with external data
such as bank statements, blockchain data and third party
exchange account statements.
EEENGINRGEBR I RAEAERZIUEEED
ENgE EEERRNEFEEREZMNEHER I
BT TRRER RASIZESIAGRSERTR (s [RZEHF )
MmmeREE (NEMSINIFEEE R H ) ET
RS - RAEHEBER S EINBEIR (RITHRE - 2%
BWEBERE= AR ZARF LIRS ) #EITHER -
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including physical and logical access controls
testing;

BEAEK - BEEZEH(RELBRRERE
F) - BEYIE RESE RIS

recording of prefunding, withdrawal, trading
and settlements with counterparties and
liquidity providers;

REHERSHF RnBERMHEETHIERN
PR R REE

reconciliations of digital asset transactions
and balances between trade records on
internal operating and accounting systems
with other external sources of data.
HFTEERHREHREE ZRHR AL E
K& 5t B IR R S A0 H fth o3P 5RO 1) U )
E\E °

o Understood and evaluated the accounting policies
adopted by management for its OTC trading
business based on the contractual and business
arrangements with counterparties and liquidity
providers.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
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FEFIBE@®)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FTEENER BMNEANARETEENEE
Accounting complexity o Performed substantive tests of details, on a sample
IR basis, including the following:

IFRSs do not specifically address accounting for digital
assets. Accordingly, for the preparation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, management needs to
apply judgement in determining appropriate accounting
policy based on the facts and circumstances of the
Group's OTC trading business.

BRI BmEEZRNREFI S RBTFTEENGTRE -
Bt ARREEENZEMBHREME BEEAR
BEESEEMNGIRIEBHNEERBAEETEHE €5

IR R R 38 F 7 o

Given the business model of the Group, digital assets are
accounted for as inventories and are measured at fair
value less costs to sell. On the other hand, contracts for
trading of digital assets with the Group’s counterparties
and liquidity providers are accounted for as financial
instruments and measured at fair value through profit or
loss as these contracts can, in practice, be settled net in
cash.

EREEENEBEN  BFEEDRFEARREA
TEAEEKAFTE S—FHHE BESERSEFR
MBEREEETHTEERIZINEN DRI AA
FRWZATEFAEBRTZE  RALS  ZFENER L
AIARE ARG 4EE -

o  ETEEUFAMEAS  BRNATEE:

— checked digital asset trade transactions to the
underlying trade orders and confirmations
sent to the counterparties and liquidity
providers, and circularised independent audit
confirmations to counterparties and liquidity
providers to confirm transactions and
balances;

— BEHBAXRZIENBFTFEEEER SN
REHFRNBEREETERRE - #
BUBARAEDETRHHFRAASR
HENEREER 2 KGR

—  substantively tested the Group's access to the
digital assets held in their wallets by verifying
that the Group was able to cryptographically
sign randomly generated messages using the
private keys of their wallets on the year end
date;,

— BRHESEITRFARARARZESNTLE
HERENNERETREESNZE ¥
REEEOANFENRTEEETES LA

o
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RANESNAEE T EETEE

Furthermore, in determining fair values, management
needs to apply judgement to identify the relevant available
markets, and to consider accessibility to and activity
within those markets in order to identify the principal
digital asset markets dealt with by the Group.

toh - EEE AT ER - BEREES ZER AW RKETAE
AR AMS - WEREEMISHA RIERES) - AR
FEEBEENETEHRFTEEMS -

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recognised income from trading of digital assets of
RMB8,560,749 and had digital asset inventories of
RMB188,739,099 and digital asset liabilities due to
counterparties of RMB180,513,792 as at 31 December
2018.

BHE_ZT—\GFT_A=T—HIEFE E5EERK
BETEERZHBAARES560,7497C  R=ZE—N
F+ A=+ " HmEBHFTEEGFEARK
1887009 R R SGEFHNEFTEEARBARE
180,513,792 7T ©

Due to the complexity and evolving nature of blockchains
and technology associated with digital assets, the high
reliance of the Group’s OTC trading businesses thereon,
and the management judgements applied in accounting
for the digital asset transactions and balances (which are
material to the Group's consolidated financial statements),
we considered the risk of material misstatement relating
to these transactions and balances as significant and
hence a key focus of our audit.
HRETEEMRRRRERBMAOEMERTEHERED
Bt EEBESIIR S EBEERERZEMNEN S E K
BEREEEHHFTEER S RERET ST RERFAT
EANAE HEEBNGEMBREAMEBEKN) - &
MKEZER I REREANE N ERFLRARR S
A AR 2= -
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— tested management’s reconciliations of wallet
balances as at the year end between the
operating system, accounting system, and
publicly sourced data on the blockchain. This
included reconciling the wallet balances and
transactions from the Group’s books and
records to data independently acquired by us;
and

— AEEEERFRELEZRSA 2 EHAR
NRAIFHY [ PR SR EE ] < S5 B AS ARV S ER o
IR BEMNARMBLIRE SBEEEXE
EREEAE I EBERRR ZHETHR
54

—  reviewed the appropriateness of management's
assessment and determination of principal
market by digital assets. Tested the fair value of
digital asset inventories and liabilities adopted
by management to external data quoted in the
principal exchange market.

— BAIEEETHNEBERASTEERT
FEmG -  AREEREERMNEZTERSM
B E2WMAINBEBEMARKFTEERTE
BEMNATE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found the digital
asset transactions and balances recorded by
management are supportable by available evidence.
BEEHTHET  RMERREIBEUSIRKERE
Fracsk B F B ER 5 M o



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
TEEGSHE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B IZBEN RS

FEFIBE@®)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RANESNAEEFZETEE

Working capital sufficiency assessment
EEES T BT

Refer to Note 2.1(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.
BREGEVBRERMTE2.1(0) °

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB22,048,193, and
incurred a loss of RMB160,696,958 for the year then
ended.

RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H BESERBHABEBLR
BEEARM22048193 7T HEZAILFRELEE
AR #& 160,696,958 TC °

To support the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis,
management performed an assessment with respect to
the working capital sufficiency, as supported by a cash
flow forecast prepared for the next twelve months from
31 December 2018 based on the budget approved by the
board of directors of the Company (the “Forecast”). The
Forecast involved key assumptions such as revenue
growth of different business lines, expected cash outflows
for its capital commitments, operating and financing
costs, and availability of future financing resources. The
Forecast also took into account a sensitivity analysis for
the key assumptions that are subject to greater
uncertainties.
AYFRBBREEERUESSB 2 GEMB®RE &
BERBEARESIENTRBEMGRB T —N\
FrA=t—HEFRKRT_EAANRESRESTRA (&
Al - shEEE T B MH#EITRHME o TRAY RERER -
Pl REZEBEHBRAE K - HEARENTER SR
H BERBEXNRNARKKEEE RO A AN - 788
et RIFERATEE E =8 AR ERRASRED T o

In order to evaluate the reasonableness of management’s
assessment, we performed primarily the following
procedures to assess certain key assumptions underlying
the Forecast:

RAEBEEENGNGEY  RMEEHNTUATEFN
A ATRAIR R R

o for the forecast revenue growth of different
business lines, we inquired of management their
development plans, tested a sample of signed
contracts, and compared the estimated growth rate
with historical data;

o RTEEBENFBARGIERMNE - RMABEE
EHIEmERFTE - RMYERTNSNETE
B R A £ 2R B AR SE SR VE D BB

o for the expected cash outflows of capital
commitments, we checked a sample of material
contracts and corroborated the nature and amount
of commitments based on our understanding of the
Group’s development plans;

s BENEEMNBHBRSARLME  HAKEERS
MBEA - WIREBRME ERERRTEN TR -

RAEEREE N EE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RANESNAEE T EETEE

Based on the results of the Forecast, management
concluded that the Group will have adequate resources to
continue its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the next twelve
months from the year end date and therefore the use of
the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements is appropriate.

BREFENER BEERE  EEBERFERBEARK
TZEABERAERERSE  URBITHEIEME
SN BES  ARRAFESEREREGEME
HBRBHEE o

We focused on management’s working capital sufficiency
assessment because this involved making significant
judgements and estimates about future events and
conditions whose outcomes are inherently uncertain.
BMEINEEEELESTEMNE  RAREIR
HAREERBRAMELEAN A REBR  MEAZERT
TENTER)DETE I ©
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o for the expected cash outflows related to operating
costs, we assessed their reasonableness by
comparing to the historical costs and considering
adjustments as necessary as a result of the Group's
development plans;

o MEERABANBHRSTLEMS - HMBEBL
BELKATHEREENSBEETRTEEENEE
FrEEH N EFE

o for the financing resources available during the
forecast period, we checked that the Forecast has
taken into account the repayment of existing loan
principals and interests based on the repayment
schedule and terms in the loan agreements. We
also confirmed the availability of other loan facilities
obtained after the year end by (i) checking the loan
agreement or letter of intent to the loan facility
entered into by the Group, (i) checking the receipt
of proceeds from the drawdown of the loan after
the year end to the bank statement; and (iii)
circularising independent confirmations to the
lenders to confirm the loan or facility amount and
other key terms, including but not limited to maturity
date, interest rate and repayment term of the
borrowing; and

o REABEAS 2 BERMNS - RMEESE - 8
BB R E R R ESR B R IGRET RIBEEHRAR
SRERAE - BMTER  REBEENATSEBBIE
FERUERZ EMESRRE()EEER HHEXIE
SEEIIVERRENRMG  (VBEEBERITEHE
BIFERRERERZAEFRIE  Ki)mLEEA
DEBURRAEUNERENmE AR LR
B (BR/EEIRNIEE - F = & EFERH
BR): &
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RANESNAEEFZETEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets with respect to PRC businesses
FRTEEENESBRRREBERSHNEE ZRE

Refer to Notes 3.3(b), 6 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BREGE VB HRERMTEISMb) « 6 %22

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had gross trade
receivables and contract assets of RMB11,243,910 and
RMB59,601,005, against which allowance for impairment
of RMB1,761,894 and RMB9,686,597 were recorded
respectively. These are related to the traditional
advertising services and business park area management
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

RZZE—N\F+ZA=1+—0 ' E5ENESEUGIE
BERENEEDBRAREI243910T AR
59,601,0057T * 9 BIEk1SE AR ERE /AR 1,761,8%
TR ARME9,686,597 Tt © 5% F 5 IR Ty B B A R AN EY
(THhEDOESRESREREEEREEREE R -

o we also evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis
of the forecast cash and bank balances by
considering potential downside scenarios against
reasonably plausible changes to the key
assumptions and considered whether the resultant
impact would adversely change the forecast
position of the available funds of the Group.

J BMDEBRZERARBRINSIEAEZHHEE T
BERARERGIRTVERAREHESENFESHN
TEERAR S E AR E B - T aT A ¥ TEORIER & R ERTT
EERHBURRE D AT o

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
management’s assessment of working capital sufficiency
is reasonably supportable with available evidence.
RIBEHTHRER KRR BEEEHESESSRAR
RFHE B S EBRIE S -

Our procedures in relation to management’'s assessment
on the allowance for impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets included:
BMeBREEEHEIRKFIBERENEE ZRER
BETTNEF BN TSIEA

o Understood the credit control procedures that the
Group implemented to manage and monitor its

credit risk;
o THREEBREREEMEEEEERBRANEEES
B
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For advertising services, the Group may take up to 360
days to issue billing to the customers after service delivery
and further grants a credit term of 30 to 90 days after the
invoice date, while prepayments from customers for
provision of business park area management services are
generally required.

RESRBEMES  EEERRINRBETERTE
0HMEFHAKRSETREZARRE—THREERR
30EH - M—MERAT  BERBFHREHEEERE
B RS 2 TR IR o

Management applied judgement and estimates to
measure the expected credit losses allowance. The trade
receivables and contract assets were grouped based on
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the
industries that the customers are operating in, their
ageing category and past collection history. The expected
credit loss rates were determined based on historical
default rates and were adjusted to reflect forward-looking
information in the macroeconomic environment that may
affect the ability of the customers to repay.
EREERAERGFHERBEEBERE -BHE
WHRIBRENEEDRBEEUEERRFE#ETHAE -
WRETREFPELHNITE  BSHIRERE R KB E K
Btig - HEFETKEIAIGENE - BEEEBEET)
$ETJ§@EL%@KFZE C WIEHTARARM AT ERF
BRI 2 RESPEIRTRRIEEER -

We focused on this area in view of the magnitude of the
trade receivables and contract assets and the
determination of the related expected credit losses
allowance involved the use of judgement and estimation
as described above.

BPRE S RWFIARENEENSFEM IR LA -
TR EE BB IR R M E I R E A Lt 2 Rt o
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o Assessed the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss methodology adopted by management
with reference to historical payment records, ageing
analysis and default rates;

o SEEEEL2ZERELNNREE - BRI RENE
MM TBEEE BB AR EAME ;

o Tested the accuracy of key historical data inputs on
a sample basis; and
J R R R R SR R SE B A BUR Y ZERENE - %

o Evaluated reasonableness of the forward-looking
information including relevant macroeconomic
variables and assessed the sensitivity.

o SHERTEHEER (BEABLENZERAR)MEE
M ET AR BRRSE o

Based on the results of the procedures performed, we
found management’s judgement and estimation applied
in respect of the impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets were supportable by the available
evidence.

BEATHEREFNER  BMERREEREAZIFEE
BEZERBEZRIGIEREHNEEREMNER E’\J#H@ﬁ
KAt o



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Corporate Information, Management Discussion and
Analysis, and Report of the Directors (but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon),
which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the
Chief Executive Officer's Statement, Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report,
Environmental, Social and Governance Report and Five Year Financial
Summary, which are expected to be made available to us after that
date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the Chief Executive Officer's Statement, Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management, Corporate Governance
Report, Environmental, Social and Governance Report and Five Year
Financial Summary, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to Audit Committee and take appropriate action considering our
legal rights and obligations.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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HifE R
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FrfTe) TE - MRAKMRREMESFEEX
R - PR BEREZFE -HEETH &
928 (R E °

BERMMETRERBEE EERSAEEE
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Wai Ching.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Are B S A M E E W

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z—)\F+-A=1+—HILEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
Notes RMB RMB
HtaE ARYE AREE
Restated*
5 *
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue from advertising and business E& ME¥E R EIERE
park area management services Frig i as 6 136,399,460 162,015,156
Cost of revenue relating to advertising BREESMEEEEEE
and business park area management  BRAEHURESAL A
services (92,069,201) (142,222,816)
Income from digital assets business R EBEEBERA 7 8,560,749 =
Net impairment losses on trade EABSRUGRIERANEE
receivables and contract assets B EEBF 5 (5,463,178) (3,880,837)
Other losses, net HAb BB F 5 8 (1,042,975) (148,221)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS A (5,936,801) (10,573,430)
Administrative and other operating TR R E M & R
expenses (168,711,319) (60,956,874)
Operating loss REERER (128,263,265) (55,767,022)
Finance income IR AN 9 12,318,840 897,084
Finance costs B RS AR AR 9 (39,831,385) (425,428)
Finance (costs)/income, net B (R AN) W A SF 58 9 (27,512,545) 471,656
Share of losses of associates DREE N B B8 - (1,890,329)
Share of profit of a joint venture DE—REEREMRF - 4,844,289
Loss before income tax CYR =TT %] (155,775,810) (52,341,4006)
Income tax expense FriSFix 13 (5,147,114) (1,870,192)
Loss from continuing operations BEKEEKRMEBER (160,922,924) (54,211,598)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e B KEMEERE R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE-_T—)\F+_A=+—ALHFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
Notes RMB RMB
HtaE ARME AR
Restated*
&5 *
Loss from continuing operations BERKEEKFEER (160,922,924) (54,211,598)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued AAREBAEER RS
operations (attributable to the $¥B 2z, (EE)
owners of the Company) 14 225,966 (3,012,125)
Loss for the year FREE (160,696,958) (57,223,723)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ H2mE (EBR) WA
income
Item that may be reclassified to AJBEEF DR EBmmIEE -
profit or l0ss:
Currency translation differences on BE R EETRRNARF]
translation of foreign operations with 2%/ &#& >~ G N EETE 2 B K
a functional currency different from BmEEE
the Company’s presentation currency (2,337,424) 1,815,501
Item that will not be reclassified to BT EE P HE R
profit or l0ss: myIEH
Currency translation differences BEARRRINGEEEKREL
related to the Company on 2y EE B E =5
translation of functional currency
to presentation currency 97,805 (1,769,374)
Other comprehensive (I0ss)/income FANEMEE (FE) A
for the year (2,239,619) 46,127
Total comprehensive loss for FRE2EBEEARE
the year (162,936,577) (57,177,596)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
roBa M EtEmkEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE—T—\F+-A=T—ALLFE

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+F
Notes RMB RMB
HtaE AR ARE
Restated*
LTI *
Loss for the year attributable to: AR B IBE(E FNEE ¢
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE Z=DN
Loss from continuing operations REFELEER 2 EE (161,458,646) (55,199,795)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued P EE TG E A
operations sw A (E1E) 225,966 (3,012,125)
(161,232,680) (58,211,920)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R
Profit from continuing operations WA B R E R 535,722 988,197
(160,696,958) (57,223,723)
Loss per share for loss from EATEEAELRBSE
continuing operations REEKRZEBNSREE
attributable to the owners
of the Company
Basic (RMB per share) EXR(FRARE) 17 (0.64) 0.22)
Diluted (RMB per share) BE(ERARK) 17 (0.64) 0.22)
Loss per share for loss from AATHEEAERIFERAZL
continuing and discontinued REEBZEHERANESRER

operations attributable to the
owners of the Company

Basic (RMB per share) ER(ZRARE) 17 (0.64) (0.23)
Diluted (RMB per share) s (FRARK) 17 (0.64) (0.23)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FeEBmMEMEEEER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-ZT—/\G+-A=+—HILFE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

Notes RMB RMB
HtaE AR NG
Restated*

KE

Total comprehensive loss for the LUTREBEEGEREEH

year attributable to: BRAE
Owners of the Company RARERA
Loss from continuing operations REFELEXSHNER
Profit/(loss) from discontinued RER IR EEBR
operations wm Al (E518)
Non-controlling interests FEFEARHE =
Profit from continuing operations BB T 5 A

* See Note 2.3 for details regarding the restatements due to correction
of prior year errors.

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with
accompanying notes.
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(163,695,290) (55,153,668)

225,966 (3,012,125)

(163,469,324) (58,165,793)

532,747 988,197

(162,936,577) (57,177,596)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBILR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
R=F-—NF+=B=+—H

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
R=B-N\F RZT— ti RZZ—+t5F
tZRA=+-A +ZA=1— —A—H
Notes RMB RMB RMB
s ARY AR AR
Restated* Restated*
T |+
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment 9%  BE & &ZE 18,28 237,691,245 10,689,462 12,599,059
Intangible assets B EE 19 48,536,289 45,010,531 49,480,011
Interest in a joint venture R—EEEEENER - - 24,083,611
Interests in associates ik WNG ok 3 - - 1,822,595
Available-for-sale financial assets m/#tHE4LrEE - — 2,250,000
Prepayments, deposits and BRRE  ReREM
other receivables A ERE) 23 24,788,852 5,584,500 5,584,500
Deferred income tax assets BRMEREE 32 1,908,401 1,312,793 4,297,193
Total non-current assets FnBEELE 312,924,787 62,597,286 100,116,969
Current assets RBEE
Inventories TE 21 188,739,099 = =
Contract assets BREE 6 49,914,408 - -
Trade and bills receivables Z 5 RWHIE RN E 22 11,821,876 89,229,785 136,814,137
Prepayments, deposits and BRI BEREAM
other receivables e iE 23 144,171,867 71,056,673 21,759,873
Income tax recoverable AL el FT {53 169,087 1,058,629 1,058,629
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHIRITER 24 - 10,000,000 4,100,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHREZEY 25 294,838,046 53,772,080 80,210,595
689,654,383 225,117,167 243,943,234
Assets classified as held for sale  pEARELENEE 15 - 8,760,115 =
Total current assets MBAERE 689,654,383 233,877,282 243,943,234
Total assets BEHAE 1,002,579,170 296,474,568 344,060,203
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A SRR
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
RZZT—N\F+=ZA=+—H

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
RZZB-N\E RZT- ti RZZ—+4
+=ZA=t-R fZA=1+— —A—H
Notes RMB RMB RMB
itz AR ARE AR
Restated* Restated*
a5 fmE5*
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Deposits received and other Bl S R EM NI
payables 27 12,627,230 10,897,805 10,897,805
Lease liabilities HEAR 28 197,306,077 = =
Other borrowings HhfE 30 15,500,000 - -
Financial liabilities at fair value ~ BATEz ABHHLRERE
through profit or loss 31 20,620,230 - -
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMEHRARE 32 10,195,766 8,913,659 10,027,867
Total non-current liabilities FRBAEEE 256,249,303 19,811,464 20,925,672
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B S ENFIE 26 34,512,869 40,976,809 45,121,455
Accruals and other payables FEETZRIE % At BT 2RIE 27 37,899,208 41,928,085 35,634,848
Contract liabilities BHEE 6 931,198 - -
Liabilities due to customers ENEFEE 29 380,701,523 - -
Lease liabilities MEEE 28 31,851,433 - -
Bank and other borrowings FITREMER 30 221,462,651 9,565,000 3,935,000
Current income tax liabilities ENERF SR A& 4,343,694 412,006 412,006
711,702,576 92,881,900 85,103,309
Liabilities directly associated HAMARELEEERR
with assets classified as held HHENEE
for sale 15 - 2,927,849 -
Total current liabilities mEEEEE 711,702,576 95,809,749 85,103,309
Total liabilities BEAE 967,951,879 115,621,213 106,028,981
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

iR e FIEIR R
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
RZBE-N\F+-A=+—H

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
RZZB-N\E  RZT- ti RZZ—+4
tZRA=+-A +ZA=1— —A—H
Notes RMB RMB RMB
Hizt AR¥ AR AR
Restated* Restated*
R fmEg*
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners &7 5 AELES
of the Company
Share capital [N 86 2,123,981 2,037,681 2,037,681
Other reserves Hof#E 34 246,238,520 221,943,835 221,897,979
Accumulated losses RetiEE (218,222,000) (47,786,148) 10,425,772
30,140,501 176,195,368 234,361,432
Non-controlling interests FERER 4,486,790 4,657,987 3,669,790
Total equity ERAEE 34,627,291 180,853,355 238,031,222
The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 254 were F85EFE 254 A xR M BHRCEETSN -

approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2019 and were
signed on its behalf.

Lo Ken Bon

Director Director
Lo Ken Bon =iRIE
EF EF

& See Note 2.3 for details regarding the restatements due to correction
of prior year errors.

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with accompanying notes.

E-NF=A-+N\BHAETRA/ESE

Ko Chun Shun, Johnson

* ERRYEBEFREHRERMET ZERNFE

2823

i fr & B TR 0 2R B S BT B 5 — D BIAE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARSEEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE-_Z—)\F+-A=+—RHIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NN
Share- Retained
based eanmings/ Non-
Share Share Capital Exchange Statutory — payments  (accumulated controling Total
capital premium Surplus esene resene resene [osses) Total interests equity
HROEEE  REEH/
s RihaE AR ERRE EERE  ORFEE  (ZHBR) @ HERER A%
Note RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RVB RMB RMB
i3 N N ARE ARH AR AR AR N ARE ARE
Restated*  Restated*  Restated*  Restated*
RS RS =) RN
At 1 January 2017, RZ8-tE-5-R"
as previously stated BR5 2037681 212873290 2000000 (898,102 7922791 10175075 234110735 4672577 238783312
Restatement dug to R EB# FRMEE
correction of prior years' (i
adjustments 23 - - - - - - 250,697 20697 (1002787)  (752090)
At 1 January 2017, RZ8-tE-A-R"
as restated &55 2037681 212873290 2,000,000 (898,102 792791 - 045772 234361432 3669790 233031222
(Loss)/profitfor the year RER (B8) /67 = - - - - - (BB2NM920) (8219200 988197 (5723723
Other comprehensive income:  Eft2ERA
Currency trandlation differences ~ &%E} 2% = - - 46,127 - - - 4,127 - 4127
Total comprehensive income/floss) 27/ (&51) 48 - = = 4,127 = - (BB211920) (58165793 988197 (57,177,59€)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RNBAF - - - = (2m) - = (27) = (27)
At 31 December 2017, Rog-t&
as restated TZB=1-A £&3 2037681 212873290 2,000,000 (851979 792250 - (47786,148) 176195368 4657987 180,853,355

* See Note 2.3 for details regarding the restatements due to correction
of prior year errors.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

N

= A=A
reEagER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_ZT—\E+-_A=+—HILEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KNEREARR
Share- (Accumulated
based losses)/ Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Exchange  Statutory  payments retained controlling Total
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve  eamings Total interests equity
NRABER (RihEE)/
e RipaE B4R ERRE EERE DEL1 RERH #it FERER ERlE
Notes RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RVB RMB RMB
i3 N N ABH N N N AR% AR% AR% AR%
Restated*  Restated*  Restated*  Restated*
&5+ &5+ &5+ &5+
At 31 December 2017, R=B-t&E+=A=t-8"
as previously stated &3 2037681 21287329 2,000,000 (851979 792250 - (4903963 17494884 5549353 180491237
Restatement dueto corectionof  RAIFA%EEHERAES
prior years' adjustments 23 - - - - - - 1253484 1,253,484 (891,366) 32,118
At 31 December 2017, as restated A=B-+£+=f=1-8:
3] 2037681 212873290 2,000,000 (851979) 792250 - (47,786,148) 176,195,368 4,657,987 180,853,355
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS9 SiiRMEERRE MR 28
SIRFIEIE 22(0) = = = = = = (1974062)  (1,974,062) = (1,974,062)
Total equity at 1 January 2018,  W=-N-F-Af
as restated RRE(EE)) 2,037,681 212873290 2000000  (851975) 7,922,520 - (49,760,210 174,221,306 4,657,987 178,879,293
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (58) /&7 - - - - - - (161,232,680) (161,232,680) 535,722 (160,696,958
Other comprehensive loss: HA2EEE:
Currency translation differences EHEREE - - - (2,236,644 - - - (2,236,604 (2,975)  (2,239,619)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 27 (&%) /W A28 - - - (2,236,604 - - (161,232,680) (163,469,324) 532,747 (162,936,577)
Changeinshareholdinginexisting ~ RB M EXEEHIEN
subsidiary without losing control i - - 128821 - - - - 1218827 (616,717) 662,110
Transfer of profit to Statutory reserve - - - - 7316337 - (7,229110) 87,221 (87,227) -
Equity - settled share-based payments £
Under share option scheme - - - - - 1922185 - 1922185 - 1922185
Equity - settled share-based payments
Under share award scheme IR - - - - - 10,100,280 - 10,100,280 - 10,100,280
Shares allotted under shareaward — RERGEE ARENRG
scheme 3 86,300 (86,300) - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2018 R=F-N§tZf=1-A 2123981 212,786,990 3278827  (3,088,619) 15238857 18,022,465 (218,222,000) 30,140,501 4,486,790 34,627,291

*

See Notes 2.2 and 2.3 for details regarding the restatements due to the
initial adoption of IFRS 9 and correction of prior year errors.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with accompanying notes.

*
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mAERETIMER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE-_T—)\F+_A=+—ALHFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes RMB RMB
BiaE ARME AR
Restated*
T *
Cash flows from operating activities REEXKMEBRERE
Cash generated from/(used in) B EIEE(FrA)
operations He 39() 26,914,640 (14,157,100)
Income tax refunded FTiSHiRH 984,404 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) RESEBIFRE(FTR)
operating activities REFRE 27,899,044 (14,157,100)
Cash flows from investing activities REZEFIEBHRERE
Interest received 28 565,372 913,091
Investment in an associate R—KEEQRIRE - (3,000,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BEMEE
plant and equipment Fri8 308 39(c) - 1,391,021
Proceeds from disposal of available-  HERHHESREE
for-sale financial assets FTi3 A - 2,250,000
Proceed from disposal of an associate  H & — it 4 A & FTS 08 39(d) 3,000,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, H&EE A =518
net of cash disposed of NREERS 35 2,893,561 (11,116,634)
Purchase of property, BEWE  BEKI&ME
plant and equipment (26,801,119) (2,022,719)
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE (4,801,822) -
Decrease/(increase) in restricted SIREIBRITETRD
bank deposits (3% hn) 10,000,000 (5,900,000)
Net cash used in investing activities BB EE AR S %58 (15,144,008) (17,485,241)
Cash flows from financing activities B&EEESMEHE L EE
Interest paid [EENEAESS (526,492) (425,428)
Proceeds from issuance of EeEIEE S
a convertible note Frig k18 39(b) 13,763,235 -
Proceed from issuance of a warrant ITRIRAEB P15 2R 39(b) 6,881,617 =
Proceed from bank and AT R E AL AR
other borrowings FT{8 308 39(b) 245,989,709 9,565,000
Repayment of bank and EBIRTT R E At
other borrowings B 39(b) (9,565,000) (3,935,000)
Principal elements of lease liabilities — &8 ENEBHEK D 39(b) (31,599,182) -
Transaction with non-controlling BRI LS ETTHIR B
interests 662,110 -
Net cash generated from BEEEBEREFE
financing activities 225,605,997 5,204,572

94 BRANDING CHINA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FeHERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_T—\F+-_A=+—HULHFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB RMB
HiaE AR AR
Restated*
LTI *
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRBSZEEYEM
and cash equivalents Om2) B8 238,361,033 (26,437,769)
Effect of exchange rate changes on Re kRS EYEX
cash and cash equivalents HERE 2,658,060 46,127
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHReMRESEEY
the beginning of the year 53,818,953 80,210,595
Cash and cash equivalents at FRRE MRS EEY
the end of the year 294,838,046 53,818,953
Analysis of the balances of cash HRERRELBEYEBIN
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances included in AARERESEEYH
cash and cash equivalents e RIRTTEEH 25 294,838,046 53,772,080
Cash and bank balances included in HABEHEBRENRE SR
assets held for sale RITHEER 15 - 46,873
294,838,046 53,818,953

FREMEREFEHERMET I ERAFFS -
2RKFE2.3

* See Note 2.3 for details regarding the restatements due to correction =
of prior year errors.

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in ‘il AR e 72 5= FEEBEWH s — R -

conjunction with accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

AR ISR AR T AT

96

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activity of Branding China Group Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. During the year, the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) were
principally engaged in the provision for traditional advertising
and business park area management services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), and the digital assets business in
Hong Kong.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 15 March 2011. The
Company'’s registered office is located at Clifton House, 75 Fort
Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman, Cayman lIslands. Its
principal place of business is located at 32/F, Lee Garden One,
33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the ultimate holding company of the Company is Bell Haven
Limited (BVI).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 28 March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (“HKCO")

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs and
requirements of HKCO Cap. 622. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include the
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
inventories, digital asset liabilities due to customers
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, which are measured on fair value basis.

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB22,048,193, and it had incurred a loss of
RMB160,696,958 for the year then ended. The net
current liabilities position was mainly attributable to
the short-term financing raised for working capital
management during the year.

2

AR A B T

EEST BRI

7N Y 5 AR TE AR B A A TS R B BR AR Y
BERBHEBE - ZFBERAERFE—
BHER  BRIERTTHA - PHBRERRBAR
AR EMEARAKKA KB MRS

2.1 RBEEXE

(@)

(b)

()

I e o 5 3 5 2 ) (B8 PR
BHEED ) RERD K
PITEBRAEHDNE
BRER

AEBGZE M BEHRERTIRE
BERPEHRE LR EE AT
fRBIF 622 REMBL © BESI
FAMBRREBEEMEX
ZHBRAEES LR
(T EMRADRERERBE

FE S R AN E
FEMBHRROERELKAE
BRE HEEFE  BRNEFPH
FEEABREATEFAR
sNERABEHRATEFE
RO

BEKEERE
RZE—NF+ZA=+—
B AEEREE EE LR
BEEANRM22048,193 7T &,
EZALFEEEBBEARE
160,696,958 7T < Fm B B EE
REBRHRFAREEER
EIREL R AT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M ot

AN
RIN=N

2

98

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Going concern basis (Continued)
Management of the Group has prepared a cash
flow projection covering a period of 12 months
from 31 December 2018. The cash flow projection
has taken into account the anticipated cash flows
to be generated from the Group’s different
business lines (including considerations of
reasonably possible changes in its operating
performance) and the loan facilities available during
the period under projection, including new loans
and facilities amounting to USD40,000,000 and
HKD100,000,000 obtained subsequent to the year
end. The directors, after making due enquiries and
considering the basis of management'’s projection
described above, believe that there will be
sufficient financial resources to continue its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due in the next 12 months from
31 December 2018. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

In order to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to support the Group'’s
strategic growth initiatives in the longer term,
management closely monitors the actual financial
performance of the Group against the forecasts
and pursues further capital or loan financing as and
when needed.

BRANDING CHINA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2

EESHBERMTR @)

21 REEE )

(c)

FESEEEE)

AEBEEEECSHRERES -
Z-NF+_HA=+—HE
T EAARENRERER
Ao WERETRF M AEE
TREBGEELENENRS
nE(BRERKERANGHE
FIREEE)) ARIE R MM A A E
RHE  BRFEARESH
40,000,000 7t % 100,000,000
BTLHERRBE - EEHEE
HAEDPEAREE EXFIRE
BEERAZER RRERR
MBER AT EELE Som e B
—E-N\FF+ZA=+—HE
AR+ ZERHNMBE
FoFEitt HREMBRRER

RERAEEEFBELLERX
RSB RERBIERE -
BEEEHHEAENEEAE
EERMBERREYZHKEME
AEEFBME(MFR) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEEEHE#SSRE)
POLICIES (Ccontinued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)
(d) New and amended standards adopted (d) AEBERMEIFET RLIEET
by the Group 28|

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing on 1 January 2018:

AEBERE_ZT—N\F—A8
—HHRBHFEZ2RBEF X
FEAR A TR RABET AN -

Amendments to Classification and Measurement BIRBBEEED  RDAERGZA
IFRS 2 of Share-based Payment F2RER gL PERE
Transactions
Amendments to Applying IFRS 9 Financial BIROHEEED HERHEREEN
IFRS 4 Instruments with IFRS 4 FURBEA FLRRBA N
Insurance Contracts FERMEIRR a7
RELERFIR
$RIA
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments BRSBaSES SHIE
B
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with ERSBAEED EPAMNE
Customers F15%;
IFRS 16 Leases BREBmERED HE
F16%
Amendments to Transfers to Investment GiliS-Epail BEREANE
IAS 40 Property FARBIAR
IFRIC Int-22 Foreign Currency Transactions ERHBasERE MERFRENKE
and Advance Consideration ZE®
—E2%

Annual improvements  Amendments to IFRS 1 and
to IFRSS 2014-2016 IAS 28
cycle

Upon the adoption of IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16
above, the Group had to change its accounting
policies and made certain retrospective
adjustments. The details of the changes have been
disclosed in Note 2.2. The adoption of other
amendments listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.

ARFIBALAN ERAER
ST-mEE BIEREREH
SERERS  AAEBEL
LEERE BAA

TABRAR - 2t B B B 765 i &5 2E A
Eo - BRI HmE ERE
1555k R BIFR B 75 R 5 22 RIS 16
Big - AEEANEESTK
%jﬂ’ﬁﬂj S TEPERE -5
""""" SO FBERERME22-
?K%WLXP)'T{?'JZE{‘MI%ETZM\E
BEHRNBERRCEANESER
EREMTE BRSBTS
B SR RIIEEREATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(e) New standards and interpretations not

yet adopted
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory for
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 and
have not been early adopted by the Group.

2

EESHBERMTR @)

21 REEE )
(e) [ RERAMHFTER K2R

BT g £l RREER
o X AR -ZE—NEFE—A
— A 5 A # B BF E 9 R
R BEAREREERERRR -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RT3 RSz & H R
EREES
Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 1 January 2019
BB e EAE 9% ETA HECERE T “F-NE-A-AR
Amendments to 1AS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
B e ERE 8RBT BeRRRaE bR RIER “Z-NE-A-H
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 1 January 2019
AR BREENEIRETA AEREZRAMEN ] “Z-hE-A-AH
IFRIC Int-23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
ARG BatRERE8—£ 3% FEHREN TR “F-NE-A-AR
Annual improvement to Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23 1 January 2019
IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle
AR RERN-_2-1nFE BIRHBIMERRF3% - ARUBREENE NS “E-hnE-A-H
TR TERHERYE IR e ERIE 125 RER @ e S 3% 2 B A
Amendments to IAS 1and IAS 8 Definition of Materiality 1 January 2020
AR e e S 1R R EAMMES —Z-%%F-f-A
BR e ERIE8RETA
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
BRI REENZ IR EITA FHES “EIEE-A-H
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
ERA RS ENE 175 REEH —F--%-f-H
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and To be determined
its Associate or Joint Venture
BRI REENZ 0% R REZHABSARRAEAE AHERINEAE T

AR e ENFEBRETA

AEEEEE MG BERAK

The Group’s management assessed that there are
no new standards and interpretation that are not
yet effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9
Financial Instruments, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers, and the early adoption of IFRS 16 Leases
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(@)

Impact on the consolidated financial
statements

As a result of the changes in the Group's
accounting policies, prior year consolidated
financial statements had to be restated.

As explained in Notes 2.2(b) and 2.2(c) below, IFRS
15 and IFRS 9 were generally adopted without
restating comparative information. The
reclassifications of balances related to contracts
with customers and the adjustments arising from
the new impairment rules are therefore not
reflected in the restated consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, but are
recognised in the opening consolidated statement
of financial position on 1 January 2018.

Based on the management’s assessment, the
application of IFRS 15 does not have a material
impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognition of the Group and there was no impact
of IFRS 9 on the classification of the Group's assets
at transition date.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in
IFRS 16, the new rules have been adopted
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying the new standard recognised on 1 January
2018. Comparatives for the 2017 financial year have
not been restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(a) Impact on the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
The following tables show the adjustments
recognised for each individual line item. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not
been included. The adjustments are explained in
more detail by standard below.

EESHBERMTR @)

2.2. ST BENEEH &)

(@

HESUBRRNOTE(E)

NRIVRHL A EBIAE ERA
AR WEAANKBEEED
FENERB - HEFABETX
PIRERAETT T BRI o

31 Decemher
2017
As originally 1 January
presented IFRS 15 IFRS 9 IFRS 16 2018
(Note2.3) (Note2.2(h)) (Note2.2(c) (Note2.2(d))  As restated
-t
=y R B CLLE
=+-H HiEE8 BEEE HERE  ZE-NE
M5 £15% 9% £16% -B-H
(Wi23)  (W&E22b)  (KE22c)  (H&2.2(d) &5
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AE% A% ARH ARE ARE
Consolidated statement of GRUBRAR (HR)
financial position (extract)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment % BEREE 10,689,462 - - IM61TA0 122,306,882
Deferred income tax assets ERAEHEE 1312793 = 658,020 - 1970813
Current assets hEEE
Contract assefs (| BHEEN - 396839 (2,443 594) - 80503245
Trade and bils receivables BHRUTERENZE 89229785 (82.946,839) (188,488) = 6,094,458
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilties HEafk = - - 109810%%  109.810,9%
Current liabilties hBEE
Accruals and other payables EERREMENTIE 41,928,085 (6,839,063) = (9,905,571) 25183451
Contract liabilities (i) EHERE( - 6,839,063 - - 6,839,063
Lease liabllties HERR = - - Mg 117119%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impact on the consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

(i) Contract assets mainly consist of revenue from
advertising business recognised prior to the date
on which it is invoiced to customers.

(i) Contract liabilities mainly represented advance
payments from customers which were previously
presented as receipt in advance from customers
included in accruals and other payables in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers from 1 January 2018
which resulted in changes in accounting policies.
The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective approach, with the effect of initially
applying this standard recognised at the date of
initial application. Accordingly, the information
presented for the year ended 31 December 2017
has not been restated. The application of IFRS 15
does not have material impact on the timing and
amounts of revenue recognition of the Group.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEgEEE#Me)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.2. B BERNEE (&)

(Continued)

(b) IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with (b) PR BFHE SR 5 R SE 1558
Customers (Continued) EFEHZWE (&)
Presentation of contract assets and liabilities 2IEEFEHNEENENE
related to contracts with customers. EXRERE-

At
31 December  Reclassification At
2017 asaresult of 1 January
As originally adoption of 2018
presented IFRS 15 As restated
RZZE—+& HRMER
T=A BBRE K-ZE-N%
=+-8 ERIE15% -A-H
mE3 BH5E ME
RVB RMB RMB
AR ARE AR
Trade and bill receivables B RN EREREE 89,229,785 (82,946,839) 6,282,946
Contract assets BHEE - 82,946,839 82,946,839
Accruals and other payable JERT B R A tER 3R 41,928,085 (6,839,063) 35,089,022
Contract liabilities BHEE - 6,839,063 6,839,063
(c) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments () EIRMBREEAEIRE

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of I1AS 39 that relate
to the recognition, classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities,
derecognition of financial instruments, impairment
of financial assets and hedge accounting.

The adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1
January 2018 resulted in changes in accounting
policies and adjustments to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The new accounting policies are set
out in Note 2.13. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in IFRS 9 (7.2.15) and (7.2.26),
comparative figures have not been restated.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHEMRE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.2. SRR E (&)

(Continued)
(c) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) (c) BEIBIBHMEZEREIRS
[ =NE P
The total impact on the Group’s accumulated RZTE—N\F—A—-BHEHEKE
losses as at 1 January 2018 is as follows: ZEBEEA BT EN
T
Note RMB
Azt AREE
Closing accumulated losses “E—tF+=HA=+—8H
as at 31 December 2017 FREFER — ERg
— IAS 39/IAS 18, as restated EHIHE 395 ERRE AL
(Note 2.3) E185% - BEY (f17£2.3) 47,786,148

Increase in provision for impairment B 5 e Wk B R E B A 1 N

of trade receivables (i) 188,488
Increase in provision for impairment 4 494 B B 1S hn
of contract assets (i) 2,443,594
Increase in deferred income tax assets EiEFr{5 5 & 2= H#n (658,020)
Adjustment to accumulated losses HRZZT—\F— A —BEH
from adoption of IFRS 9 on BIPR B TS 3R 22 RIS 9 5%
1 January 2018 FTEAM RETEBEZ HE 1,974,062
Opening accumulated losses RZZE—NFE—A—B2
as at 1 January 2018 FHRETEE 49,760,210
(i)  Impairment of financial assets () =Z=EEERE
The Group has four types of financial assets RNEE B MEAEST
that are subject to IFRS 9's new expected (B0 B B s R A 2B A1 28 9 517
credit loss model: MHEHEEEREAN
SREE :
e  Trade and bills receivables . H 5 FE MR IE [ e
R
. contract assets . BHEE
. Deposits and other receivables . =& & HAih eI R
18
. Cash and cash equivalents . ReRBEEED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under IFRS 9 for
each of these classes of assets.

While restricted bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial as
the Group only transacts with reputable
banks which are all high-credit-quality
financial institutions. The Group also transacts
with financial institutions, and certain level of
deposits of which is insured by a regulator in
the United States. There was no recent
history of default in relation to these financial
institutions. The expected credit loss is close
to zero.

For trade and bills receivables and contract
assets, the Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade and bills receivables
and contract assets. This resulted in an
increase of the loss allowance on 1 January
2018 by RMB188,488 and RMB2,443,594 for
trade receivables and contract assets
respectively.

Deposits and other receivables are
considered to be low risk, and therefore the
impairment provision is determined as 12
months expected credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases
retrospectively from 1 January 2018, but has not
restated comparatives for the 2017 reporting period
as permitted under the specific transitional
provisions in the standard.

On the adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised
lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as operating leases
under the principles of IAS 17 Leases. These
liabilities were measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted by
approximately 10%-12%, with reference to the
Group's incremental borrowing rate. The difference
between the present value and the total remaining
lease payments represents the cost of financing.
Such finance cost will be charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred using effective interest
method.

At the inception of a contract that contains a lease
component, as a lessee, the Group should allocate
the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of their relative standalone
price. The Group, as lessees, assessed their leases
for non-lease components and separated non-
lease components from lease components for
certain classes of assets if the non-lease
components were material.

2 EESEEMM

AR A B T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHBE#EL®)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.2. S BENEE (2
(Continued)

(d) IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) (d)

As a result of the above changes, cumulative effect
of initially applying the new standard are
recognised on 1 January 2018.

BB R EERE 165
HE#E)
R LS R ZF—N
F—A—BERVGREAINE
Al B E

2018
—E-N\F
RMB
AR
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZZE—+tF+=—RA=+—H
as at 31 December 2017 R R AR e T B R E 209,180,261
Discounted using the Group's incremental BN 5 B A 38 2 2 ORI =R 12%
borrowing rate of 12% HEITHAEER 124,513,016
Short-term leases recognised on RHEGFEERR AR TN
a straight-line basis as expense S (2,990,025)
Lease liabilities recognised RZZT—N\F—A—BERL
as at 1 January 2018 HERE 121,522,991

The associated right-of-use assets for property
leases were measured on a retrospective basis as
if the new rules had always been applied. Other
right-of-use assets were measured at the amount
equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
increased by RMB111,617,420 and RMB121,522,991
respectively on 1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted
by the standard:

— the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics;

— the accounting for acquired lease with
favorable terms with a remaining lease term
of less than 12 months as at 1 January 2018
as short-term leases,

— the exclusion of initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application; and

— the use of hindsight in determining the lease
term where the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to apply IFRS 16 to
contracts that were not identified as containing a
lease under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease”.

AR A B T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior

year errors

In preparing the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group has identified certain errors in the comparative
financial information presented. A detailed description of
the nature of the prior year errors is provided in Note
2.3(a) below. The amounts subject to correction for each
consolidated financial statement line item affected are
presented in the tables in Note 2.3(b) below.

(a) Recognition of goodwill

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group recognised the excess of the aggregate of
consideration paid and amount of non-controlling
interest over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired, in relation to the business
acquisitionof E B IE R X &R B R A 7
(“Shanghai Jingwei"), as part of the intangible assets
— acquired lease with favorable terms subject to
amortisation. However, in accordance with IFRS 3,
such excessive amount shall be recognised as
goodwill that should be carried at cost less
impairment.

As a result, goodwill is understated by RMB9,275,778
as at both 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017,
and intangible assets — acquired lease with
favorable terms is overstated by RMB10,027,868 and
RMB8,913,660 as at 1 January 2017 and 31
December 2017, respectively. Amortisation of
intangible assets and loss for the year ended 31
December 2017 are also overstated by
RMB1,114,208.

Further details of the effect of restatements are
disclosed in Note 2.3(b).

110 BRANDING CHINA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2

EESHBERMTR @)

23 RMEBEFENHERMET

BB
REEAEEHE_T—\F+_H
=t+— B L FENGFE M RRE -
REBECRAZIIMLEBRMBEERA
BAIE TR - BRABEFRERN
T R AR SR T XM R
23() c A M BHRRIFERE
ATUENSBENNRN T XM=
2.3(b) °

(a) BHERR
HE-_T—R"F+-A=+—
HIEFE  AEEBEREMAR
BB LIS R IFERE
B B AT BB EFE
ZAFERRIE - ZEHIEE
EBERCEZEEERAA
(I BB iRE ) /U (1E
REFEEN—BD) —RE
HETHEBRFEAERE
B o AT IRIBRE B RE
HERIEIS - ZEFBE AR
TR AR E WAL K AR E S
E\Eo

EHit - BER=Z—+tF— A
—BRZZFE—tF+=A
T+ BFURFARKE
9,275,778 70 * KRB & E—A
BEKRABHEER =T —+
F—A—HEZ-_ZE—+tF+=
A=Z+T—H2BTFTUZHRAR
#10,027,8687C & A R ¥
8913,6607C - HE_E—+4F
T A=T—BLFENER
BEBHEREBTTUZRA
R# 1,114,208 7T °

EHEN 2N E—TFHE
ThE TR MIE2.3(0) °



2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior

year errors (Continued)

(b) Summary of the effect of restatements
due to correction of prior year errors
The following is a summary of the effect of the
restatements due to correction of prior year errors

on:

(i)  the Group's consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2017,

(i) the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2017,

(i) the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017,

and

(iv) the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior
year errors (Continued)
(b) Summary of the effect of restatements
due to correction of prior year errors
(Continued)
(i) Effect of restatements on the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss

EESHBERMTR @)

23 FMEBTFEMNERMET
RYEE K ()
(b) BURREAMEBEFESERE

TER

SE(E)

WAEFBHE-—FT—+F
+t—BA=+—HIEEE

and other comprehensive income for WHEEERmRAMEE
the year ended 31 December 2017 Wi RETELRYZE
As previously
reported Note 2.3() As restated
WERARE #5#2.3() mE
RMB RMB RMB
AR ARE ARE
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue from advertisingand B4 & ¥ B R & 12 R

business park area gt

management service 162,015,156 162,015,156
Cost of revenue from advertising B& kX E R EERE

and business park area Frs M am A

management service (142,222,816) (142,222,816)
Net impairment losses on SRRANEERERE

financial and contract assets ~ B%a (fifst)

(Note) (3,880,837) (3,880,837)
Other losses, net (Note) HtBEFE (M) (148,221) (148,221)
Selling and distribution expenses $4& k7 B X (10,573,430) (10,573,430)
Administrative and other TR REMEEFHT

operating expenses (Note) (H#zt) (62,071,082 1,114,208 (60,956,874)
Operating loss LeER (56,881,230) (55,767,022)
Finance income (Note) BIMA (Ha2) 897,084 897,084
Finance costs BEFERCN (425,428) (425,428)
Finance income, net BN 471,656 471,656
Share of [0ss of associates HIEEEATIEE (1,890,329) (1,890,329)
Share of profit of a joint venture  H{E—RE& &A% F 4,844,289 4,844,289
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior
year errors (Continued)

(b) Summary of the effect of restatements
due to correction of prior year errors
(Continued)

(i) Effect of restatements on the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss

AR A B T

2 EESTHEMRE)

2.3 FMEBITFEMNERMET
RYEE L ()
(b) BURRAMEBEFESERE
TERzE(E)

() HFrE@EHE-—F—+F
tT=A=+-HLFE

and other comprehensive income for WHEEEmRAMEE
the year ended 31 December 2017 Wk ETERYZE
(Continued) (%)
As previously
reported Note 2.3(a) As restated
WMEARE #1:£2.3() mE3
RMB RMB RMB
AR ARHE AR
Loss before income tax BRETIS TR ATE R (63,455,614) (52,341,4006)
Income tax expense FIBHAX (1,870,192) (1,870,192)
Loss from continuing operations 3k B3 & &2 £ SR EE (55,325,806) (54,211,598)
Loss from discontinued ARAER NEERE
operations (attributable tothe 4R F& % % H i) 518
owners of the Company) (3,012,125) (3,012,125)
Loss for the year FREE (58,337,931) (67,223,723)
Loss for the year attributable to: LA F&IBREEFENEA :
Owners of the Company AREEAA
Loss from continuing REFELEER
operations MEE (56,202,582) 1,002,787 (55,199,795)
Loss from discontinued RER RS X
operations HEE (3,012,125) (3,012,125)
(59,214,707) (58,211,920)
Non-controlling interests R ER
Profit from continuing RELEEBAE
operations BF 876,776 111,421 988,197
(58,337,931) (57,223,723)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEgEEE#Me)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior 23 R EBETEFENERMET
year errors (Continued) ME (&)

(b) Summary of the effect of restatements (b) MMEMEBEFFESRRE
due to correction of prior year errors TERZZE(E)
(Continued)

(i) Effect of restatements on the Group’s (i) HEEHFEZ—_FT—+F
consolidated statement of profit or loss +t-A=+—HILEFE
and other comprehensive income for WHEEERmRAMEE
the year ended 31 December 2017 Wk ETERYZE
(Continued) (%)

As previously

reported Note 2.3(a) As restated
WMEARE #13£2.3() mES
RMB RMB RMB
ARE ARE AR
Loss per share for loss from ANAEAR AELRE
continuing operations RELEEB 2 EBE
attributable to the owners of RERER
the Company
Basic (RMB per share) ER(BRARE) (0.23) 0.22)
Diluted (RMB per share) BE(BRARE) (0.23) 0.22)
Loss per share for loss from ANAIER ANEERE
continuing and discontinued SRR IR R R
operations attributable tothe 2 BRHERER
owners of the Company
Basic (RMB per share) ER(BRARE) (0.24) (0.23)
Diluted (RMB per share) BE(BRARE) (0.24) (0.23)
Loss for the year FREBE (58,337,931) (57,223,723)
Other comprehensive income  Ef2ERA
ltem that may be reclassified AT ER P AEE B2
to profit or loss: HEE
Currency translation differences  # &1 5 SRR
on translation of foreign i UNGIEY ¢
operations with a functional BINEBREE
currency different from BmEER
the Company's presentation
currency 1,815,501 1,815,501
Item that will not be reclassified B &#®EF 7 HEZE
to profit or loss: BanfEE -
Currency translation differences ARIA A RIALEH
related to the Company on BERZF|E
translation of functional LEEHRE R
currency to presentation
currency (1,769,374) (1,769,374)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEETEE#Me)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior 23 AMEBETFENERMET
year errors (Continued) ME &)

(b) Summary of the effect of restatements (b) #MEMEBFFERRE
due to correction of prior year errors TERZSE(E)
(Continued)

(i)  Effect of restatements on the Group’s (i) HEEFHEZ—_FT—+F
consolidated statement of profit or loss +t-A=+—HILEFE
and other comprehensive income for WHEEEmRAMEE
the year ended 31 December 2017 Wk ETERYZE
(Continued) (%)

As previously

reported Note 2.3(a) As restated
WEARE Hii£2.36) mES
RMB RVMB RMB
AR AR ARE

Other comprehensive income  EREMZEKRA
for the year 46,127 46,127

Total comprehensive loss FRNEHEERE
for the year (58,291,804) (57,177,596)

Total comprehensive loss for NTSEEEFEAZA

the year attributable to: EREAE:
Owners of the Company AREHERA
Loss from continuing REBELEER
operations HEE (56,156,455) 1,002,787 (55,153,668)
Loss from discontinued RERHEEEHG
operations HEE (3,012,125) (3,012,125)
(59,168,580) (58,165,793)
Non-controlling interests FEHE R R
Profit from continuing RELEEBHERT]
operations 876,776 111,421 988,197
(58,291,804) (57,177,596)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior
year errors (Continued)
(b) Summary of the effect of restatements
due to correction of prior year errors

(Continued)

(i) Effect of restatements on the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for

the year ended 31 December 2017
(Continued)
Note: (1) Finance income and reversal of provision

for impairment of trade receivables
previously reported under “Other losses,
net” have been reclassified to “Finance
income” and “Net impairment losses on
trade receivables and contract assets”
respectively, (2) provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables previously
reported under “Administrative and other
operating expenses” has been reclassified to
“Net impairment losses on trade receivables
and contract assets” and (3) loss on disposal
of property, plant and equipment previously
reported under “Administrative and other
operating expenses” has been reclassified to
"Other losses, net” to conform with current
year presentation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior
year errors (Continued)
(b) Summary of the effect of restatements
due to correction of prior year errors
(Continued)
(i) Effect of restatements on the Group’s
statement of cash flow as at 31 December

AR A B T

2 EESTHEMRE)

2.3 FMEBITFEMNERMET
RYEE L ()
(b) BURRAMEBEFESERE

TEM

SE(E)

ER=F—tF1+=F
S+-AAKERER

2017 BEXRHTE
As previously
reported Note 2.3(a) As restated
WEAZHK #1:E2.3() mE3
RMB RMB RMB
ARHE ARE AR
Loss before income tax BREBHAEE
Continuing operations FREE R (53,455,614) 1,114,208 (52,341,406)
Discontinued operations RIS (3,012,125) (3,012,125)
Loss before income tax BERERLREEE
from continuing and BRETERAIEE
discontinued operations (56,467,739) (55,353,531)
Adjustments for: TR
Amortisation of intangible assets & FE 5,583,688 (1,114,208) 4,469,480
Depreciation of property, 0% BEREENE
plant and equipment 2,251,761 2,251,761
Interest income from RATIERF BHA
bank deposits (913,091) (913,091)
Interest expense onbankand 1T R AT SFHX
other borrowings 425,428 425,428
Loss on write-off of property, — #EEME - BERRE
plant and equipment HEE 21,679 21,679
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BERHRE
plant and equipment HEE 260,614 260,614
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & —EH B A BIHEE 155,686 155,686
Provision for impairment of trade & S E R EKZ E
and bills receivables WEEE 4,007,887 4,007,887
Reversal of impairmentlosson B S EMZEREREE
trade and bills receivables R EEERE (127,050) (127,050)
Share of loss of associates AMEBEAREE 1,890,329 1,890,329
Share of profit on a joint venture 5 —F& & %5&EH (4,844,289) (4,844,289)
Impairment l0ss on RSN ERHELE
remeasurement of BERREESE
assets held for sale 12,849,322 12,849,322
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEgEEE#Me)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior 23 R EBETEFENERMET
year errors (Continued) ME (&)

(b) Summary of the effect of restatements (b) MMEMEBEFFESRRE
due to correction of prior year errors TERZZE(E)
(Continued)

(i) Effect of restatements on the Group’s B —FE—+tFE+=H
statement of cash flow as at 31 December =Et+—HXEER2R
2017 (Continued) BXNZTE(E)

As previously
reported Note 2.3(a) As restated
WER 28K Bt 2.36) WEF
RMB RMB RMB
AR ARE ARE
Operating losses before EEEREBAZ
working capital changes Fdy ) (34,905,775) (34,905,775)
Changes in trade and bills BRI IERENEE
receivables ] 43,703,515 43,703,515
Changes in prepayments, BTHE  Re ki
deposits and other receivables  FEUZIBEEE) (57,627,763) (57,627,763)
Changes in trade payables BHENTIES 15,154,234 15,154,234
Changes in accruals and other BT R R A f fE T
payables HEE 19,518,689 19,518,689
Cash used in operations LTI & (14,157,100) (14,157,100)
Income tax paid ERPEE = _
Net cash used in operating WEEHMARSFE
activities (14,157,100) (14,157,100)
Cash flows from investing ~ REZHHMERERE
activities
Investment in an associate R A RRRE (3,000,000) (3,000,000)

Disposal of a subsidiary, HE—FRMBAR - Mk

net of cash disposed of HERE

Purchases of property, BENE  BERZE
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of HENE - BE ki
property, plant and equipment  &FT1E A

Proceeds from disposal of HEHEESHERE
available-for-sale financial RFERE
assets

Interest received B &

Changes in restricted bank RRBIBITERE
deposits

Net cash used in investing
activities

RERDMARTFE
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(11,116,634)
(2,022,719)
1,391,021
2,250,000

913,091

(5,900,000)

(17,485,241)

(11,116,634)
(2,022,719)
1,391,021
2,250,000

913,091

(5,900,000)

(17,485,241)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEETEE#Me)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior 23 AMEBETFENERMET
year errors (Continued) ME &)

(b) Summary of the effect of restatements (b) #MEMEBFFERRE
due to correction of prior year errors TERZZE(E)
(Continued)

(i) Effect of restatements on the Group’s (i) Bt —FE—+tF+=H
statement of cash flow as at 31 December =Et+—HFXEERER
2017 (Continued) BXNZTE(E)

As previously
reported Note 2.3(a) As restated
MER2H fi2.3) WEF
RMB RMB RMB
ARHE ARHEE ARE

Cash flows from financing  REZBHMERERE

activities
Interest paid EfFIE (425,428) (425,428)
Proceeds from bank and other 47 R A& =4

borrowings Pi55IE 9,565,000 9,565,000
Repayment of bank and other  EEHFITREMER

borrowings (3,935,000) (3,935,000)
Net cash generated from BRETHMERLTE

financing activities 5,204,572 5,204,572

Net decrease in cash and BERBEEEZ

cash equivalents OB (26,437,769) (26,437,769)
Effect of exchange rate changes 314 R4 SEMER

oncashand cash equivalents — E#g/ 2 46,127 46,127
Cash and cash equivalents atthe F#zH & RELZEN

beginning of the year 80,210,595 80,210,595

Cash and cash equivalents FRZBRERREEEY
atthe end of the year 53,818,953 53,318,953

Analysis of the balances of BE&RELZEY
cash and cash equivalents  && 2547
Cash and bank balances included R4 kFE & ZEHMA

in cash and cash equivalents  FIBRHIR & RR1THES 53,772,080 53,772,080
Cash and bank balances included REH & & E N5 8RR
in assets held for sale Be LiRTLEs 46,873 46,873

53,818,953 53,818,953
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEETEE#RE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior 23 R EBETEFENERMET
year errors (Continued) ME (&)

(b) Summary of the effect of restatements (b) MMEMEBEFFESRRE
due to correction of prior year errors TERZZE(E)
(Continued)

(iii) Effect of restatements on the Group’s (i) EXEHAEER=-F
consolidated statement of financial position —tF+ZA=+—HH
as at 31 becember 2017 HEB B BRI HE

As previously
reported Note 2.3(a) As restated
WEAZR #1:£2.3(a) nE5
RMB RMB RMB
ARHE ARE AR
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment %1% - BE k& & 10,689,462 10,689,462
Intangible assets BVAE 44,648,413 362,118 45,010,531
Deposits ®e 5,584,500 5,584,500
Deferred tax assets BIEHEEE 1,312,793 1,312,793
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 6223508 62,597,286
Current assets RBEE
Trade and bills receivables A= A ES:H 89,229,785 89,229,785
Prepayments, deposits and BATE  BeREM
other receivables e IE 71,056,673 71,056,673
Tax recoverable Ak E B 1,058,629 1,058,629
Restricted bank deposits ZREBTER 10,000,000 10,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESEEY 53,772,080 53,772,080
225,117,167 225,117,167
Assets classified as held for sale D48 A= EHENEE 8,760,115 8,760,115
Total current assets EREEE o 233877282 o 233877282
Total assets BEE 296,112,450 296,474,568
LIABILITIES af
Non-current liabilities =N
Deposits received and other Bz ¢ K EMERFE
payables 10,897,805 10,897,805
Deferred tax liabilities EIEHEARR 8,913,659 8,913,659
Total non-current liabilities FRBAaERE 19,811,464 19,811,464
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior
year errors (Continued)
(b) Summary of the effect of restatements
due to correction of prior year errors
(Continued)
(iii) Effect of restatements on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position

AR A B T

2 EESTHEMRE)

2.3 FMEBITFEMNERMET
RYEE L ()
(b) BURRAMEBEFESERE

TERzE(E)

(i) EXEHFAEBHR-F

—t#+=F=1+—H

as at 31 December 2017 (Continued) W& BB R E
& (&)
As previously
reported Note 2.3(a) As restated
WER 25| f1z#2.3() mEF
RMB RMB RMB
AR ARHE AR
Current liabilities hRBEE
Trade payables B S ENTIE 40,976,809 40,976,809
Accruals and other payables [zt & B R EMERMZIE 41,928,085 41,928,085
Bank and other borrowings BITREMER 9,565,000 9,565,000
Currentincome tax liabilities ~ BIERFTEREE 412,006 412,006
92,881,900 92,881,900
Liabilities directly associated A AEIEHERNEE
with assets classified as ERBHRNAE
held for sale 2,927,849 2,927 849
Total current liabilities BB RGeS o %g0949 95,809,749
Total liabilities weaE 115,621,213 115,621,213
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to ANRHA AELER
owners of the Company
Share capital AR 2,037,681 2,037,681
Other reserves HY i 221,943,835 221,943,835
Accumulated losses Z5TEE (49,039,632) 1,253,484 (47,786,148)
174,941,884 176,195,368
Non-controlling interests iR 5,549,353 (891,366) 4,657,987
Total equity ERaE 180,491,237 180,853,355
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEETEE#RE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior 23 R EBETEFENERMET
year errors (Continued) ME (&)
(b) Summary of the effect of restatements (b) MMEMEBEFFESRRE
due to correction of prior year errors TERZZE(E)
(Continued)
(iv) Effect of restatements on the Group’s (iv] EfiAEBER=-F—+
consolidated statement of financial F—F—HZHEHH
position as at 1 January 2017 KRR ZE

As previously

reported Note 2.3(a) As restated
WEH2H Hzt2.3() mE
RMB RMB RMB
AR¥E AR AR
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment %1% - BE k& E 12,599,059 12,599,059
Intangible assets BREE 50,232,101 (752,090) 49,480,011
Interest in a joint venture R—EEEENER 24,083,611 24,083,611
Interests in associates REE R RIS 1,822,595 1,822,595
Available-for-sale financial assets it &£ a&E 2,250,000 2,250,000
Deposits Be 5,584,500 5,584,500
Deferred tax assets BEHBEE 4,297,193 4,297,193
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 100,869,059 100,116,969
Current assets REBEE
Trade and bills receivables ZoEKTEREREE 136,814,137 136,814,137
Prepayments, deposits and BNFE  BERELM
other receivables EAlEeE] 21,759,873 21,759,873
Tax recoverable A e IR 1,058,629 1,058,629
Restricted bank deposits XRFRITER 4,100,000 4,100,000
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEEY 80,210,595 80,210,595
243,943,234 243,943,234
Assets classified as held for sale % ARB{EHEHEE - -
Total current assets REBERE 243,943,234 243,943,234
Total assets HEE 344,812,293 344,060,203
LIABILITIES &
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Deposits received and Bliuize R E AR
other payable 10,897,805 10,897,805
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 10,027,867 10,027,867
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Restatements due to correction of prior

ERETTEHEMM )

23 RMEBEFENHERMET

year errors (Continued) ME &)
(b) Summary of the effect of restatements (b) #MEMEBFFERRE
due to correction of prior year errors TERZZE(E)

(Continued)
(iv) Effect of restatements on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial

(iv) EfFXEEAR-F—+
F-—A-—HZHEHH

position as at 1 January 2017 (Continued) MEREE (FE)
As previously
reported Note 2.3(a) As restated
WER 28K #1:E2.3() mES
RMB RMB RMB
AR ARH ARE
Total non-current liabilities R EEE 20,925,672 20,925,672
Current liabilities REaE
Trade payables B ST 45,121,455 45,121,455
Accruals and other payables e B R REMENTE 35,634,348 35,634,848
Bank and other borrowings RITREA S 3,935,000 3,935,000
Current income tax liabilities HEFREHAR 412,006 412,006
85,103,309 85,103,309
Liabilities directly associated BEABARELEEE
with assets classified as EREBERNAR
held for sale - -
Total current liabilities mBBEER . &103300 85,103,309
Total liabilities “afE 106,028,981 106,028,981
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to APREEAELES
owners of the Company
Share capital R 2,037,681 2,037,681
Other reserves Hib 221,897,979 221,897,979
Retained earnings RERF 10,175,075 250,697 10,425,772
234,110,735 234,361,432
Non-controlling interests IR 4,672,577 (1,002,787) 3,669,790
Total equity EREH 238,783,312 238,031,222
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEZgBER#f @)

POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity 24 ZRERBRERETHENRA
accounting
(@) Subsidiaries (@) MEAF

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(Note 2.5).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of
financial position respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity 24 ZRERBRERETHENRE
accounting (continued) (%)
(b) Changes in ownership interests (b)

ERETTEHEMM )

BRERZ2H

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the
company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSS.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred:;

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESBEER®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Business combinations (continued) 2.5 ¥K&6t®)

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

° consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity,

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or
a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M ot
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RIN=N

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes directly attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has
been identified as the executive directors of the
Company.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Foreign currency translation

(@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The functional currency of the Company
is Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD").

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB consistently over the years, as
most of the Group’s operations have been
principally based in the PRC historically and such
operations continue to contribute significantly to
the Group’s financial results and position in the
current reporting period despite the Group has
started new business lines in Hong Kong. Therefore,
the directors consider that it continues to be more
appropriate to adopt RMB as the Group's and the
Company’s presentation currency in the
consolidated financial statements.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the statement of profit
or loss, within finance costs. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net
basis within other losses, net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or l0ss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each consolidated
statement of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of
statement of financial position,

. income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives at the following rates per
annum:

Office furniture and
equipment

Motor vehicles

Leasehold improvement

Right-of-use assets

20-33% per annum

10-25% per annum
over the lease terms
over the lease terms

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss.

132 BRANDING CHINA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2

EESHBERMTR @)
29 X  BERRE

ME  BERREBRRNBRANTE
RAEFRRRERBE(E) IR - B
ERABREEERRIAR EEEGH
FX

HEKAR BHEZIAB BRAMNARRK
BN A A REMANEE - xR
BRI ANEER] SERT B - AT ABE
WEHAEXERRSBLEE(WNE
) - BRE D REED THER
FrB E e MR B EEE N MR
MR ERRER AR

FrELA T FEMERREMGAIERF
HERBERATE - AR (40
BREFSREE) -

PNEFRM R B 20-33%
B

T B 10-25%

EHE NN

EREEE REEHR

EENBEELRAERAFHCER
Bl WNERERRNEERKIELA

2 o

HEENREESNEMGEFTKEE
B BERHMREE RO S -

W s & B R IZ TS SR SR E E
LLERETE - W BRI



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Intangible assets

(@)

(b)

Goodwiill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.5.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are
identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments.

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in
administrative and other operating expenses.
Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis
over their useful lives as follows:

Computer software and domain 3-5 years
Acquired lease with favorable terms over the
lease term
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

2.12

Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment 10ss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable.
They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets and investment property that
are carried at fair value and contractual rights under
insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from
this requirement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHEMRE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Non-current assets held for sale and 212 HEHEWERBEERKLL

discontinued operations (continuead)

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group)
to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any
subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an
asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain
or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale
of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised
at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a
disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while
they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other
expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the
assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from the other assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The liabilities
of a disposal group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from other liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity
that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale
and that represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued
operations are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
and liabilities
Accounting policies applied since 1 January
2018

(€:))

(b)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets and
liabilities in the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income or through profit or loss); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets

EESHBERMTE @)
2B REREMEREERER

and liabilities (continued) ()
Accounting policies applied since 1 January BE-ZE-NE—A—AEMEAR
2018 (Continued) KR EHIBCR (48)

(c) Measurement (c) &tE

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies its
debt instruments into amortised cost.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or 10ss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other income and
other losses, net, together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
and liabilities (continued)
Accounting policies applied since 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets,
the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables (Note 22).

Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss, and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

For liabilities measured at fair value, gains and
losses will be recorded in profit or loss.

At initial recognition, the Group shall measure a
financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in
the case of a financial liability not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
the financial liability.

Subsequently, all financial liabilities will be
measured at amortised cost, except for financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such
liabilities, including derivatives and warrants, shall
be subsequently measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets
and liabilities (continued)
Accounting policies applied since 1 January
2018 (Continued)
(e) Financial liabilities (Continued)

()

In addition, the Group may, at initial recognition,
irrevocably designate a financial liability as
measured at fair value through profit or loss. As at
31 December 2018, the convertible note held by
the Group was designated as the financial liability
at fair value through profit or loss.

Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information.
As a result, the comparative information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance with
the Group's previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classifies its
financial assets as loans and receivables. The
classification determined on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired. Management
determined the classification of its investments at
initial recognition. See Note 40 for details about
each type of financial assets.

() Reclassification

The Group could choose to reclassify financial
assets that would meet the definition of loans
and receivables out of available-for-sale
categories if the Group had the intention and
ability to hold these financial assets for the
foreseeable future or until maturity at the
date of reclassification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets
and liabilities (continued)
Accounting policies applied since 1 January
2018 (Continued)
(f) Accounting policies applied until 31

December 2017 (Continued)

() Reclassification (Continued)
Reclassifications were made at fair value as
of the reclassification date. Fair value became
the new cost or amortised cost as applicable,
and no reversals of fair value gains or losses
recorded before reclassification date were
subsequently made. Effective interest rates
for financial assets reclassified to loans and
receivables category were determined at the
reclassification date. Further increases in
estimates of cash flows adjusted effective
interest rates prospectively.

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-
sale financial assets are sold, the
accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss as other
income and gains from investment securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
and liabilities (continued)
Accounting policies applied since 1 January
2018 (Continued)
(f) Accounting policies applied until 31

December 2017 (Continued)

(iii)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or l0ss.

Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value
are recognised as follows:

J for available-for-sale financial assets
that are monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency —
translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost of the
security are recognised in profit or loss
and other changes in the carrying
amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income;

o for other monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale
— in other comprehensive income.

AR A B T

2 EESTHEMRE)

2B REREMEMEERERS

(%)
B=2-N\E—-A-HERER
e R (#)

f) ERARE-ZF—-—tHF+=-4
=+ —HHEFTHE(E)
(i) & E
VIFERE  AEER
ERMEENRFERA
W R FEF ABE
RNEREE) NEXKR
BRZEBMEERED
RPERAGTE - BRF
Bt ABaENESRE
ENRSGHRARIBREX

B R e R IR AR LA
RN R IREIHEKA
518

AHHESREERR
BAVEER 2FE

5 B P EE A O W R SRS
BRI

o BEBMNIMNEFHER
E¥MRESATH
HESREE —
S 78 5 M B A AN
BEBNENZE
RIBRER - MR
EERHE A ZE) A
T L ) 2 T UK 2

29
n«?\:—'\ S

s HOoBRWHEE
ME M E ¥ R IE
EREES — R
H b 2 H &= 8

29
n«?\:—'\ S

mEFEEEARAR 2018FFH 141



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M ot
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets
and liabilities (continued)
Accounting policies applied since 1 January
2018 (Continued)
(f) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement (Continued)

Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss as
part of revenue from continuing operations
when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Interest on available-for-sale securities and
loans and receivables calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as
part of revenue from continuing operations.

Impairment

The Group assessed at the end of each
reporting period whether there was objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets was impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets was
impaired and impairment losses were
incurred only if there was objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) had an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets
that could be reliably estimated. In the case
of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost
was considered an indicator that the assets
are impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets

and liabilities (continued)

Accounting policies applied since 1 January

2018 (Continued)

(f) Accounting policies applied until 31

December 2017 (Continued)
(iv)  Impairment (Continued)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the
loss was measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that had not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset was reduced
and the amount of the loss was recognised in
profit or loss under administrative and other
operating expenses. If a loan had a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss was the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group could
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreased and the decrease
could be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position where the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

2.15 Digital asset inventories

Digital asset inventories are held for the purposes of
trading in the ordinary course of the Group's digital
assets business in the over-the-counter market.

Digital asset inventories held in the Group's digital asset
wallets primarily comprise digital assets that are
prefunded by and traded with, but not yet withdrawn by
counterparties (or “customers”) under Digital Asset
Services Agreements (“DASA"). They also include digital
assets sourced from liquidity providers and exchanges.
Based on the respective rights and obligations of the
Group and its customers under the DASA, digital assets
still held by the Group in designated customer accounts
are recorded as assets of the Group (see below for the
measurement) with a corresponding liability recorded
due to the customer (under “digital asset liabilities due to
customers” measured at fair value through profit or loss
in current liabilities). Upon a customer’s request to
withdraw digital assets, the Group transfers the digital
assets from its own wallets to the customer’s wallet and
the related inventory and liability due to the customer is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Digital asset inventories (continued)

ERETTEHEMM )

215 HFEEFE )

Since the Group actively trades digital assets, purchasing
them with a view to their resale in the near future, and
generating a profit from fluctuations in the price, the
Group applies the guidance in IAS 2 for commodity
broker-traders and measures the digital asset inventories
at fair value less costs to sell. The Group considers there
are no significant “costs to sell” digital assets and hence
measurement of digital assets is based on their fair
values with changes in fair values recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the period of the changes.

See Note 3.5 for estimation of fair value in respect of the
digital asset inventories and digital asset liabilities due to
customers.

2.16 Trade and bills receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
bills receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and bills receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade and
bills receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 22 for further information
about the Group's accounting for trade receivables and
Note 3.3(b) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

2.19 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Trade and other payables (continued)

ERETTEHEMM )

219 ESREMEBENREAE)

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated
and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to

e ENRRCESHERS B
BERAEEARTESTANEHES

extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), kil o B E(ERERER) - B
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is moEERIERAER  WIReRA

measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.
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2.20 Borrowings 2.20 &K
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of BRI F AT E(HNBREEERR
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently SRR EBITEHEK A

measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHEMRE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 221 ENEARIEREFT B8 (&)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to
the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Employee benefits

(@)

(b)

(c)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates defined contribution pension
plans. Under the defined contribution pension plan,
the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Other benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to
defined contribution housing, medical and other
benefit plans organised by the PRC government
based on the relevant laws and regulations. The
PRC government undertakes to assume the benefit
obligations of all existing and retired employees
under these plans. Contributions to these plans by
the Group are expensed as incurred. The Group
has no further obligations for the benefits for their
qualified employees under these plans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised upon the
earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

2.23 Share-based payments

The Company operates a share award scheme and a
share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) and consultants of the
Group may receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby the employees and
consultants render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The fair value of the employee and consultancy services
received in exchange for the grant of the award shares
and options is recognised as an expense with a
corresponding increase in share based payment reserve.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the share awards and share
options granted. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options and awards that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.25 Contracts for trading of digital assets

In the ordinary course of the Group’s digital assets
trading business in the over-the-counter market, the
Group enters into a DASA with each of the customers for
buying and selling of digital assets. As the DASA can, in
practice, be settled net in cash, the Group accounts for
the contracts as financial instruments and designates
them as measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Ccontinued)
2.25 Contracts for trading of digital assets

ERETTEHEMM )

225 BERFEENSN @)

(Continued)

Although DASA is a financial instrument, it is
nevertheless also a contract with customers, which may
result in physical delivery of digital assets to customers.
On the date of physical delivery, gross proceeds from
these contracts give rise to revenue under IFRS 15 with
the related inventory, measured at fair value less cost to
sell basis, being recognised as cost of revenue. However,
the Group has made an accounting policy decision to
account for the contracts purely within IFRS 9 and views
the delivery of digital assets to customers as settlement
of financial instruments. Consequently, the Group does
not present “revenue from contracts with customers” or
related cost of revenue. Should the Group elect to
present these separately, the gross amounts of revenue
from contracts with customers or related cost of revenue
would be of the same amount given both the DASA and
the digital asset inventories are measured on a fair value
basis.

Accordingly, the Group presents trading income from digital
assets business that primarily represent trading margin
arising from trading various digital assets and net gain or
loss from remeasurement of digital asset inventories to the
extent it is not offset by remeasurement of digital asset
liabilities due to customers arising from DASA.

2.26 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenues are
recognised when goods are transferred or services are
rendered to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Revenue recognition (continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, service may be provided over time
or at a point in time. Service is provided over time if the
Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If service transfers over time, revenue is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the service.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on one of the
following methods that best depict the Group's
performance in satisfying the performance obligation:

o time-based measure of progress; or

o the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation.

When determining the transaction price to be allocated
from different performance obligations, the Group first
determines the service fees that the Group entitles in the
contract period and adjusts the transaction price for
variable considerations and significant financing
component, if any. The Group includes in the transaction
price some of all of an amount of variable considerations
only to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26

2.27

Revenue recognhition (continued)

If contracts involve the provision of multiple services, the
transaction price will be allocated from each
performance obligation based on the stand-alone selling
prices. Where these are not directly observable, they are
estimated based on expected cost plus margin.

A contract asset is the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for the services that the Group has transferred
to a customer. In addition, incremental costs incurred to
obtain a new contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as
contract cost and subsequently amortised when the
related revenue is recognised.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment under the
same approach adopted for impairment assessment of
financial assets carried at amortised cost.

A contract liability is the Group's obligation to render the
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer. A contract liability is
recognised by the Group when the customer pays
consideration but before the Group renders the service
to the customer. Contract liabilities mainly included the
advance payments received from sales of hardware and
software and provision of initial set up and customisation
Services.

The following is a description of the accounting policy for
the principal revenue streams of the Group.

Revenue from advertising, public relations and event
marketing services from online services is recognised
over the period of contracts entered with the customers.

Interest income

Interest income is presented as finance income where it
is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.28 Leases

As stated in Note 2.2, the Group has early adopted IFRS
16 Leases from 1 January 2018, which resulted in
changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Accounting policies applied since 1 January
2018

The Group as lessor

The accounting treatment of leases held by the Group as
lessor is same as the accounting policies applied prior to
31 December 2017.

The Group as lessee

(@ Lease assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determine that the arrangement conveys a
right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Such
determination is made on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement, regardless of
whether the arrangements take the legal form of a
lease.

Leases are initially recognised as a right-of-use
asset and corresponding liability at the date of
which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.28 Leases (Continued)
Accounting policies applied since 1 January
2018 (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

(@

Lease assets (Continued)

Assets leased by the Group and the corresponding
liabilities are initially measured on a present value
basis.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

— fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives
receivable,

— variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate;

— amounts expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees;

— the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

— payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group, as
a lessee, exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be
determined, or the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)
2.28 Leases (Continued)
Accounting policies applied since 1 January
2018 (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
(@ Lease assets (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

— the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;

— any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease
incentive received,

— any initial direct costs; and
—  restoration costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

(b)  Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property and equipment leases across
the Group. These terms are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing
contracts. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by
the Group and not by the respective lessor.

() Residual value guarantees
To optimise lease costs during the contract period,
the Group may provide residual value guarantees in
relation to property and equipment leases.

158 BRANDING CHINA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

EESHBERMTR @)

228 ME(#)
B-ZE-NE-A—-BEBEAN
SRR (#)

FEBMIERBAHEA
@ HEZEE)
EREEEMNKATEBRREIN

NEIR:

— HERENMITFHES
#

— RABBHRZAME

W ERMBERNR - BE
S EREEES

—  EAVRERAAE R

—  BERAK-

RHPHEREREEEEHESR

BN EREENGA R

BRANER RN - EHEE

FEHEH A 121E A A TR

(b) FERIRAIIE
AEENETYERRGBEE
BRERRKILEEE - ZF
ERTARAEEANSRKE
BRMRAL - FrEEHE H R
DER R L EE T BAKE
17 - RS HEBHEBEALT
15

© FEREERE
RREHNHREECEERA -
AEESERHABYERR
BHEHENNBREERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHEMRE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (Continued) 228 #HE (&)

Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as operating lessor

Rental income from acquired lease with favorable terms
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an acquired lease with
favorable terms are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The respective lease assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on
their nature.

The Group as operating lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group as
lessee are classified as acquired lease with favorable
terms. Payments made under acquired lease with
favorable terms (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.29 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets.

2.30 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.30 Discontinued operations (Continued)
Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the statement of
profit or loss, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal groups
constituting the discontinued operation.

3 RISK DISCLOSURES
The Group operates in three business segments, including
traditional advertising, business park area management and
digital assets trading, each of which carries distinct risks
related to their business model and correlation with the
macroeconomic environment.

3.1 Business development and the
associated risks in 2018
During the year, the Group has strategically expanded
into new business areas including digital assets and
blockchain related technology, particularly as a service
provider of technology and software solutions and as a
facilitator in trading of digital assets.

Management considers that the risks and uncertainties
associated with the digital assets trading business are
largely related to information technology, safekeeping of
digital assets, fluctuation of asset prices compliance and
the unregulated and immature nature of the markets. As
the industry is in the early stages of development, the
Group has been implementing necessary operational
infrastructure to support the development and the
initiatives include identifying facilities, expanding IT
infrastructure, and hiring additional management and
personnel with an emphasis on experience in legal,
regulatory, compliance, financial reporting, operations and
technology development. All of these were considered
necessary before any revenue was generated for our
blockchain and financial technology related businesses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

3 RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)
3.2 Risk management of digital asset and
blockchain related business

(M

(ii)

Regulatory risk in relevant jurisdictions
The Group's digital asset and blockchain related
technology business currently operates in Hong
Kong where regulators are considering imposing
more stringent regulatory frameworks, this is likely
to impact the Group's operations. As the regulatory
landscape around blockchain and distributed ledger
technology in Hong Kong becomes clearer, it is
anticipated that more of the Group’s business is
likely to fall within regulations, and may require
licenses or approvals to operate, and may be
subject to financial and capital covenants.

To manage the risks associated, the Group has
expended substantial resources building up a
strong team of experienced Risk & Compliance
professionals, who are responsible for oversight of
all business activities with respect to prevailing and
potential regulatory frameworks applicable to the
Group.

Price risk of digital asset inventories

The Group holds digital asset inventories in order to
facilitate and support the settlement process of the
digital assets trading business. The volatility and
unpredictability of the price of digital assets relative
to fiat currencies could cause significant impact to
the Group's performance.

To manage the risk, the level of digital asset
holdings is controlled by limits based on volatility,
position size and liquidity, as approved by the Risk
Committee and as overseen by the Group’s Risk
Department. During times of heightened price
volatility, the Group may choose to reduce its digital
asset inventory exposure either by selling down or
entering into hedge transactions such as exchange
traded Futures contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)
3.2 Risk management of digital asset and
blockchain related business (continued)

(ii)

(i)

Price risk of digital asset inventories
(Continued)

The Group also holds digital assets in designated
customers' accounts under its contracts with the
customers. These digital assets are held in the
Group's wallets which support rapid settlement of
traded transactions, thereby eliminating settlement
risk for the Group. As this inventory held in
customers' accounts corresponds to a liability due
to the customers with both the inventory and
liability to customers recorded at fair value, the
Group has no price volatility exposure from these
holdings.

For details of the financial risks related to pricing,
please refer to Note 3.3(c).

Risks related to safekeeping of assets
The Group maintains digital assets in both “hot”
(connected to the Internet) and “cold” (not
connected to the Internet) wallets. “Hot” wallets are
more susceptible to cyber-attacks or potential theft
due to the fact they are connected to the public
internet.

To mitigate such risks, the Group has implemented
guidelines and risk control protocols to dynamically
adjust the level of digital assets maintained in “hot”
wallets required to facilitate trading of digital
assets. Given the lack of established third-party
services for the safekeeping of digital assets, the
Group has developed a proprietary digital asset
wallet solution for their cold wallets with
comprehensive security controls and risk mitigation
processes in place. These include control
procedures starting from wallet generation to day-
to-day wallet management and security to monitor
and safeguard the Group’s “hot” and “cold” wallets
and public and private keys. In 2019, the Group has
also obtained insurance from third-party insurance
providers to insure both its “hot” and “cold” wallets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

3 RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)
3.2 Risk management of digital asset and
blockchain related business (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Risks related to source of funds and anti-
money laundering

Digital assets are exchangeable directly between
parties through decentralized networks that allow
anonymous transactions, which create complex
technical challenges with respect to issues such as
identification of parties involved and ownership.

To mitigate such risks, the Group has implemented
Anti-Money Laundering, Know Your Customer
(KYC), and Know Your Business (KYB) policies and
procedures during the client onboarding process
and continuous reporting.

Technology leakage risk

The Group's key competitive advantage lies in its
blockchain-related technology intellectual property
("IP") and trade secrets. Should its IP and trade
secrets be compromised, the Group could face
risks in its ability to remain competitive and execute
its strategy.

Technology leakage risks are mitigated by controls
of information and being able to defend against
intrusion into the Group's technology infrastructure
and IP protection and prevention of leakage of
sensitive data.

Information security risks

The Group’s and client information are maintained
on proprietary data infrastructure in conjunction
with services by cloud service providers. Such
infrastructure is connected to the public internet
and therefore subject to potential cyber-attacks. To
mitigate such risks, the Group has a dedicated
security team that have implemented security
controls including but not limited to multi-factor
authentication, data and network segregation,
system redundancy and encrypted backups,
segregation of duties, least privilege principal,
event monitoring and incident response.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 RISK DISCLOSURES (continued)
3.2 Risk management of digital asset and
blockchain related business (continued)
(vii) New product risk

Prior to the deployment and release of new
products and businesses to the Group’s clients,
every such new activity is reviewed by the Risk
Department. The Risk Department reviews each
proposal against business capability, impact on
balance sheet as well as the suite of risks that are
typically inherent in such activities such as
operational risk, legal risk, regulatory risk, market,
credit and liquidity risk. Approval to proceed with
the proposed business or product will only be
forthcoming once the committee is satisfied that all
necessary controls and support functions are fully
implemented.

(viii) Business continuity

(ix)

The Group operates its technology stack with
remote data centre sites and is implementing a
business continuity and disaster recovery plan, and
is shortly building capability to ensure resilience
against external and internal threats, allowing
business activities to continue during catastrophes
and crises, such as disruption of utilities or denial
of physical access to business offices.

Currently, the Group is analysing Business
Continuity Plan ("BCP") requirements for each
business and support function and will shortly
move to implementing a comprehensive physical
disaster recover capability.

Operational risk

Operational risk covers a spectrum of potential
incidents and actions that may cause safety or
health impairment of staff, financial loss,
reputational damage, regulatory sanctions or 10ss
of business capability. Such losses may arise from
process weaknesses, lack of staff training,
technology failures, honest errors or malicious
actions by internal or external agents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

3 RISK DISCLOSURES (continued) 3 REREE®
3.2 Risk management of digital asset and 3.2 BFEERERBHEBERXN

blockchain related business (continued) BERER &)

(ix) Operational risk (Continued) (ix) EERRE)
The Group's Operational Risk Committee has been rEEMEEREEZEESE S
formed as the central oversight and management PR - EREFEERER—
function for all operational risk actions and related o) & B B 17 B) SR AR B 12 1DE
control activities. The Group's Risk Department ) o AEBMEKRIBPIEME
specifically employs Operational Risk Managers RAeEERREE MESERE
who are empowered to test and challenge BIE 2 E SR S R ER P
businesses and support functions so as to improve DA SR Bt B2 s b 128 ) & R 32
and enhance controls and process flows. In 2o B4 FTAEPIEBRE R
addition, regular reviews of all departments are =6l B 1TRIET T A R ER#ETT
performed by way of Risk Control Self Assessment EHET - AT ER
tools and reviews; such analyses form a component FEpsERN—HH - W
of business risk management as well as to support VEERAEENEERR -
independent oversight of operational risks within
the Group.

3.3 Financial risk management 3.3 BKRKBER

Financial risk factors Mg EEEE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial RNEBH)EB AT E LRV ER :

risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and % R (B35 INE R g A 23R & 7

cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk, ERAFERNERR) 8RR -

price risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk ERRRRTBE SRR - NEER

management programme focuses on the unpredictability BERERREEGAESFE IR R TISH

of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential TNEFRAIY - WESkFERIEE AR E

adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. B ERBREERFIFE -

Risk management is carried out by the executive [B\ B B3R R AR B T EE SR AT ©

directors of the Group. The executive directors identify WITESERAEFELE D BERA

and evaluate financial risks in close cooperation with the VERF 38 Bl N 5T B1 75 JRL B o

operating units of the Group.

(@) Market risk (a) WmHEE

() Foreign exchange risk () SMNEESE
The Group mainly operates in the PRC and AEBEEZERTBERA
Hong Kong. Foreign exchange risk arises from AT o JNE R B2
future commercial transactions, recognised KERREERS W
assets and liabilities denominated in a FELAME Bl & B A R TN B
currency that is not the functional currency of BN ERRNEE
the individual group companies and net Y& BN RgINERIE
investments in foreign operations. B o
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3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)

3.3 Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, most of the financial
assets and liabilities of the Group’s
subsidiaries are denominated in their
functional currencies.

There are certain USD financial assets and
liabilities held by subsidiaries with HKD
functional currency. Since HKD are pegged to
the United States dollar (“USD"), management
considers the foreign exchange risk of USD
financial assets and liabilities to the Group is
not significant. Hence, the directors of the
Company consider the Group does not have
any material foreign exchange risk exposure.
No sensitivity analysis is presented.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on
interest bearing assets and liabilities.
Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. In
the opinion of directors, the expected change
in fair values as a results of change in market
interest rates will not be significant, thus no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
changes in market interest rates will impact
cash flows arising from variable rate financial
instruments. The Group’'s assets and
liabilities, which bear variable interest rates
mainly, include bank deposits. Management
manages the interest rate risk exposure
through regular review to determine the
funding strategy as appropriate to its current
business profile.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

3 RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)
3.3 Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)
At 31 December 2018, if interest rates had
been 100 (2017: 100) basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
the loss before income tax would have been
RMB269,943 lower/higher (2017:
RMB248,776), mainly as a result of higher/
lower net interest income on floating rate
short term bank deposits.

(b) Creditrisk

Our Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and bill receivables, contract assets, deposits
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank deposits included in the
consolidated statement of financial position, which
represent our Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets. Our
management has credit policies in place to monitor
the exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing
basis.

For trade and bill receivables and contract assets,
the Group has credit policy to monitor the level of
credit risk. In general, the credit record and credit
period for each customer or debtor are regularly
assessed, based on the customer’s or debtor’s
financial condition, their capacity to obtain
guarantee from third parties, their credit records
and other factors such as current market condition.

The Group applies the simplified approach to
providing for expected credit losses prescribed by
IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables
from third parties and related parties.
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3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)

3.3 Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over the period before the balance
sheet date and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on marcoeconomic
factors, for example, the Gross Domestic Product
(GDP) of the cities affecting the customers to settle
the receivables.

For trade receivables and contract assets related to
PRC businesses, the Group overall considers the
shared credit risk characteristic and the days past
due of the trade receivables and contract assets to
measure the expected credit loss. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, expected loss rate of
trade receivables and contract assets related to
traditional advertising and business park area
management services are assessed to be
approximately 3% and 20%, respectively.

For receivables from customer of the digital assets
trading business, customers are required to
prefund their accounts prior to the trade. Trades
with liquidity providers can be on credit.
Management makes individual assessment on
recoverability of the receivable from these liquidity
providers based on historical settlement record and
past experience. During the year ended 31
December 2018, a debt is no longer considered
collectible and the Group has ceased trading
relationship with that liquidity provider. Therefore,
the full amount with that liquidity provider is fully
provided for, the directors believe that there is no
material credit risk in the remaining receivable
balance and the expected credit loss is close to
zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M ot
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RIN=N

3

RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)
3.3 Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period of greater than 3
years past due.

Impairment losses on trade and bill receivables and
contract assets are presented as net impairment
losses on trade receivables and contract assets in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line item.

To manage the risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits, the Group
mostly transacts with reputable financial
institutions and banks, which are all with high-
credit-quality. The Group also transacts with
financial institutions, and certain level of deposits
of which is insured by a regulator in the United
States. There has no recent history of default in
relation to these financial institutions. The expected
credit loss is close to zero.

For other receivables, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records
and past experience. The directors believe there is
no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balances of other receivables and the
expected credit l0ss is close to zero.
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3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RISK DISCLOSURES (continued)

3.3 Financial risk management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Price risk

Exposure

Digital assets that the Group deals with in its
trading activities are digital assets such as Bitcoin,
Ethereum, Ripple, Litecoin and Bitcoin Cash which
can be traded in a number of public exchanges.

The Group’s exposure to price risk arises from
digital assets and liabilities which are both
measured on fair value basis (Note 21 and Note 29).

The price risk of digital asset inventories arising
from digital assets business is partly offset by
remeasurement of digital asset liabilities, which is
the obligation to deliver digital assets held by the
Group in the customers’ accounts to customers.

To manage its price risk arising from trading of
digital asset inventories, the Group's operating
principle is to reduce price risk by maintaining a
minimal net position of digital asset inventories
over its digital asset liabilities for working capital
purposes by matching a customer’s buy or sell
trade as quickly as possible with an opposite trade
with liquidity providers. In addition, the Group may
use digital asset futures to hedge against any
inventory positions.

As at 31 December 2018, there were no
outstanding futures contract.

Sensitivity

At 31 December 2018, if the prices of digital assets
held by the Group had increased/decreased by
20% in the principle markets with other variables
held constant, the loss before income tax arising
from changes in fair value of digital asset
inventories and digital asset liabilities due to
customers would have been RMB37,747,820 lower/
higher and RMB36,102,758 higher/lower
respectively, with the net effect of RMB1,645,062
lower/higher for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

3 RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)
3.3 Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds
to meet all contractual financial commitments as
they fall due. The Group’s objectives are to
maintain a prudent financial policy, to monitor
liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain a
contingency plan for funding to ensure that the
Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirement. The Group meets its day to day
working capital requirements, capital expenditure
and financial obligations through cash inflow from
operating activities and the facilities obtained from
banks and other lenders. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, management
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
availability under committed credit lines.

The directors closely monitor the Group's liquidity
position and financial performance to ensure it has
sufficient cash flow to meet the operational need.
These measures include raising additional capital,
extending existing loan facilities; and obtaining
additional financing from banks and other leaders,
if considered necessary.

The table below analyses our Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the end of each financial
reporting period to the contractual maturity dates.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within twelve months equal their carrying amounts,
as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

3 RISK DISCLOSURES (continued) 3 ERFEEE)
3.3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3.3 MKREBER#)
Financial risk factors (Continued) BEREBEERE)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) #REELEE (&)
Within Between Between
On demand 1year 1and2years 2and5years  Over5years Total
BEX —£R -ZRE MERE BENLE &t
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARE ARE AR AR ARE ARE
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NE
TZB=1-H
Bank and other borrowings RIRAMIEHR - 242,089,055 17,989,315 - - 260,078,370
Lease liabilities HEak - 62,991,242 57,635,179 169,941,588 70,801,284 361,369,293
Financial labilites ot farvalue ~ ATES AERH
through profit or loss SHER - 686,275 14,472,449 - 6,873,163 22,031,887
Liabilities due to customers EEFNEE 380,701,523 - - - - 380701523
Trade payables RARATE 34,512,869 - - - - 34,512,869
Accruals, other payables and EHER - EfbERZ0E
deposits received kB 30,841,512 - - - 8,682,200 39,703,712
446,055,904 305,766,572 90,096,943 169,941,588 86,536,647  1,098,397,654
At 31 December 2017 RIB-t&
+ZB=t-8
Bak and otfier borrowings RITREMER = 9,565,000 = - - 9,565,000
Deposits received Blis - - - - 10,897,805 10,897,805
Trade payables BAERTE 40976809 - - - - 40976809
Accruals and other payables [T B R REMERFE 34,142,446 - - - - 30,102,446
75,119,255 9565000 - - NBTAS %5800
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

3 RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)
3.4 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholder and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain or adjust
the capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholder, return capital to shareholders and issue
new shares. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including bank and
other borrowings, a convertible note and warrant as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position)
less total cash and cash equivalents (including restricted
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position). As at
31 December 2018, the Group was in a net cash position
(2017: same position).

The expansion plan of the Group mainly depends on
maintaining sufficient funding to meet expenses. The
Group currently relies on funding from a variety of
sources including loans from third parties and potential
equity financing. Should the Company be unable to
obtain sufficient funding, both operations of the Company
and expansion plans could be impacted.

The Group will regularly review its major funding
positions to ensure that it has adequate financial
resources in meeting its financial obligations and seek to
diversify its funding sources.

174 BRANDING CHINA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

3

BB (&)
3.4 BEXER

REBREREAR B ERRE

SEFBLENRT - URREREM
Bl & AR ERMEEN - W4
Rl B AR RIE AR E AR
REFLARBEARE  AREHE
HEENTERROBESE AT
BERAEI R E AN R BEITHAAD » A&
B ERREABNEFRIGTIE -

HITEANEMENERMER - N&
BREERBLLREEEEER
AL EIRER R A S R
8 ERFRRERCH(BREA
BA TSRS 3R A PR B SR 1T B A A8
o AR E R RBRAER) RR e
MRS EEYRE(BEGEA MR
MR APTREE R BIRITF AR
ERBREEFBWFE-R-F—N
Fr-A=1t—H  AEBERNFR
SRR (ZF—LF : HRAMR)

REBMIEFTA S ZRORNAER T
RESAMRFAX - AEEBRFKE
BRIRNES  BRE=ZNEFK
BEBIERRE - (WA R REEERT
RED  AIARRANEERERE

4ok, 737, I3 | B2 4BB
AIRER B E -

AEBEREHENEIZESMN
NERBTERMBERBTENEER
T YFRETAEHESKIR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 RISK DISCLOSURES (continued)
3.5 Fair value estimation
(a) Financial assets and liabilities
This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the consolidated financial statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has
classified its financial instruments into the three
levels prescribed under the accounting standards.
An explanation of each level follows underneath
the table.

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

AR A B T

3 EREE@E)
3.5 AFEEME

(@

THEERER

AEHEENEESEPBEHRER
AR A FERERBNMTENE
BT R R FEFT1ER H B &
- RIRHEABEE A FE
By {5 P O 0 A BB AT SE M D
B ARESESRTANE
AEFHEAIAT At e = E%
Ao BEMHRMEN TR ©

(i) RFEER

Recurring fair value measurements EEDTEFE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-ER EZER EZER st
At 31December2018  R=-Z-N\f
+=RA=+-H Note RMB RMB RMB RMB
Financial liabilities SRAE fizF ARM ARM ARM ARM
Financial liabilities at BATER AR
fair value through At
profit or loss 31 - - 20,620,230 20,620,230
Liabilities due to customers FENZF & &
— Digital asset liabilities ~ — HFEEARE 29 178,529,726 1,984,066 - 180,513,792
Liabilities due to customers ENEFBE
— Fiat currencyliability ~ — AT EHARE 29 200,187,731 - - 200,187,731
378,717,457 1,984,066 20,620,230 401,321,753
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
IQ\W—\IZI

3

RIF5 ¥R IR

RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)
3.5 Fair value estimation (continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
As at 31 December 2017, there was no
financial assets or financial liabilities that
were measured at fair value.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2
and 3 for recurring fair value measurements
during the year.

Level 1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets

or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is,

derived from prices).

Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable

inputs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

RISK DISCLOSURES (continued) 3 REREE®
3.5 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.5 AFEME#E)
(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (@) eWMEEREE®E)
(i)  Fair value measurements using significant (i) RAEXTAEHEEHA
unobservable inputs (level 3) BENAFETE(E=
EAR)
The following table presents the changes in TRENBZE=ZZT—N
level 3 items for years ended 31 December F+-_A=+—HIF
2018: EF=EHRHERNE
Convertible note Warrant Total
TEREE Pl Eh
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
k- SR 3 ZTtF g-N\§ ZTtF “E-N\% ZTtf
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR% ARE AR% ARE AR% ARE

Openinghalance  ®—A—BHES]

at 1 January Eg - = - = - =
Addition E 13,763,235 = 6,881,617 - 20,644,852 -
Change infairvalue ~ ATEEH 6,882 - - - 6,882 -
Currencytranslation & #EZE

differences (23,050) - (8,454) - (31,504) -

Closing balanceat  WT=A=F+—HK
31 December EXRER 13,747,067 = 6,873,163 = 20,620,230 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

3 RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued) 3 BEBEE@
3.5 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.5 AFEME#E)
(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (@) eWMEEREE#®E)
(iii) Vvaluation inputs and relationships to (iii) 1218 By A B( 15 % 52 1 F
fair value BRI B 1R
Fair value as at Significant unobservable inputs
RATRENATE EXTTRRRALE
Financial instruments 31December  31December  Fair value 31December 31 Decemoer
2018 017 hierarchy  Valuation techniques and key inputs 2018 Yl
SHIE “E-NE IE-tE “5-NE )
tZR=t-B T2R=t-B ATEER HERERIZEAHE tZR=t-B fZA=+-H
RMB RVB
ARS ARE
(1) Convertble note has a conversion 13,747,067 NA - Level3 Black-Scholes Formula s adopted and the key Expected N/A
rightto convert the note into shares inputs are the share price of OS Holdings volatility 56%
0f S Holdings Limited and is Limited, the volatlties of the assets and the Risk-free
meastred at fair value through risk free rate rates 2.48%
proft or loss Dividend
yield 0%
() TEREERERZEEAA0S 13,747,067 TR EZER R SRTEY EXEEANE EEHE:56% Oyl
Holdings Limited B A A&k - ROSHoldngs Limited 0% - BEMEDNE  ERRAIE:
BATEFARS RERRTE 248%
REE:0%
(2 Warranthasa conversionight to 6,873,163 NA  Level3 Discounted cash flow mode is adopted and Terminal N/A
convert the warrant into orainary the key inputs are terminal growth rate and growth
shares of BC MarketPlace Limited discount rate rate: 2%
and is measLred at fair value Discount rate:
through proft or oss 38.4%
() FREEEERIREREAS 6,873,163 TR  EZER FRUSReRES BIEEARE  BAMRE:N Oyl
BC MarketPlace Limited £ Rk eh REPERERERE BREZ:38.4%

g TROTEARR

(3 Liabilties due to customers 1,984,066 NA - Level? The digital asset is quoted in unit of Bitcoin Quoted N/A
— igital asset liabiliies (Note) ('BIC"). Price of the digital assets at level 2 fair price of
valug is referenced to quoted price of BTC. BTC
@ ERZPMAR—#7EERRE 1,984,066 TR EZER  RTEEMUNB(URE)AELRE. LHYBAHE Oyl
() ECEOATERNETAEERNSZ
HHERE.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR
3 RISK DISCLOSURES (continued) 3 RESEE®)
3.5 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.5 AFEME#E)
(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (@) eWMEEREE®E)
(iii) Vvaluation inputs and relationships to (iii) 1218 By A B( 15 & £2 1 F
fair value (Continued) BEREIER (&)
Note: Hifat -
Digital asset inventories are held for the purposes HFEEFEDRAEERE
of trading in the ordinary course of the Group’s HINZ G IIENBEFEER
digital assets trading business in the over-the- SPEBHBEEEBBEPR

counter market. Based on respective right and
obligation between the Group and its customers,
and the obligations to settle or deliver such digital
assets are recognised as digital asset liabilities due
to customers.

The determination of fair value hierarchy level for
valuation of the liabilities due to customers would
depend on whether the underlying digital asset is
traded in an active market.

In determining fair values, the relevant
available markets are identified by the Group,
and the Group considers accessibility to and
activity within those markets in order to
identify the principal digital asset markets
dealt with by the Group. Reference is made
to the quoted prices from the principal digital
asset markets in determining the fair values
of the corresponding digital assets.

Certain type of digital assets is not traded in
an active market for fiat, instead, it is only
traded for another type of digital assets. In
such case, the digital asset inventories are
measured at level 2 fair value and the Group
takes reference to the quoted price of the
other digital assets in determining the fair
value.

The directors are of the opinion that any
reasonable changes in the unobservable
inputs would not result in a significant change
in the Group’s result. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis is presented for level 3
financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M ot

RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)
3.5 Fair value estimation (continued)

(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(iv) Valuation processes

The Group engages external, independent
and qualified valuers to determine the fair
value of the Group's financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss at the end of
every financial year. As at 31 December 2018,
the fair values of the financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss have been
determined by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited.

(b) Non-financial assets
(i)  Fair value hierarchy
This note explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair values
of the non-financial assets that are
recognised and measured at fair value in the
consolidated financial statements. To provide
an indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the Group has
classified its non-financial assets into the
three levels prescribed under the accounting
standards. An explanation of each level is

BB (&)
3.5 AP EME(E)

(@) eWMEEREE#®E)

(iv) 1EERE
REBRFEER - A&
EeREIINBELE
1% 1 (B A B o AN SR @ 3%
AFEFABENEH
- R\ &
+ZA=+—8" &2Q
FHEFAEZONESHA
BEE ARSI EETS
FARABRRFIERE °

(b) FEWMEE
(i) RFEER
AMZEERNEESA
B IE R AW IR A FE
ARG ENIFCRE
BE Y B P 1 B 1 B
Kfhate RIEHERE
EATFEREBOEA
BEAEENER K
SEGHIFSRMEED
BRETERET
M=EAFHK - &FEHRW

provided in Note 3.5(a) above. BB S HIRE3.5(a) ©
Recurring fair value measurements AEMNTFEFTE
At 31 December 2018 Level 2 Level 3 Total
“E-N\f¥+ZA=t-H E-ER  EZER st
Non-financial assets Note RMB RMB RMB
FEMEE i3 N ARH N
Digital asset inventories ~ #IFBERE 21 2,006,310 - 188,739,099

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not
have any non-financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2
and 3 for recurring fair value measurements
during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 RISK DISCLOSURES (continued)
3.5 Fair value estimation (continued)
(b) Non-financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Valuation inputs and relationships to
fair value

Digital asset inventories are held for the
purposes of trading in the ordinary course of
the Group’s digital assets trading business in
the over-the-counter market. Based on
respective right and obligation between the
Group and its customers, digital assets held
in the Group's wallets are recognised as the
Group's inventories.

As at 31 December 2018, the digital asset
inventories are measured at level 1 or level 2
fair value. The determination of fair value
hierarchy level for valuation of the digital
asset inventories would depend on whether
the underlying digital assets is traded in an
active market.

In determining fair values, the relevant
available markets are identified by the Group,
and the Group considers accessibility to and
activity within those markets in order to
identify the principal digital asset markets
dealt with by the Group. Reference is made
to the quoted prices from the principal digital
asset markets in determining the fair values
of the corresponding digital assets.

3 EREE@E)

AR A B T

3.5 AV EME#E)
(b) FEMEEE)
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BA1F
BFEEFEDRRA
SERERFTEEER
BEPESZINZZME
ETEEMIA - RIE
AEEEAETF ZHA%
BHEFNRERER A&
BEERAENHFTEE
HRRAEEEFE -

—ZE-NFE+=A
=+—H #®FEER

ZE—EBRREZE
BAFHEFTE BHTE
EFEHEZATEE
R H)EE TE % BUR P AR B8
HFEESTRGRM
HHRG) o

EEEAFER K&
B BRI R AW
BEREEGERZED
B A R RORBRIRE
NBRAEBETR S
MEBHFEEMS -
REEHEEFEEDN
RFERE2EIEH
FEEMZHMRE o

mEPHEEEER AT 2018FEE®R 181



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEBEE@
3.5 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.5 AFEME#E)
(b) Non-financial assets (Continued) (b) FEBMEEE)
(i) Vvaluation inputs and relationships to (i) 1HEHAERAFE
fair value (Continued) BER (&)
Certain type of digital assets is not traded in ETHINBEFEET
an active market for fiat, instead, it is only AIRERMISER 5 iR
traded for another type of digital assets. In BAEE® ARk H
such case, the digital asset inventories are EA MRS —HAK
measured at level 2 fair value and the Group BFTEEETRS R
takes reference to the quoted price of the ZEAT  BFEETR
other digital assets in determining the fair EERE_ERAFER
value: 2 BXAFEEREBEEAR
FERS2EZHMBETE
ERRE :
Fair value as at Significant unobservable input
RUTRENATE EXFUBERALE
Non-financial assets 31December  31December  Fair value 31December 31 December
2018 2017 hierarchy  Valuation techniques and key inputs 2018 2017
FEREE “E-N\E ZE-tE Z3-\f CEtE
tZA=t-R f2A=t-8  ATEER fERNRIESALE +=A=+-A tZA=t-H
RMB RMB
N3 ARE
Digital asset inventories 2,006,310 NA  Level2 The digital asset is quoted in unit of BTC. Quoted N/A
Price of the digital assets at level 2 fair price of
value is referenced to quoted price of BTC. BTC
UTBERY 2,006,310 MER  FER  HTAERNEMEURE-REC  WEMER TaH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition,
will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs
to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the
Group and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(@)

(b)

Accounting of digital asset transactions
and balances

IFRSs do not specifically address accounting for digital
assets. Accordingly, for the preparation of the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements, management needs to
apply judgement in determining appropriate accounting
policy based on the facts and circumstances of the
Group's over-the-counter trading business.

Given the business model of the Group, digital assets are
accounted for as inventories and are measured at fair
value less costs to sell. On the other hand, contracts for
trading of digital assets with the Group’s counterparties
and liquidity providers are accounted for as financial
instruments and measured at fair value through profit or
loss as these contracts can, in practice, be settled net in
cash.

Furthermore, in determining fair values, management
needs to apply judgement to identify the relevant
available markets, and to consider accessibility to and
activity within those markets in order to identify the
principal digital asset markets dealt with by the Group.

Impairment allowances for trade and
bills receivables and contract assets

The loss allowances for trade and bills receivables and
contract assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Please refer to Note 3.3(b) for details.
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2E - FEH2HME3.30b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

SEGMENT REPORTING

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been
identified as the executive directors of the Company. The
executive directors regularly review revenue and operating
results derived from different segments.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group started a
new business of digital assets business and had four reportable
segments. The segments are managed separately as each
business offers different services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

—  Wireless advertising — provision of wireless advertising
Services.

— Traditional advertising — provision of traditional
advertising services, public relation services and evert
marketing services.

—  Business park area management — providing operation
and management services in business park area.

— Digital assets business — trading of digital assets in the
over-the-counter market.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) has decided to discontinue
the operation of wireless advertising business on 29 December
2016. In accordance with IFRS 5, the segment of wireless
advertising service for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 were classified as discontinued operations in the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5 D EBERE ()
(a) For the year ended 31 December 2018 (@ BE=-E—N\F+=ZA=+-—
HIEFE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
. GELEER RIEEEER
Busingss
Traditional parkarea  Digital assets Wireless
advertising  management business  Unallocated Subtotal  advertising Total
BhEE HEEEEE  HFEEER IR gt BRES @it
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
N ARH Nt AE% AE¥ AE# N
Results 7 |
Revenue under IFRS 15:  RBEMEHKE %S
L5 ENNE
Revenue from advertising & (H2()
(Note (i) 100,431,065 - - - 100,431,065 - 100,431,065
Revenue under other RERfbERAHE
accounting standards: gl :
Revenue from business AERRERRELE
park area management (i)
services (Note () - 35,968,395 - - 35,968,395 - 35,968,395
Income from digital assets ~ HFEEEBMA
Dusingss - - 8,560,749 - 8,560,749 - 8,560,749
Segment results GEE 27,969,162 16,473,294 8,560,749 (112,197) 52,891,008 - 52,891,008
Finance income HBHA 579,671 2,457 883 11735829 12,318,840 389 12319229
Finance costs BEARA (1,117,511)  (13,732,090) - (24981,784)  (39,831,385) - (39,831,385)
Impairmentlossontrade  AEESEAZER
receivablesand contract  AMAEMFESE
assets - (1,573,404) (4,776,834) 7441 (6,342,797) - (6,342,797)
Reversal of impairmentloss ~ AEESENFER
ontradereceivablesand  AWEELH(E
Contract assets Ei&D 879,619 - - - 879,619 - 879,619
Unallocated expenses AT (M3 ()
(Note (i) (24,812,848) (607,349)  (14,812,013)  (135,458,885)  (175,691,095) 225,577 (175,465,518)
Loss before income tax RAEHAER 3,498,093 562,908 (11,027,215  (148,809,596)  (155,775,810) 225,966 (155,549,844)
Income tax expense FEHRY (2,385,493) (371,341) - (2,390,280) (5,147,114) - (5,147,114)
Loss for the year ERER 1,112,600 191,567 (11,027,215)  (151,199,876)  (160,922,924) 225,966 (160,696,958)
Loss for the year from ENBEELEHER
continuing operations 1,112,600 191,567 (11,027,215)  (151,199,876)  (160,922,924) - (160,922,924)
Income for the year from &R HEAERHIMA
discontinued operations (Wit 1)
(Note 14) - - - - - 225,966 225,966
1,112,600 191,567 (11,027,215)  (151,199,876)  (160,922,924) 225,966 (160,696,958)
Assets and liabilities EERER
Reportable segmentassets A2 HAHEE
(Note (i) (Hat (i) 102,757,377 124,946,140 449,580,095 320,991,523 998,275,135 4,304,035  1,002,579,170
Reportable segmentliabiliies W2BAFEE
(Note (i) (ki) 42,271,818 126,651,003 462,351,511 329,771,265 961,045,597 6,906,282 967,951,879
Other Segment A HER
information
Depreciation and amortisation 7% R 4,308,526 18,458,474 860,144 6,930,508 30,557,652 37,675 30,595,327
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MRS M e

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5 oSWBWEE
(b) For the year ended 31 December 2017 (b) B2=Z2—tF+=-A=1+—
HIEFE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HENERH RIEREET
Business
Traditional parkarea Wireless
advertising management Unallocated Subtotal advertising Total
BhES AFERER AL 5t EREE a5t
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AE% AE% AE% AR AR AR
Results 5
Revenue nder 1AS 18 REARSENZ 185
RELlE
Revenue from advertising and EERAZAREERS
businss park area management Y (st ()
services (Note () 124,322,438 37,692,718 = 162,015,156 = 162,015,156
Segment results PHEE (22,139,146 (10,676,232) - (32,815,378) 992,266 (31,823,112
Finance income BERA 896,101 983 = 897,084 16,007 913091
Finance costs BERA (425,428) = = (425,428) = (425,428)
Impairment loss on trade receivables  BREMEERESE - - - - (4007,887) (4,007,887)
Reversal of impairment oss on BARNERESRED
trade receivables 127,050 - - 127,050 - 127,050
Share of loss of associates AMBERTEE = (1,890,329) = (1890329 = (1890329
Share of profit of a joint venture ME-FAELERA - 4844289 - 4804289 - 4804289
Impairmentloss on remeastrement B (e EAE
0f assets held for sale EER - (12,849,322) - (12,849,322) - (12,849.322)
Unallocated expenses (Note (i) ROBER (H:20) - - (10,229,372) (10,229,372) (1251) (10,241,883)
Loss before income tax RATEHASE (21,541.423) (20,570,611) (10,229,372) (52,341,406) (3012,125) (55,353,531)
Income tax expense: FrERRT = (1870,192) = (1870,192) = (1870192
Loss for the year AEEEE (21,501,423 (22440,803) (10,229,372) (54,211,598) (3012,129) (67,23723)
Loss for the year from continuing RERREMLLRER
operations (21541423 (22,440,803) (10,229.372) (54,211,599) - (54,211,59)
Loss forthe year from discontinued A% B S LK ER
operations (Note 14) (it 1) - - - - (3,012,125) (3,012,125)
(21501423 (22,440,803) (10,229,372) (54,211,598) (3012,125) (657223723
Assets and liabilities EE&%E
Reportable segment assets (Note (if) W& DDA (M i) 173,504,992 89,304,382 17,98/087 280,107,461 7,606,992 287,714,453
Assets classified as held for sale "*ﬁﬁhfﬂe&dﬁﬁé - 5827349 2932266 8,760,115 - 8,760,115
Reportable segment liabilties (Note (i) w1555 5 &8 (A i) 52,617,352 37731437 15433249 105,782,038 6,911,326 112,693,364
Liabilties associate with assets ARRRELEAERS
classified as held for sale faE - 2927349 - 2927349 - 2927349
Other segment information ReABER
Depreciation and amortisation REREH 1253493 5,390,962 43,954 6,688,409 32832 6,721,241
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5
(b) For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Continued)
Notes:

(i) All revenue from contracts with customers for advertising
and business park area management services was
generated from external customers in the PRC.

(if) Unallocated expenses mainly include salaries, rental
expenses, consultancy and professional fees for head
office.

(i) Unallocated assets mainly include cash and cash
equivalents in head office and unallocated liabilities
mainly include bank and other borrowings.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 6

CUSTOMERS FOR ADVERTISING AND

BUSINESS PARK AREA MANAGEMENT

SERVICES

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers
During the year ended 31 December 2018, all sources of
revenue were recognised over time (2017: Same).

(b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts
with customers
The Group has recognised the following assets and
liabilities related to contracts with customers:

AR A B T

D EPEE ()

(b) BE-FT—tF+=-A=+—
A& &%)
it -

) MERSEAXEREERBER
BRM RS FEMINERES

(i)  AKROEMXTIBERFEEHEEZH
& MEMX  AALEXER -

(i) ROMEEIZBEEMEERS
RASEBMERDIEABEEIRE
ERITREMER -

REERBEEEEERE 2EF
BRI

(a) EFENMBREZDE

BE-_Z— N\F+-_A=1+—HItF
B A RERIRERMER (=
T—+F AR -

(b) EEEFEANEERERE

AEBCDHERNTEESENARHN
BERAE:

31 December
2018
—E-N\F
+=A=+—8
RMB

AR

Contract assets EHEE
Less: loss allowance B EIEREE

Total contract assets AHEERE

Contract liabilities EHEE

59,601,005
(9,686,597)

49,914,408

931,198
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR M
6 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 6 BEERIXEEEERRBEZEF
CUSTOMERS FOR ADVERTISING AND AR ()

BUSINESS PARK AREA MANAGEMENT
SERVICES (Continued)

(b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts (b) EBEEFEHYNEERERE
with customers (Continued) (%)
The below table reconciles the impairment loss TREE FEWKRIBRE L EEHRS
allowance which is related to trade receivables and B E R R R IR

contract assets:

31 December

2018
—B-N\F
t+=A=+—-R
RMB
AR
At the beginning of the year F4) -
Effect on adoption of IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 R=—Z— \&F— B — B HEARE 7%
HREEAE 15K E 8,122,622
Effect on adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 R=—Z—N\&—H—H %%IB"’XHMR
HEERFE ORI E 2,443,594
Reversal of provision for impairment on AREERBERERR (K 10)
contract assets (Note 10) (879,619)
At the end of the year FR 9,686,597
(i) Contract assets and liabilities ) EHNAEERAR

BHEEREMTEPHARE
HEIRTRER WS - MAHNE
BEIEEmIXRBEREE TR
F i m & P YR TR R A 3R

Contract assets represent revenue recognised prior
to the date on which it is invoiced to customers
and contract liabilities represent advance payments
received from customers for goods or services that
have not yet been transferred to the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

CUSTOMERS FOR ADVERTISING AND

BUSINESS PARK AREA MANAGEMENT

SERVICES (Continued)

(b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts
with customers (Continued)

(ii)

Revenue recognised in relation to
contract liabilities

The following shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates
to carried-forward contract liabilities and how
much relates to performance obligations that were
satisfied in a prior year.

AR A B T

REEREXEEEEREZEF
BHWE (&)

(b) EREFEHANEERER
(#&)
(i) BHRERESHEEHRE

TRINRR AR & 26 PR
MEBBEEANBENRRE
rFEEBEFEERITNED
BB KSR -

31 December

2018
—B-N\F
+=A=+—8
RMB
AR
Revenue recognised that was included in ERFINENEBEHA
the contract liability balance at the %I BE B U 25
beginning of the year 6,596,716
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

7 INCOME FROM DIGITAL ASSETS BUSINESS 7
Income from digital assets business represents trading margin
arising from trading various digital assets and net gain or loss
from remeasurement of digital asset inventories to the extent
it is not offset by remeasurement of digital asset liabilities due
to customers arising from Digital Asset Services Agreement
("DASA"). The Group is exposed to net trading gains or losses
from holding digital assets for trading up to the point when a
trade (to buy or sell digital assets) with customer is concluded
with fixed terms of trade with respect to the type, unit and
price of digital assets.

BrEEXBMEERA

BrEEEBIBRAKEES THTE
EMELENZSERERENHERTEE
FEMELHKERERFE AR
3 0 R TR B A IR S P EE
ENEREFOBFAEAGES A%
EEEREEERTAEMELNEEK
ERBEIFANAR  ZRABRBEEZEE
FRITNX S (BEBTEAE) RUTFEE
R - B R ERRTEEER SR -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB RMB
AR AREE
Income from digital assets business T EEEBMBIA

— Trading of digital assets —HFEERS 8,348,305 -

Net fair value gain on digital asset HTEERETFA T ER=FE
inventories 212,444 -
Income from digital assets business HTEEFXBAERA 8,560,749 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR
OTHER LOSSES, NET 8 HMEEFHE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —=—+F
RMB RMB
AR AR
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35) H & & A =&t (K171 35) (2,790,041) (155,686)
Gain on disposal of an associate o — I A Rl GES 67,734 -
Government grants (Note (a)) AT EB) (Kt (@) - 162,008
Exchange gains, net b 3 Uy 2 F 58 77,174 -
Fair value changes of financial liabilities st AfBx=8I£ R B ES
through profit or loss ANFEEE (6,882) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEMREESE
plant and equipment (Note 39(c)) (Kt 39(c)) (125,135) (210,524)
Forfeited rental deposit from RN ERERNE SRS
business park 1,638,804 -
Others HA 95,371 55,981
Total Bt (1,042,975) (148,221)
Note: et -
(@  The government grants mainly represented supporting funds () BAEBEZHEMEMBHETEEETR

granted by regional finance bureau for enterprises registered in

the relevant PRC region.

Bl @M 2 EENEES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

9  FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME, NET & (&), WA FEE
2018 2017
—B-N\% e
RMB RMB
AR AR
Finance income 2 5=, ON
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF R Z A B A 799,092 897,084
Imputed interest income from rental BHEEReME2
deposit received HEE RS UWA 233,720 -
Imputed interest income from Hi B RS HE
other borrowings F BT A 11,286,028 =
12,318,840 897,084
Finance costs & A
Interest expense on bank and BARIT R EAERE
other borrowings FER (4,149,105) (425,428)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAGENT SR
(Note 28(b)) (K17 28(b)) (26,244,221) =
Imputed interest expense on EEBEMNZREEZ
pledged deposits paid HEE R 2 YA (9,438,059) -
(39,831,385) (425,428)
Finance (costs)/income, net mME (HAR), WA FE (27,512,545) 471,656
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

10 Expenses by nature 10 EMEEIHBEX
Cost of revenue, selling and distribution expenses, Wasp A - HERDHEAEZ - TTHRREAM
administrative and other operating expenses and net AXUAREBEZERFBERENEEDN
impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets BERBEFEAFEATSIE

included the following:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
RMB RMB
AR AR
Restated
=l
(Note 2.3)
(Kt3£2.3)
Continuing operations FERE X
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 19) 4, & B 8 (M1 19) 4,750,421 4,469,480
Auditor's remuneration 1% S5 R 5 B
— Audit services — Bt R 6,829,484 1,049,219
— Non-audit services — FEBET RS 743,464 -
Legal and professional fee FEREEER 4,136,778 4,186,432
Consultancy fee (including share-based B E (B FEARRD AEREA )
payments) 15,846,702 -
Travelling expenses EIRE 6,285,674 1,917,430
Cost of revenue relating to advertising ERES RIS
services (excluding employee benefits) (TBEEERF) 68,381,468 110,617,484
Depreciation of property, plant and M BEMEEITE
equipment (excluding right-of-use (T BREEREEE)
assets) (Note 18) (K17E18) 3,335,061 2,251,761
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EHELEENE
(Note 18) (KtzE18) 22,509,845 -
Employee benefit expenses (including EERAMY (BIEESHS)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 11) (Hfa£11) 85,849,069 26,280,963
Loss on write-off of property, W - BEK
plant and equipment RAEREE - 79,010
Expense relating to short-term leases REHERBMRAY
(included in cost of revenue and (BT AWz AN A F2
administrative and other operating TR EAMSERS)
expenses) 3,502,133 7,312,916
Impairment of a joint venture —H&&ERENRE - 12,849,322
Reversal of provision for impairment of B 5 UGB R ER ERE
trade receivables (Note 22) (Kiaz22) - (127,050)
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 RUGRIB R ERE
receivables (Note 22) (K17E22) 6,342,797 4,007,887
Reversal of provision for impairment of BREERERERRD
contract assets (Note é(b)) (Kiaz6(b)) (879,619) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

11 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 11 EERABEXZ(BEESEMS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB RMB
AR AREE
Basic salaries, allowances and ERE B AL & Bty
other benefits in kind B 66,165,091 23,695,519
Pension costs — defined contribution RIS RA—RE K
plans =2 3,039,713 2,585,444
Share-based payments LARR D BERER TR 16,644,265 -
85,849,069 26,280,963
(@) Five highest paid individuals (@) BEfuBEHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest FAREBRAEERTALTEE=S
in the Group for the year include three (2017: three) (Z2—tF :=ZR)EF - HEOH
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis SRR 12FRZ 9T « £ -
shown in Note 12. The emoluments payable to the B TRA(ZE—CF - MA)A
remaining two (2017: two) individuals during the year are THMESRT
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FT—tF
RMB RMB
AR AREE
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kinds 7 - 284 R B FIZ 2,970,396 480,000
Pension scheme contributions RIRETEI R 40,793 88,149
Share-based payments LARR AR o RS 3R 619,818 -
3,631,007 568,149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR
11 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 11 EEEIMEX(BREESEME) @)
(@) Five highest paid individuals (continued) (@ BEuBEHFALE
The emoluments fell within the following bands: ERAMENFATEHER :

Number of individuals

A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
Emolument bands < & E
RMB1 to RMB1,000,000 AR®170E= AR 1,000,000 7T - 2
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR 1,000,001 2
AR ¥ 1,500,000 7T 1 =
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR 1,500,001 &2
AR ¥ 2,000,0007T 1 =
2 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

12 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 12 EEEIRES
(@) The remuneration of all directors for the () B2 N\ER-E—+tHF
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 +T-—A=+—HLFEZRE
is set out below: EHFMESIMT
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefit scheme Share-based
Fee inkinds  contributions  compensation Total
E7 =191 e LA 43
we BNAls HELS RETEMS @t
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AE# ARS N AE# AR%

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=B-NE

TZR=+-ALEE

Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Fang Bin Vil ik - 720,000 89,725 - 809,725
Mr. Song Yijun (Note () REBEENGE)) - 77,141 22,432 - 99,573
Mr. Patrick Zheng (Note () Patrick Zheng &4 (it () - - - - -
Mr. Fan Youyuan (Note () EATEERR) 60,000 - - - 60,000
Mr. Huang Wei (Note (j) B (1) - - - B B
Mr. Lo Ken Bon (Note () Lo Ken Bon % A& (gt (i) - 2,211,145 20,897 997,249 3,229,291
Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson SiRIBSE (HRE ()

(Note (i) 740,096 - - 498,625 1,238,721
Mr. Madden Hugh Douglas Madden Hugh Douglas 7% &

(Note (i) (Wizt (i) - 1,125,184 10,448 997,249 2,132,881
Mr. Chapman David James Chapman David James 7% &

(Note (iif) (W) - 1,125,184 10,448 997,249 2,132,881
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Mr. Lin Zhiming (Note (iv) SR (W () 48,395 - - - 48,395
MS. Hsu Wai Man, Helen (Note () 282+ (B (i) 48,395 - - - 48,395
Mr. Zhou Ruijin (Note (1)) B £ (M) 48,395 - - - 48,395
Mr. Chia Kee Loong, Lawrence  siEBERE A (M)

(Note (v}) 296,038 - - 99,725 395,763
Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David BRA A (AT ()

(Note (1)) 296,038 - - 99,725 395,763
Mr. Tai Benedict (Note (vii) UELE (et wi) 211,290 - - 99,725 311,015

1,748,647 5,258,654 183,950 3,789,547 10,950,798
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B MRS M

12 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 12 EEEANRERE)

(Continued)

(@) The remuneration of all directors for the (@) BE-ZE—\ER-ZZF—+tHF
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 +TZA=t+—HLEER2RE
is set out below: (continueq) EHFMEBIINOT (@)

Salaries,
allowances Pension

and benefit scheme Share-ased
Fee in kinds contributions  compensation Total

- 2ER ke AR
e ENfla FEi REEME @it
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARE ARE ARE ARK ARE

Year ended 31 December 2017 Z-F—+&

TIR=T-ALEE

Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Fang Bin Yl - 720,000 88,149 - 808,149
Mr. Song Yijun (Note () REBEEWD) = 495,708 87819 = 583,587
Mr. Patrick Zheng (Note () Patrick Zheng 72 (Hz (i) = 455,000 = = 455,000
Mr. Fan Youyuan (Note () SATREWRN) 700,000 80,000 - - 780,000
Non-executive directors: FHTEE:
Mr. Zhou Ruijin (Note (1)) Eis& it (i) 155,708 = = = 155,708
Mr. Lin Zhiming (Note (iv) LAz () 155,708 = = = 155,708
Ms. Hsu Wai Man, Helen (Note (i) 42 &s+ (47 (1) 165,708 = = = 195,708

1,167,124 1,750,708 176,028 - 3,093,860
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

12 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(@) The remuneration of all directors for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017
is set out below: (continued)

(b)

(c)

Notes:

0]

(if)

(ii)

Resigned as the executive director of the Company with
effective from 3 May 2018

Appointed as the executive director of the Company with
effective from 16 April 2018

Appointed as the executive director of the Company with
effective from 22 August 2018

Resigned as the non-executive director of the Company
with effective from 3 May 2018

Resigned as the non-executive director of the Company
with effective from 29 June 2018

Appointed as the non-executive director of the Company
with effective from 16 April 2018

Appointed as the non-executive director of the Company
with effective from 29 June 2018

Directors’ emoluments

None of the directors has waived any of their
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017
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EFMEYNT . (8

(b)

(c)

BEARARMTESELAE TN\
FRA=RARER

EZERKADRNMTERLH —F
—\FMA+NBERER

BREARRARNTEEYE_F
—N\FNAZTZHEER

BAERAQRRFRITESETE -
—N\ERA=ZHEER

BEARAFATESTIE _F
—NFERAZTBRER

BRERRRRPERITERL B —
T N\FHA+TRBRER

EZERRRRERITERY B =
Z-N\FRAZTNBERER

EEME
BEESHEHE—_T—\FR=Z
—tETA=TRIEFEE#HZ
Efa[B S -

EEREER
HE_Z—)\FRZ—+F+_H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)
(d) Directors’ termination benefits

(e)

(f)

(8)

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available director’s services
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
consideration was paid by the Company to third parties
for making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
Save as disclosed in Note 38, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company has a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of 31
December 2018 and 2017 or at any time during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

(d)

(e)

(f)

(8

AR A B T

12 ESENEERS#)

EERBERN
HE—Z—\FkR-_ZFT—+tF+=A
=+—HIEFE  BESBREES
U B A fr] Bk Bk 4 ) o

RESEEREMEE=LF1E
HzRE
HE—Z—\FER-_ZFT—+tF+=A
=t+—BLFE  AREBMERES
BEEMRBAE=ZFTIMNRE -

EBUESURES 2ZEF
EAERKRBAEERAZTHEA
ZER  EERREMERZ 2
&

BHEZ—\FER_T—+tF+=A
=t—HIEFE - BEBEUESN
REZZZEHEAEERAEERE
BIXHEAZER  EERREMR S
ZZHE o

EERRS RGN ZE
P

BB RESBAT R BRSO - BB ES
B N\FR-F—tF+-A=+—
AUERBE-F—\FR-Z—LF
T+ A=t BLFEEASEEE
FoAARTIABAEBERE
B - MARAEERE D EERRE
REEAHRS2BERS  ZHRA
4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Taxes on profits assessable in the PRC have been calculated at
the prevailing tax rates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof. The PRC
corporate income tax rate of all the PRC subsidiaries during the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 was 25% on their
taxable profits.

The amount of income tax expense charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

13

FRr8BRAX
ERAEEREE—_ZT-N\FR-ZF—+
FT_A=T—"BUFEYLEEREEL
ERERTEHN - WAL BEABEMNEHE
HeRE o

B B R R R M A A R BB Tk AR B3R
BAED  REREFIZBRAMETE - AT
EHENBARIREBE=_E—N\FER=F
—+tF+_A=+—HILFEARELESR
ot i A4 25% B R B P B A5 R o

FeBERRAHBRONMSHAXERIE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB RMB
AR AREE

Continuing operations BEQSEER

Current tax BN EAT I8

Hong Kong profits tax BBAEH - -
PRC corporate income tax R ETER 3,836,826 =
Deferred income tax BEREATISTE 1,310,288 1,870,192
Income tax expense PSRRI 5,147,114 1,870,192
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR
13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13 FiBHEAX @)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the RNEBPNARFE RSB S HERATS R
Group'’s loss before income tax in the consolidated statement AIBERGEERRANEEROT
of profit or loss as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —=—+F
RMB RMB
AR AR
Restated
=l
(Note 2.3)
(Ftat2.3)
Continuing operations FERE X
Loss before income tax BRET{S BT 18 (155,775,810) (52,341,406)
Tax calculated at a rate of 25% 2 25% B R E R BIIE
(2017: 25%) (ZZT—+tF : 25%) (38,943,953) (13,085,352)
Tax effect of different tax rates of Bt A R E A SRR R A9 8%
subsidiaries operations in other PE IR N [ A B 2 2 TS o &
jurisdiction and region 12,624,303 -
Tax effect of share of results of associates 71k & A 7 % 48 T 1% 57 2 - 472,583
Tax effect of share of result of DME—REERENTELE
a joint venture - (1,211,072)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes S5k 2% AR IR M X 10,810,823 2,211,963
Income not subject to tax BEZRRB WA (6,103,336) (456,591)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B o AR MR R IE 5 18
tax losses (41,160) -
Tax losses for which no deferred income  RERELEMEREER
tax assets were recognised BiIBEE 26,800,437 13,938,661
Income tax expense FIEHiA X 5,147,114 1,870,192
As at 31 December 2018, no deferred income tax liabilities R-ZEBE—-NE+_A=+—0 t&EHIR
have been recognised for the withholding tax that would be o B A BT BB A B R BE B A R FE A TR AR
payable on the unremitted earnings of subsidiaries in the PRC. MRELMEHEaE  RAELBFEHER
The unremitted earnings are to be used for reinvestment. The BiRE - MO EZENBEIRRE B ASE
income tax liability is not recognised where the timing of the B4 R TR EEA TN 2R AR
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the AR - BIFTETBEN THER -

Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

14 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 14 %i@%%ﬁ
On 29 December 2016, the Board decided to discontinue the RZB—RETZAZ+HARA ZFFGR
operation of the wireless advertising business. An analysis of mé&%ﬁi«f SMBEEEREEB - HE-T
the results and cash flows of the discontinued operations for —NERZF—+tF+-_A=+—HILHF
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 is as below: ERIEEEEBNEERRESRE DT
T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB RMB
AR AREE
Discontinued operations BRI
Statement of profit or loss of the IR EEERR
discontinued operations:
Other gains H Atz 285,994 2,184,843
Administrative and other operating TR E A48 & R
expenses (60,028) (5,196,968)
Profit/(loss) for the year from RNAREE ANENRIEEEER
discontinued operation (attributable to  ETEEMEF/ (EE)
owners of the Company) 225,966 (3,012,125)
Statement of cash flows of the RIEREEBRERER ¢
discontinued operations:
Net cash generated from/(used in) KERBME (TR BLFBER
operating activities and net cash BemnA/ (i) $8
inflows/(outflows) 128,713 (278,040)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD

FOR SALE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group decided
to market a group of investments, including (i) 100% equity
interest in the Company’s direct and indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Elegant Expert Investment Limited and /& F12E
REEEAHMR A A (“Disposal Group”), (i) 30% equity interest in
an associate, as management has the view that results of fund
management business is behind their expectation, and they
prefer focusing on advertising business. The directors expected
the disposals will be completed before the end of January
2018. As the marketing process has already begun before the
year-end, the assets with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB15,749,322 and RMB2,932,266 respectively have been
classified as held for sale in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In accordance with IFRS 5, the assets classified as held for sale
are measured at lower of their carrying amount immediately
prior to being classified as held for sale and fair value less
costs to sell. For the disposal of the Disposal Group,
impairment loss of RMB12,817,056 was recorded as the fair
value less costs to sell is lower than the assets’ carrying value
immediately prior to being classified as held for sale during the
year ended 31 December 2017. For the disposal of an
associate, no impairment loss was recorded as the fair value
less costs to sell is higher than the assets’ carrying value
immediately prior to being classified as held for sale.

The disposals were completed on 27 April 2018.

AR A B T

15 BEHEZFRBEE

HE_Z—+E+-_A=+—HILtEE "
AEEBRAFELHE—EERE  B8EOREAR
A EE kEE2E M E 2 5 Elegant Expert
Investment Limited & E/8MEREEERE
PRARH 2 EARE(HEERE]) R —
MEE R AIM30%RE  RESEREE
RRECEBREBNEEENEEERAR
BEEMRNEFTEEEL - EFHEFAHE
BRZZT—N\F—AKAMTK - BREE
MIBRERE ARG - REED B RL
A R ¥15,749,322 70 & A R #5 2,932,266 7T
WEEENGREMBIRRRANDERISE

i o

RIEBIBR I ISR EERIE ST - R ARHE
EEZEEREREESBEARBIELER
ZERHEEEA P EREERAR 2 BRIEEET
E-pHELNEEENS  BEZT—+
FHZA=+—HIEFE ARAFER
WEXNMERBEDHEARBELERIZE
EFEHE BUEGREEBEEARE
12,817,056 7T ° FHE—FHHBE A ATMS
HR AT ERIEERARREE D E A
EHERI 2 EEREE - I ERSBRE
518 -

HEFHEER T N\FONA-_+tHR®
Ak o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

15 NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD 15 BEHEZRBEE &)
FOR SALE (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the following major classes of assets RZE—tF+=-A=+—H A FEH
and liabilities relating to the associate and the Disposal Group ERRIRTEEREENEERBENE
has been classified as held for sale in the consolidated ERBERERATBRARANDERIFIE
statement of financial position: i -
2017
—ET—tF
RMB
AR
Interest in an associate i )N = O 2,932,266
Interest in a joint venture R—fEE &b ENER 5,780,976
Cash and cash equivalents BeRESEED 46,873
Assets classified as held for sale DERFREHEEE 8,760,115
Other payables — Amount due to a joint venture Hih S IB—pE T — AL ¥R RIE 2,927,849
Liabilities associated with assets classified as MO ARIELEEERBNEE
held for sale 2,927,849
16 DIVIDENDS 16 KRE
The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for EEVFTERREBEE_TE—N\F+=A
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). =t —BLEFERNEMRE(ZZ—+
F:T)o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR R MR

17 LOSS PER SHARE 17 BREE
For continuing and discontinued operations FRFEREEBRRLEREXE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RABHEEABRIEERERNREEEER
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BUATHETE

following data:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
RMB RMB
AR AREE
Restated
&5
(Note 2.3)
(Hta2.3)
Loss from continuing operations: REFELEEBHNEE !
Loss for the year attributable to owners — ANA &l #EH A FEIREANEE
of the Company 161,232,680 58,211,920
Less: Profit/(loss) for the year from B AR RIEA AR
discontinued operations IR K TGRS
(attributable to the owners Frimtl (Ei8)
of the Company) 225,966 (3,012,125)
Loss for the year from continuing KABIER ARERER R
operations attributable to the HEEBELBELCEELD
owners of the Company for the purpose  F R 18
of basic and diluted loss per share 161,458,646 55,199,795
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

17 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)
For continuing and discontinued operations
(Continued)
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

17

BRER @)
FRABECERBERRILEERYE

(%)
AREHERABEFBLEREBERELEE
EEBcBRERREEBENETIIA
THEERERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
RMB RMB
AR AREE
Restated
Tl
(Note 2.3)
(K7£2.3)
Loss from continuing and REFREEEER
discontinued operations: HIFRE RS
Loss for the year attributable to the RATIEB AR ERER R
owners of the Company for the purpose  #&5& g8 fe (5 NS 18
of basic and diluted loss per share 161,232,680 58,211,920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR
17 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 17 BREBE®)
For continuing and discontinued operations AR EREERRA LI REER
(Continued) (4%&)
2018 2017
—E-N\F “E—+F
Number of shares: BRHEHE :
Weighted average number of ordinary  tERRER R HEEE
shares for the purpose of basic and AR INRE &
diluted loss per share 251,771,079 251,771,079
Loss per share for loss from continuing — ANA Bl A A JE(G 5B 4
operations attributable to the owners EKERNSRER
of the Company
Basic (RMB per share) ERN(BRARE) (0.64) (0.22)
Diluted (RMB per share) HE(ERARE) (0.64) 0.22)
Loss per share for loss from continuing RATHEE NEIERFELE
and discontinued operations attributable ¥ R AR L& & 15 EE
to the owners of the Company KA E 18
Basic (RMB per share) ERN(BBRARE) (0.64) (0.23)
Diluted (RMB per share) BE(BERARE) (0.64) 0.23)
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss BREXRBERIIZAD RS AEGER
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted BRULAFABBITERRINETSEGE -
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
The share options and share award granted by the Company, ARQ B A AR R AR () 22 - N A A
convertible note granted by the Company’s non-wholly owned EEEM B AR L AR ER R AR R]
subsidiary and warrants granted by the Company’s wholly 2EMBARKERREETHTRER
owned subsidiary, could have potential dilutive effect on the ERBCEEYE - HE_T—)\F+=
loss per share. During the year ended 31 December 2018, RA=+—HBILFE  ZFERE KiHH
these share options, share award, convertible note and By TIEREERRRERE RSB EK
warrants had anti-dilutive effect to the Group as the assumed REBEZE  THEBRLBARRFELE A
conversion of share options and share award granted by the AR R IR D EE - BIEMNNEQRIRE
Company and convertible note and warrants granted by loss- AR R R R S S EREE
making subsidiaries would result in a decrease in loss per BAFTEL ©
share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18 Y% - BMERRE
office
Leasehold furniture and Motor Right-of-
improvement  equipment vehicles  use assets Total
WAEER
HERE PET hat:d EREEE st
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARE ARE AR ARE AR
At 1 January 2017 R-Z—tfF
—-A-H
Cost PR 8,393,320 1,275,411 5,129,631 - 14,798,362
Accumulated depreciation 2:HrE (226,847) (599,880) (1,372,576) - (2,199,303)
Net book amount BEFE 8,166,473 675,531 3,757,055 = 12,599,059

Year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-ZE—+&

+=A=+-H
Opening net book amount FNREFE 8,166,473 675,531 3,757,055 - 12,599,059
Additions AE 239,640 213,079 1,570,000 - 2,022,719
Depreciation (Note 10) & (4122 10) (921,482) (277,371) (1,052,908) - (2,251,761)
Disposals HE - (7.241) (1,594,304) - (1,601,545)
Write-off ] - (3,006) (75914) = (79,010)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 7,484,631 600,902 2,603,929 - 10,689,462
At 31 December 2017 R-B—tf

+=A=t-H
Cost B 8,632,960 1,457,888 4,039,789 - 14,130,637
Accumulated depreciation 25t EE (1,148,329) (856,986) (1,435,860) - (3,441,175)
Net book amount FEFE 7,484,631 600,902 2,603,929 - 10,689,462

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ-_Z-N\&

+ZA=t-H
Opening net book amount, FOEmEE
as previously reported MERIFTEH 7,484,631 600,902 2,603,929 - 10,689,462
Effect on early adoption of IFRS 16 R=ZF—/\E—A—RiER
on 1 January 2018 N BB B 7 S s
F16HMTE - - - 111,617,420 111,617,420
Additions NE 14,212,146 9,781,013 - 116,169,893 140,163,052
Depreciation (Note 10) & (4132 10) (1,160,246)  (1,415,057) (759,758)  (22,509,845) (25,844,906)
Disposals HE - (125,135) - - (125,135)
Currency translation differences ~ E¥HEZE 127,472 79,470 - 984,410 1,191,352
Closing net book amount FREMFE 20,664,003 8,921,193 1,844,171 206,261,878 237,691,245
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\f
+=A=t-H
Cost B 22,974,626 10,773,595 4,039,789 228,825,740 266,613,750
Accumulated depreciation 2:HrE (2,310,623)  (1,852,402)  (2,195,618) (22,563,862) (28,922,505)
Net book amount FEFE 20,664,003 8,921,193 1,844,171 206,261,878 237,691,245
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AR B IR R MR

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 BFEEE
Computer Acquired
software lease with
Goodwill and domain  favorable terms Total
BB BEHER
BE R4 ABHE it
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARE AEH ARE ARE
Restated Restated Restated
EL mE5 mE5|
(Note 2.3) (Note 2.3) (Note 2.3)
(Hi23) (Hi23) (#1#23)
At 1 January 2017 R-E-t&-f-AH
Costat 1 January 2017, RZE—t&—A—HMRA
as previously reported MERIFZR = 126,496 51,532,097 51,658,593
Restatements due to correctionof A EREFEEMSERMETH
prior year errors (Note 2.3) Eil (f17#23) 9,275,778 - (10,306,420) (1,030,642)
Costat 1January 2017, RZB—tF—A—HHRA
as restated ] 9,275,778 126,496 41,225,677 50,627,951
Accumulated amortisation at R=Z—+tF—A—BMR:tEE
1 January 2017, as MER 23
previously reported - (33,733) (1,392,759) (1,426,492)
Restatements due to correction of  RAHERAEFENHRMETH
prior year errors (Note 2.3) Fit (f17#2.3) - - 278,552 278,552
Accumulated amortisation at RZZ—tE—A—BMRHE -
1 January 2017, as restated ] = (33,733) (1,114,207) (1,147 ,940)
Net book amount at RZE—tF-A—ANEmFE
1 January 2017, as restated &5 9,275,778 92,763 40,111,470 49,480,011

Year ended 31 December 20177 HZ-E—+&

TZA=+-HLEE

Opening net book amount, as restated E4EEEHE - KEF| 9,275,778 92,763 40,111,470 49,480,011
Amortisation (Note 10) B (Hz10) = (12,650) (4,456,830) (4,469,480)
Closing net book amount, EREHEE  £E7

as restated 9,275,778 80,113 35,654,640 45,010,531
At 31 December 2017, R=ZB-+E+=A=1-8"

as restated HEL]]
Cost AR 9,275,778 126,496 41,225,677 50,627,951
Accumulated amortisation 2ot - (46,333) (5,571,037) (5,617,420)
Net book amount FEFE 9,275,778 80,113 35,654,640 45,010,531
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AR A IR R T

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19 BREEE®)
Acquired
Computer lease with
software favorable
Goodwill and domain terms Total
EREH BEER
(L kE2 REHE @t
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR® AR% ARE AR
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ-E-—N\E
+ZA=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount, as restated & E - KE35 9,275,778 80,113 35,654,640 45,010,531
Additions RE - 8,203,973 - 8,203,973
Amortisation (Note 10) B (et 10) - (293,591) (4,456,830) (4,750,421)
Currency translation differences B E = - 72,206 - 72,206
Closing net book amount FEREmFE 9,275,778 8,062,701 31,197,810 48,536,289
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+=A=1+-H
Cost D@ 9,275,778 8,405,234 41,225,677 58,906,689
Accumulated amortisation Bty - (342,533)  (10,027,867)  (10,370,400)
Net book amount EHFE 9,275,778 8,062,701 31,197,810 48,536,289
(a) Goodwiill (a) BHE

Goodwill of RMB9,275,778 arose from the acquisition of
Shanghai Jingwei, whose principal activity is the provision
of operation and management services of the business
park area. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
a vendor to acquire the 90% of the voting equity
instruments of Shanghai Jingwei at a cash consideration
of RMB40,500,000. The acquisition was completed on 1
October 2016.

Goodwill was allocated to the cash generating unit of the
provision of operation and management services of the
business park area (“CGU").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Goodwill (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the recoverable
amount of the CGU is determined based on a value-in-
use calculation which uses cash flow projection based on
the financial budget approved by the directors of the
Company covering a twelve-year period, and a pre-tax
discount rate of 20.3% per annum.

The financial budget is prepared based on a business
plan which is appropriate after considering the
sustainability of business growth, stability of core
business developments and achievement of business
targets.

The directors assessed the recoverable amount of the
CGU and determined that no impairment loss was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2018 as the
recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount.

The directors of the Company believe that any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the
carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its recoverable
amount.

Acquired lease with favorable terms

The favorable acquired lease with favorable terms arose
from the acquisition of Shanghai Jingwei which was
completed on 1 October 2016. It mainly represents a
lease agreement signed between Shanghai Jingwei and
its landlords with lease terms which are favorable relative
to market terms. The lease agreement has met the
recognition criteria of intangible assets to recognise
separately from the goodwill. This intangible asset is
amortised over the expected useful life of over the lease
term.

19 &
(a)

(b)

AR A B T

CEE(#)

[5E-3E)
HE-_ZT - \F+ZA=1+—HILF
B - MeEEEMRATREEEE IR
BERBEEER © ZatEHRAUAR
AREFIERNRE T ZF N
TEE [ B A 8L B 4 7 22 20.3% B 4
KRS METRA o

MBEETIRBR G REBFEE
£ ROEBRRORBTE M REBN
EBERRRABEENEBTER
Bl

EFFHREELENTRESE
A e AT BB AR L - A
HE=T—\FT-A=t—ALE
BRI A -

ARBEER/ERERAIKEEER
ZBARBROEMAE AR T
SEIReELBUNREEBREE
AU E SR o

BEEREABAE
BEEERGRFNESKBAEERE
ER=T—RF+H—HERNKE
FEIRE EEER DBIREEEY
BARZOMBEEE GRERRT
SEREER) WHE R - ZHE
W & | B E R B
BoFRER - BREVEENEEN
WIRTE R Al (8 4 A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

20 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 are set
out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the
Group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals
the voting rights held by the Group. The country of

20 MEAAE
AEER=ZZE—N\F+ZA=+—HB®H=E
ZWBAREIIAT - REBEHEAIN - &
ERBENRAERESEEERENTA
BREBENAEERENRZENAA#
EmE D MRS BRHBERTA

incorporation or registration is also their principal place of WEF BTG ©
business.
Ownership interest held
by the Group
rEERENERERS
Issued/
registered
Place of Incorporation/ and paid-up
Name establishment share capital 2018 2017 Principal activities
2R/
&R REMERSL /R % EaMREARE —B-NF C"T-tF FEEHED
Directly owned:
EEER:
BC Technology Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands Ordinary share of 1, 100% N/A  Investment holding
N

0S Holdings Limited

Indirectly owned:
RiEES

BC Technology (Hong Kong)
Limited

0S Limited

ABERHE
British Virgin Islands

ARERRS

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

TRERRK 1%

Ordinary shares of
300,000, USD300,000
300,000 B L3k -

300,000 7

Ordinary share of 1,
HKD1

TRERR -
18T

Ordinary share of 1,
HKD1

TRERR
iy
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TR RARR
91% N/A  Investment holding

TER  RERR

100% N/A Provision for corporate treasury
services for the Group
TER  AASERE
EBBIRS
91% N/A Provision for digital assets

business in Hong Kong
TER REERUBTEERHK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

AR A B T

20 BT (&)

Ownership interest held

by the Group
rRERENEERS
Issued/
registered
Place of Incorporation/ and paid-up
Name establishment share capital 2018 2017 Principal activities
B3/
4 EMAYL/ R EAMRRARE —B-NF ZT-tF FEEEEH
HA=REEERAR The PRC (limited liability Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision for advertising services
("SumZone Advertising") company under the RMBS5,000,000, inthe PRC
laws of the PRC) fully paid
HE=REEEBRAR B (RELARE T AR R B B SR
([=REE)) BRAR) AR H5,000,0007T °
LA=REHREERAA The PRC (Iimited liability Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision for advertising services
("SumZone Marketing" company under the RMB5,000,000, inthe PRC
laws of the PRC) fully paid
LB=REHREERAA B (RELARE T HER R R B S RS
(=72 BRAR) AR 85,000,000 °
LBEREEMEERAR The PRC (limited liability Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision for advertising services
("Ju Liu Information”) company under the RMB1,000,000, inthe PRC
laws of the PRC) fully paid
DREREEMEERAR HE (REERETH) TMER R R B SRR
([EREED BRAR) AR 1,000,007 -
LEERBEHERAT The PRC (iimited liability Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision for advertising services
("JuLiu Software”) company under the RMB200,000, inthe PRC
laws of the PRC) fully paid
DRERSMHERAR B (REERIE T HMEA R E R ES R
(TER#®ED) BRAR) AR 200,0007T °
THAR
HEBECEERERAA The PRC (limited liability Registered capital 90% 90%  Provision for business park area
("Shanghai Jingwei") company under the RMB10,000,000, operation and management
laws of the PRC) fully paid services in the PRC
LEBRRORERERAR  HE(PEEEETH FER RPEREEEER
(I EB1REL) BRAR) AKH10,000,0007T * BERERRYE
AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

20 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20 MIBAAR(#)
Shanghai Jingwei and OS Holdings Limited, partially owned /8158 & 0S Holdings Limited (&2 &%
subsidiaries of the Company as to 90% and 91% interests RIEBAHEB 90% R 9% KM B AR HEEE
respectively, have material non-controlling interests. RIEERER - REBEARHEHER - B
summarised financial information in relation to the non- % /818 E & 0S Holdings Limited FF4% i 42
controlling interests of Shanghai Jingwei and OS Holdings M BERREZSINT ¢
Limited before intra-group elimination are presented below:
Shanghai Jingwei 0S Holdings Limited Total
LERR 0S Holdings Limited gt
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-NE —TtF “E-NF —TtF “E-NF —TLF
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR% AEE AR® AEE AR® AEE
Restated*
FET
(Note 2.3)
(Wz£23)
Revenue/trading income Wit /R HHA 36,428,943 38,615,481 8,560,749 - 44,989,692 38,615,481
Profit/(loss) for the year FRaH/ (B8) 4,635,408 9881971 (12,675,091) - (8,039,683) 9,881,971
Total comprehensive income/(10ss) 2ANA/(F8) 8 4,635,408 9881971 (12,706,404) - (8,070,996) 9,881,971
Profit allocated to non-controlling AETHAEREROERN
interests 463,542 988,197 72,180 - 535,722 988,197
Total comprehensive income allocated (s TIEE gz
to non-controlling interests 2ERALE 463,542 988,197 69,205 = 532,747 988,197
Cash inflows from operating activities ~— S&EBEHBERA 22,017,054 876,143 214,020,990 - 236,038,044 876,143
Cash outflows from investing activities & EBHB LR - (238,658) (887,900) - (887,900) (238,658)
Cash (outflows)/inflows from REEHNES
financing activities () mA (22,285,316) - 19,830,601 - (2,454,715) =
Net cash (outflows)/inflows e (Ril)/RAFE (268,262) 637,485 232,963,691 - 232,695429 637,485
Current assets EAE 32,028,022 28703705 465,456,553 - 497,484,575 28,703,705
Non-current assets FRBEE 145,559,700 57,000,359 4,909,896 - 150,469,596 57,000,359
Current liabilities MEARE (13,865,660) (17.919.973)  (461,837,548) - (475,703,208) (17,919,973)
Non-current liabilities AR (112,506,787)  (21204224)  (14,292,185) - (126,798972)  (21,204.224)
Net assets/(liabilities) EEFE/(BEFE) 51,215,275 46,579,867 (5,763,284) - 45,451,991 46,579,867
Accumulated non-controlling interests  Zat3EkiEs 5,121,529 4,657,987 (547,512) - 4,574,017 4,657,987
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR
INVENTORIES 21 FE
2018 2017
—E-N\F .
RMB RMB
ARME AREE
Digital asset inventories BFERERE 188,739,099 -

In the ordinary course of the Group's digital assets business,
the Group’s contractual relationship with its customers is
governed by DASA.

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of digital asset
inventories included digital assets held on customers’” accounts
under DASA of RMB180,513,792 (2017: Nil). The balance is
measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Fair value gain of RMB212,444 (2017: Nil) from remeasurement
of digital asset inventories at 31 December 2018 to the extent it
is not offset by remeasurement of digital asset liabilities due to
customers arising from DASA at the same date is presented as
part of the “income from digital assets business” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

RAKENBFEEXRHNABXLRE
f AEBEERFHNANBAERIBTE
ERBHEEE -

RZZ—NF+=ZA=+—8 BFEE
GEEBBRERBEBEFTEERBHEZAE
FRAENSTEEARYE180,513,7927T(=
T—tF: T) o ZEBRBAFERBEER
RErE -

EFFER=ZE-—N\FT+_A=T—HH
BTEEGFEMESNAFERSAARE
2128040 (ZF—+F : T) (EPEFHER
AHSFEERBREEENENE D
B ERTEEAGEE) 23 AGE
BEERANBD [BTEEEBEBRAL-

mEPHEEEGRAT 2018FEEHR 215



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A IR R T

22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22 BESEWRERERERE
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —FLEF
RMB RMB
AR AR
Trade receivables and bill receivables BEEEXREEENES
from advertising and business park JE W IR B R R AR
area management services 11,243,910 97,352,407
Less: Loss allowance B EE R (1,761,894) (8,122,622)
9,482,016 89,229,785
Trade receivables from digital assets T BEEXBRBED
business services H 5 WA 7,152,717 -
Less: Loss allowance B R (4,812,857) -
Sub-total AN 2,339,860 —
11,821,876 89,229,785
The Group's trading terms with its customers of the advertising AEEREEEREERREERENE
and business park area management services are mainly on FPHRSGGREEZREEKRKREFERRA

credit and the credit period is generally 180-270 days, whereas
the customers of the digital assets business are required to
prefund their accounts prior to the trade. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to reputable
and creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial
strength and credit history. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover

overdue debts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE S EmRERMEE
22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22 BESEWFERERERE#)
At 31 December, the ageing analysis of the Group's trade and RT+ZA=+—H8 AEEUEEBHR
bills receivables, based on invoice date, were as follows: KIERNE S REKGTE R EREENIRER D
M ¢
2018 2017
—ZE-N\#F —ET—+tF
RMB RMB
AR#E AR
0-30 days 0%30H 6,706,660 4,785,193
31-90 days 31£90H 1,805,618 1,147,753
91-180 days 912180 H 839,422 270,000
181-365 days 181365 H 213,400 -
9,565,100 6,202,946
Bills receivables e E & 2,256,776 80,000
Unbilled receivables PN e o) G - 82,946,839
11,821,876 89,229,785
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets. This
resulted in an increase of the loss allowance on 1 January 2018
by RMB188,488 for trade receivables. Note 3.3(b) provides for
details about the calculation of the allowance.

The loss allowance for trade receivables increased by
RMB6,342,797 to RMB6,574,751 during the current reporting
period.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the
Group's exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.3.

218 BRANDING CHINA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 22 ESRWUREREREE®)
The below table reconciled the impairment loss allowance TRABBE S EWGIBNREE B EE
which is related to trade receivables: EVHAR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
RMB RMB
AR AREE
At the beginning of the year F4) 8,122,622 8,249,672
Effect on adoption of IFRS 15 on R=ZZT—\F— A — BERMBEE
1 January 2018 BIIS3RE 2RI 155 MO & (8,122,622) _
Effect on adoption of IFRS 9 on RZZE—\F—H—BERABERE
1 January 2018 B RS R E R 9 SRR & 188,488 -
Reversal of provision for impairment of ~ #[61 & 5 FE WK IE R (E 2 B
trade receivables - (127,050)
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 EWGRIBRE 2 B
receivables (Note 10) (Hzz 10) 6,342,797 4,007,887
Write-off of trade receivables i & 2 re s ks - (4,007,887)
Currency translation differences BEEBHREET 43,466 -
At the end of the year FR 6,574,751 8,122,622
Impairment and risk exposure RAE R E b
Trade receivables g 2 EWRE

N ER [ E A BB B R o ZE B S5 9 5% 4k
E A ERIAEESERFBERAENEE
REARERAFRBEREEBREENERER
B W BEHEHEBRER=_Z—N
F—H—BHEERE LA KR 188,488
7T o M5k 3.30) IR BB BT EREE -

RERHREHE - BESRUWGRIERNEBE
BN AR 63427977t & A R
6,574,751 7T °

B B E 5 e MR IR R (B M 7N £ [ BT I R Y
EERE - SMNE R K K& X R R E R AT
MRHTFE33&ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Impairment and risk exposure (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:

AR A B T

22 ESFREWRERERERE®)
WEREE#)
B 5 EURE(#)
B 5 FE R % B U 2 0 R T (B AR
MR TEER - WRA T EMEHE -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —2—+F

RMB RMB

AR AR

uUSD = 2,339,859 -
RMB AR 9,482,017 89,229,785
11,821,876 89,229,785

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

23 FENFRE - BRERAEBERKRE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB RMB
ARME AR
Non-current JEBNHA
Rental deposits HERE 19,071,253 5,584,500
Prepayments in relation to acquisition of  WiEW% - BE R R EHE B
property, plant and equipment TR RIR 4,929,715 -
Prepaid licensing fee AR E 787,884 -
24,788,852 5,584,500
Current BN &R
Pledged deposits (Note (a)) BIEIES (5 @) 94,110,237 -
Prepayments (Note (b)) J& & TS O TE N 3B (B (b)) 14,714,447 24,879,567
Other receivables (Note (c)) H{th e U sk I8 (K3 (c) 14,023,666 29,380,073
Deposits Ze 9,046,964 1,552,677
Rent incentive izl 14,887,202 17,855,005
146,782,516 73,667,322
Less: Provision for impairment B OREE RS
loss (Note (d) (KtaE (@) (2,610,649) (2,610,649)
Current, net BNER)F %8 144,171,867 71,056,673
Total gt 168,960,719 76,641,173
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

23 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

@)

As at 31 December 2018, the balance represents deposits paid
to lenders as pledge for non-interest bearing other borrowings
of with carrying amount of RMB94,110,237 as at 31 December
2018. (Note 30(d))

At at 31 December 2018, prepayments of RMB2,759,031 (2017:
RMB19,019,364) in total were paid to 10 (2017: 4) independent
third party advertising media companies or its agents for the
purchase of advertising space that to be used in the coming
years. According to the agreement terms, these deposits and
prepayments can be used to offset against the advertising cost
payable to these agents.

As at 31 December 2018, the balance mainly represented
purchase rebates of RMB6,824,038 (2017: RMB1,473,482)
granted by vendors for use of advertising service and amount
due from the former subsidiary. As at 31 December 2017,
included in other receivables were amount due from £ & =
FREEEER QA (=R MHE") of RMB18,501,910 and
consideration receivable of RMB3,000,000 arising from disposal
of =F k& . These receivables have been fully settled in March
2018.

The below table reconciled the impairment loss on prepayments,
deposits and other receivables:

23 BAAMARIE RERHEMERKE

(%)
ez

@

R-BE—N\E+-B=+—8  &&ER
—E-N\E+=-B=t+—BIXMFEZA
EAH M BEFEAEIEN AR
94,110,237 7t » (Hff5E30(d))

R-E—-N\E+-B=+—8  A#HEF
RIBARKE2759031 (T —+HF : A
R#¥519,019,36470)fF F108 (=T —+4F -
AZ) BB E = ESEE AR S ENRE
AREBERREANESGM - BiERE
16 R FiR S RIBAFRIER AR K e
NFZERIBREERA o

RZZE—NE+_A=+—08 H£HITE
IREAERESREME L AREE BN
AR#6,824038TL (ZF—+F : AR¥E
1,473,482 7t ) % FE W% Al Fff /88 A R FRIE ©
R-ZB—+F+=-A=+—08 - st AHM
U RIBEEEER BB =R REEEBER
ARAIT=ZFREDHIRBEBARE
18,501,910 & iH & = R MR EE 4 2 FE IR
R (8 AR #3,000,0007T ° 3% % MU KIA
ER-ZE—\F= AETHLEHE -

TRABNFR - e MEMGRKFIRRN
BB R

2018 2017

—g-N\F —E—+F

RMB RMB

AR AREE

At the beginning of the year =) 2,610,649 2,610,649
Provision for impairment 10ss B EREE - -
At the end of the year FER 2,610,649 2,610,649

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting
policy stated in Note 2.13 (d) and Note 2.13 (f)(iv).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A B T

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23 ERARE - ZeREMEVRRE
RECEIVABLES (Continued) (&)
The carrying amounts of current portion deposits and other BIHEAEE 4> B iR 4 1% £ A JE U 2k 18 ) BR T (3
receivables approximate their fair values and are denominated B ERATEMR - IR T EESHE o
in the following currencies.
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB RMB
AR® ARE
HKD BT 14,418,191 =
JPY H 2,577,799 -
usD v 381,785 -
RMB AR 126,794,092 71,056,673
144,171,867 71,056,673
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 24 ZRHEIR|ITER

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the restricted bank
deposits were released upon the repayment of a bank
borrowing. The Group's restricted bank deposits were
denominated in RMB, and as collateral for bank borrowings.
The effective interest rates on restricted bank deposits were
1.80% per annum as at 31 December 2017.

BE-_ZT— )\ +-A=+—HItFE "
SR I R1TIF SRR BB IR AT {8 BB ARBR o
REBERNIREIRTERAARBEE -
WHERBITHEROERR - R=ZF—+tF
TZA=1+—8  ZRHRITEROER
FREE1.80% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B MR

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 BHEaRRESEEY
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —FLEF
RMB RMB
AR ARHEE
Cash at bank RITIRE 294,645,063 53,484,855
Cash on hand FEBEE 192,983 287,225
Total FE 294,838,046 53,772,080
Maximum exposure to credit risk T B i N5 B2 294,645,063 53,484,855

The cash and cash equivalents of RMB39,033,612 (2017:
RMB53,501,136) are located in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalent approximate
their fair values and are denominated in the following
currencies.

RekBeZEW R ARKE39,0336127T
(ZZF—+F: AR®53501,1367T) J3fiL
RAE - AREIWIEAERLBANEY
) R B35 S /Y B 3078 38 <F P B IS 7B 